
 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

             
 

AGENDA 
Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards, Independence, California 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and, for convenience, via Zoom webinar. The Zoom webinar is accessible to the 
public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; 
(929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general 
public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item may do so by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will 
call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Remote participation for members of the public is provided for convenience only. In 
the event that the remote participation connection malfunctions for any reason, the Board of Supervisors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote 
access. Regardless of remote access, written public comments, limited to 250 words or fewer, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. (2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the 
Clerk of the Board at (760) 878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the 
Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 
54954.2).  (3) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, 
California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 4, 2024 

  
Start Time 

  8:30 A.M. 
 

 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation – Pursuant to 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 – Names of 
cases: County of Inyo et al. v. Amerisourcebergen Drug Corporation et 
al (National Prescription Opiate Litigation – Northern District of Ohio, MDL 
2804); and In Re Purdue Pharma, L.P., et al., Case No. 19-23649 (RDD) 
(Bankr. S.D.N.Y.). 

  
 

  3) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo 
County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 
County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Assistant County Counsel Christy Milovich, 
Auditor-Controller Amy Shepherd, and Assistant Director of Budgets and 
General Services Denelle Carrington. 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS  •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  4) Conference with Real Property Negotiators – Pursuant to paragraph (1) of 
subsection (b) of Government Code §54956.8 – Property: 325 N. Brewery 
St., Lone Pine, CA 93545. Agency Negotiators: Nate Greenberg, John-Carl 
Vallejo, Meaghan McCamman, Cathreen Richards, Amy Shepherd. Negotiating 
parties: Inyo County and Pravin Joshi. Under negotiation: price and terms of 
payment. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled 
time, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in 
the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 5) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  6) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 
  

 

  7) Introductions - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Ag/Weights & Measures/Cannabis Inspector Gene Dondero and Field 
Technician Sean R. Fekete, Ag Commissioner's Office; Water Department 
Research Assistant Tyler Starbard; and from Public Works: Office Technician 
Katherine Carrington, Office Technician Tina Chinzi, Gate Attendant Devon 
Clark, Park Manager Jorge Daniel Briceno, Engineering Assistant Kevin 
Rainbolt, Maintenance Worker Miles Romero, Mechanic Trainee Miguel 
Santana, Airport Technician Dagan Sparrow, Heavy Equipment Operator 
Raymond L. Stone IV, and Administrative Analyst Sarah Wilson. 

  
 

  8) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  9) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 10) Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract Between the County of Inyo 
and Cassidy Johnston for Personal Services as a County Officer 

  Coroner | Denelle Carrington 
 

Recommended Action: Request approval of Amendment No. 1 to the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Cassidy Lynn Johnston, for Personal 
Services as a County Officer, amending the contract as follows: 

A) Changing the end date of the contract from June 30, 2024, to June 30, 
2026;  

B) Increasing the contract amount by $52,000 for a total contract amount 
not to exceed $92,000; and 

C) Memorializing the increased pay rate previously established and 

provided via the budget process.  
 

   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

11) Increase of Blanket Purchase Order for New Sheriff's Department 
Vehicles 

  County Administrator - Motor Pool | Miquela Beall 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize an increase of Motor Pool's purchasing 
authority with National Auto Fleet Group of Watsonville, CA by $36,000, to a 
total not-to-exceed amount of $940,500 for purchase of and installation of safety 
equipment on 10 patrol units and a crime scene investigations unit for the 
Sheriff's Department. 

 

   

  
12) 

 
Surplus Motor Pool Sheriff's Department Patrol Vehicles 

  County Administrator - Motor Pool | Miquela Beall 
 

Recommended Action: A) Declare the vehicles identified in Exhibit A as 
surplus; and B) Authorize Motor Pool to offer the vehicles for sale utilizing 
Ritchie Bros. Auctioneers for the decommission and sale of decommissioned 

patrol vehicles.  
 

   

  
13) 

 
Approval of DKS Associates Contract in Preparation of the Inyo County 
Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Network Plan 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Declare DKS Associates of Sacramento, CA the successful bidder for 

planning services to prepare the Inyo County Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure Network Plan; and  

B) Approve the contract between DKS Associates and the County of Inyo 
in an amount not to exceed $199,393 for the period of May 21, 2024, 
through June 30, 2026, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
14) 

 
Jail Administration Remodel Project Change Order No. 3 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize the Public Works Director to sign Change 
Order No. 3 for $91,093.00 to Pagenkopp Construction, Inc. for additional 
scope-of-work on the Jail Administration Remodel Project.  

 

   

  
15) 

 
Resolution Adopting List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2024-25 Funded by 
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (SB-1) 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
10 minutes (5min. Presentation / 5min. Discussion) 
 
Recommended Action:  A) Approve proposed Resolution No. 2024-20, titled, "A 
Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, 
Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2024-25 Funded by SB 1: The Road 
Repair and Accountability Act of 2017," and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and 
B) Authorize the Public Works Department to apply for and submit all required 
documentation to receive the Inyo County allotment of SB 1, Road Repair and 
Accountability Act of 2017 funding and authorize the Public Works Director, or his 
designee, to sign for the RMRA funding and all associated supporting documents.  

 

      



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

16) Highway Safety Improvement Program Onion Valley Guardrail Project - 
Notice of Completion Resolution, Coral Construction Change Order No. 
2, Eastern Sierra Engineering Amendment No. 3 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Approve Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $33,371.00 for 

additional work performed by Coral Construction, Inc.; 
B) Approve Amendment No. 3 in the amount of $4,000.00 for additional 

work performed by Eastern Sierra Engineering; and 
C) Approve Resolution No. 2024-21, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 

Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the 
Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Onion Valley Guardrail 
Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
17) 

 
DataPilot - Digital Forensics & Certified Training Grant Application 

  Sheriff | Chris Connolly 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize the submittal of the DataPilot Digital 

Forensics and Certified Training grant application.   
 

   

  
18) 

 
Ratification of Payment to Axon Enterprises, Inc. 

  Sheriff | Michael Atkins 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Declare Axon Enterprises, Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ a sole-source provider 

of gap coverage, body cameras, evidence storage, redaction tool 
assistant, and installation; 

B) Ratify payment to Axon Enterprise, Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ in the amount 
of $1,181.35 for gap coverage; and 

C) Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Axon 
Enterprise Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ. for the provision of body cameras, 
evidence storage, redaction tool assistant in an amount not to exceed 
$664,465.62 for the period of May, 1, 2024 through June 30, 2028, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
19) 

 
Bid Acceptance of Idemia Livescan Machine 

  Sheriff | Shane Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Approve and award the contract for Livescan 
machine, training, maintenance and associated services to Idemia of Reston, 
VA in an amount not to exceed $42,199.74, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign. 

 

   

  
20) 

 
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 

  Clerk of the Board | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes from the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of May 21, 2024. 

 
 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  
 

REGULAR AGENDA  

  
 

   

 21) Bishop Area Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau Report 

  County Administrator - Advertising County Resources | Tawni Thomson, Executive 
Director 
20 minutes (10min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 

 
Recommended Action:  Receive a presentation from the Bishop Chamber of 
Commerce and Visitors Bureau on the advertising/marketing campaign it has 
undertaken on behalf of the County.  

 

   

  
22) 

 
Appointment of a National Association of Counties Voting Delegate 

  Board of Supervisors | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
3 minutes 

 
Recommended Action:  Appoint a voting delegate from the Board of 
Supervisors for the 2024 Annual Business Meeting and Election to be held 
during the National Association of Counties' Annual Conference in 
Hillsborough County, FL on Monday, July 15.  

 

   

  
23) 

 
Consideration of Board of Supervisors' Budget Narrative for Fiscal Year 
2024-2025 

  Board of Supervisors | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
10 minutes  
 

Recommended Action:  Review and direct staff to make any desired 
changes to the narrative for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Board of Supervisors 
Budget Narrative. 
  

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  24) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  25) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-389  

 

Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract Between the 
County of Inyo and Cassidy Johnston for Personal 

Services as a County Officer 
Coroner 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Denelle Carrington, Assistant Director of Budget 
and General Services  

Denelle Carrington, Assistant Director of Budget 
and General Services  

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request approval of Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Cassidy Lynn 
Johnston, for Personal Services as a County Officer, amending the contract as follows: 
A) Changing the end date of the contract from June 30, 2024, to June 30, 2026; and  
B) Increasing the contract amount by $52,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $92,000; and 
C) Memorializing the increased pay rate previously established and provided via the budget process.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This amendment is being brought before your Board to extend the end date through June 30, 2026 and 
to increase the contract amount to $92,000 to cover the charges through the new end date of the 
contract. 
 
Ms. Johnston is one of the Deputy Coroner positions in the Northern portion of Inyo County but also 
provides services to the Southern portion of Inyo County. This amendment will allow Ms. Johnston to 
continue their work so that no interruption in services occurs. The change to the pay rate is not an 
increased cost as that rate of pay was previously provided after being approved during the budget 
process. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 023500 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code salaries and 
benefits 

Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This is for ongoing costs that are currently budgeted.  
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

This position will continue to be budgeted in the Coroner Budget each year, as personnel is needed to 
cover the necessary functions within the Coroners Department.  
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could disapprove the contract amendment, but this action is not recommended because 
these services are critical to the Coroner function.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
CAO 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Johnston Amendment No. 1 
  
APPROVALS: 
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/20/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/21/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/21/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 5/22/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/22/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/22/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AMENDMENT NUMBERITO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Cassidv tvnn Johnston

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAT SERVICES

AS A COUNTY OFFICER

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Cassidv Lvnn Johnston

(hereinafter referred to as 'i)fficer"), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Personal

Services as a Deputy Coroner, dated lune 14, 2022, on County of lnyo Standard Contract No' 281 for the

term from JVlv 1'.2O22 to June 30. 2024.

WHEREAS, County and offlcer do deSire tO Consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provldes that lt may be modlfled, amended, changed, added to, or

subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change ls in wrltten

form, and executed wlth the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement

to maintaln contlnulry.

County and Offlcer hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from Julv 1. 2022 to June 30, 2026 unless sooner terminated

as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

D, Limit upon amount oavable under Aereement. The total sum of the all payments made by the

County to offlcs ror s"*lces ,and *ork pertormeo under this Agreement, lncludlng overtlme, travel, and per diem

.*panrar, lf any, and all payments made by the County to any Federa!, State, County, or munlcipal agency by reason

of ofllcer,s employmeni under thls contract, lncludlng employer's soclal.securlty contrlbutlons and state dlsablllty

lnrur.nr., lf any, ihall not exceed S92.OOO dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract llmlt"). County expressly

reserves the rlght to deny any payrnent or relmbursement requested by officer for servlces or work performed,

lncludlng overtlme, travel or per dlem, whlch ls ln excess of the contract llmlt'

ln Attechment B, Agreement between County of lnyo and Cassidy Lynn Johnston, under the Schedule of Fees, the

Schedule of Fees ls amended to read as follows:

$t,aSO 7 Month luly I, 2O22 through october t2' 2022

51,750 / Month October 13, z02zthrough end of contract

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 201

(Appointed CountY Offlcer)
Page 1



By:By:

AMENDMENT NUMBER1TO

AGREEMET{T BETl[,EEil THE COUilW OF INYO AITID

Catsldv Lvnn Johnrton
FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAISERVICES

ASA COUNTY OFFICER

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SETTHEIR HANDS AND SEAIS THIS

_ DAY OF

COUNW OF INYO OFFICER

Dated:
or Prlnt

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

l.{or 1t

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

Ct ';rtia l4artiudal,a
Christie Martindate (May 14, 2024 08:34 PDT)

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

K w'l^
Dlrector of Personnel Seruices

County of lnyo Standard Contrast - No. 201

(Appolnted CountY Offl cer)

Page2



Crerbd:

8y:

Sbtua:

Tnngrc[on lD:

20214+1e

Mallory Wattsrcon (mwatbrson@nyoounly,us)

Slgncd

CBJCHBCAAtrAAucHIuX-BObiNlTzhvAuba2Oc{}TpY BEm

Cassidy Johnson Dep Coroner Contract
FinalAudlt Report 202+04-17

"Cassidy Johnson Dep Coroner Contract" History

e Document created by Mallory Watterson (mwatterson@nyocounty.us)

2o,244,+16- 6:18:13 PM GMT

4 Documentemailed to John-CaflVallejo (icvallejo@inyocounty.us) forslgnature

m24-0+16 - 6:18:52 PM GMT

fi eman Mewed by John€arl ValleJo (cvalleJo@lnyocounty.us)

202401-17 . 6:24;& PM GMT

4e Document e-olgned by John-Carl Vallejo (walleJo@lnyocounty.us)

Slgnature Dalai 2024-04J17 - 6i25i42 PM GMT ' Tlme Source: seruer

O lgreementcompleted.

2024Q4-17 -0:25:42 PM GMT

GOUNTYOF INYO

CAUFOR}IIA

Pow.ltd by

Adobs
Acrobrt€ Slgn



Created:

By:

Status:

Transaction lD:

2024-05-14

Denelle Carrington (dcarrington@inyocounty.us)

Signed

CBJCH BCAABtrfipH N BhpctYDOSArV-AoIYK9EYYgvA4S-m

Johnston Amendment 1 07 .01 . 2024-06.30. 2026
FinalAudit Report 2024-05-14

"Johnston Amendment 1 07.01 .2024-06.30 .2026" History

e Document created by Denelle Carrington (dcarrington@inyocounty.us)

2024-05-'14 - 2:50:33 PM GMT

4, Document emailed to Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty.us) for signature

2024-05-14 - 2:5209 PM GMT

Ft Document emailed to Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty'us) for signature

2024-05-14 - 2:52:09 PM GMT

e Emait viewed by Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty.us)

2024-05-14- 3:33:48 PM GMT

4s Document e-signed by Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty'us)

Signature Dale:2024-05-14 - 3:34:39 PM GMT - Time Source: server

e Emailviewed by Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us)

2024-05-14 -7:08:57 PM GMT

46 Document e-signed by Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us)

Signature D alei 2024-05-1 4 - 7 :09 : 19 PM G MT - Time Source: server

O Agreement completed.

2024-05-'14- 7:09:19 PM GMT

@ coutrwoFll{Yo
CAUFONNN

Porv.r.d by

Adob.
Acrobrt slgn



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-391  

 

Increase of Blanket Purchase Order for New Sheriff's 
Department Vehicles 

County Administrator - Motor Pool 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Miquela Beall Miquela Beall 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize an increase of Motor Pool's purchasing authority with National Auto Fleet Group of Watsonville, 
CA by $36,000, to a total not-to-exceed amount of $940,500 for purchase of and installation of safety 
equipment on 10 patrol units and a crime scene investigations unit for the Sheriff's Department. 
 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
In September 2023, your Board approved the original blanket Purchase Order (PO) for the purchase and 
equipping of new patrol and service units. When the final bid came in for the addition of the aftermarket 
equipment, the original amount of that PO was not enough to cover the cost. In Feb. 2024, your Board 
approved an additional $200,000 with the intent of having an additional blanket PO for the amount to pay 
for the equipping only. It was the intent to have the crime scene investigation unit on a separate PO. 
However, National Auto has since requested to have all the FY23/24 vehicles orders for the Sheriff Dept. 
on one combined purchase order. The current amount requested to be authorized, $940,500, will be the 
full amount required to purchase and equip 10 patrol units and the crime scene truck.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 200100 
Motor Pool 
Operating 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5655 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
$940,500. The funds are budgeted in the FY23/24 approved budget. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to authorize this increase but that is not recommended. Without the 
increase in the purchase order we will not be able to purchase the vehicles or the necessary safety 
equipment.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. National Auto Group Blanket Purchase Order 
2. New Patrol Vehicles Equipment Install Blanket Purchase Order 
  
APPROVALS: 
Miquela Beall Created/Initiated - 5/22/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/22/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/22/2024 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/22/2024 
Nate Greenberg 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at ameeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 26th day of September 2023 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

CAO-Motor Pool-
National Auto Group
Blanket P.O.

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to authorize issuance of a
blanket Purchase Order in an amount not to exceed $694,500, payable to National Auto
Fleet Group of Watsonville, CA for the purchase and equipping of patrol and service units
for the Sheriffs Department. Motion carried unanimously.

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAA MobrPool
Other
DATE: September 28, 2023

IIITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 26h

Day of September, 2023

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Nr
By:



INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINAORRILL. JEFF GRIFFITHS r SCOTT MARCELLIN r JENNIFER ROESER . MATT KINGSLEY

NATE GREENBERG DARCY ELLIS
Ce {! tv Attrr,..'Jsri4 rr L,f f)f FraFF A-..ia. Crfr( oF f6E SoAta

AGENDA ITEM REQUTST FORM

September 26, 2023 Reference lD:
2023-4128

Purchase and Equipping of Sheriff's Department Patrol
and Service Units

Gounty Administrator - Motor Pool
ACTION REQUIRED

ITEM SUBMITTED BY
Miquela Beall

ITEM PRESENTED BY
Miquela Beall

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize issuance of a blanket Purchase Order in an amount not to exceed $694,500, payable to
National Auto Fleet Group of Watsonville, CA for the purchase and equipping of patrol and service units for
the Sheriffs Department.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION:
lnyo County Motor Pool is the department responsible for ordering, equipping, and maintenance of
Sheriff Department patrol units and service vehicles. This purchase order is requested pursuant to our
"piggyback" purchasing exception to the bidding requirements as set forth in Section ll.D.6 of the
Purchasing Policy, via the Sourcewell state purchasing contract. Sourcewell awarded the contract for
government vehicle acquisitions to National Auto Fleet Group. Starting in 2022, National Auto has begun
requiring purchase orders in order to place vehicle orders. Unfortunately, the auto market is stlll chaotic
and we have been advised that when order banks open, they may only be open for a matter of weeks or,
in some cases, days. This does not allow us enough time to get an exact cost for the vehicles, and go to
Board to have the exact amount approved. As such, we are requesting a blanket purchase order not to
exceed the amount we have been approved to spend on these vehicle purchases for this fiscal year.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding
Source lNon-cen

eral Fund Budget Unit lzoo
lpoo

100 Motor
l- Operatinq

es with 2023-2024 Budget Approvald? - VehiclesCode
Recurrence lExpenditures throughout the fiscal year

Current Fiscal Year lmpact
This amount is uested for approval in the CAO Recommended FY 2023124 budget

Future Fiscal Year lmpacts

Addltional lnformation

P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street I l:rdependence, CA 93926
(760) 878-02e2



Your Board could chose not to authorize this purchase ordel but that would greatly inhibit the County's
ability to orde.r these units because the agent is requiring Purchase Orders to place orders.

Sheriffs Department

Miqueta Beall
Darcy Ellis
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Sue Dishion

Created/lnitiated - 9f7 /'2CI23

Approved - 9l7nA2?
Approved - 9l7nA23
Approved -917t2023
Final Approval - 91812023

P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93526

{7f,01875-s292



In tlte Rooms of the Boatd of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 20th day of February 2024 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

CAO-Motor Pool-
New PatrolVehicles
Equipment lnstall
Blanket P.O.

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to authorize the
issuance of a blanket purchase order in an amount not to exceed $200,000 payable to
National Auto Fleet Group of Watsonville, CA for the installation of law enforcement
equipment in the new patrol units for the Sheriffs Department. Motion carried unanimously.

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: PWltotorPool
DATE: February 27,2024

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 20th

Day of Februarv,2024

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors

't[By.



INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL. JFFF GRIFFITHS e SCOTT MARCELLIN r JINNIFER ROESER o MATT KINGSLEY

NATE GREENBERG DARCY ELLIS
Corxiy 4otrrlrirsraAr ) v E O f I 1 cE F 4-r-<t. CiEFr oF rkE BoAFo

AGTNDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

February 20, 2024

Blanket Purchase Order for the lnstallation of Law
Enforcement Equipment on New Patrol Vehicles

County Administrator - Motor Pool
ACTION REQUIRED

Reference lD:
2024-134

ITEM SUBMITTED BY
Miquela Beall

ITEM PRESENTED BY
Miquela Beall

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize the issuance of a blanket purchase order in an amount not to exceed $200,000 payable to
National Auto Fleet Group of Watsonville, CA for the installation of law enforcement equipment in the
new patrol units for the Sheriff's Department.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION:
On September 26, 2A23 your Board approved a blanket purchase order to National Auto Fleet group for
the purchase and equipping of patrol and service units for the Sheriffs Department. At that time, we did
not have the exact cost for the new units but because the order window was anticipated to be very short,
we requested a blanket purchase order with an estimated figure based on prior-year costs. Now that we
have the actual cost per unit, the amount authorized on the current purchase order is not enough to
cover the units and the equipping. We are requesting an additional purchase order in the amount of
$200,000 for the anticipated cost of adding law enforcement equipment to the new units.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding
Source

Non-General Fund Budget Unit lzootoo Motor
lPoot- Operatinq

Budgeted? Yes, with FY 2023-2024 Mid-Year Budget
Adjustment approval

ObJect Gode 
15655- 

Vehicles

Recurrence Expenditures throughout the fiscal year

Current Fiscal Year lmpact
$200,000, as requested for approval in the Mid-Year Budget Adjustment
Future Fiscal Year lmpacts

Additlonal lnformation

P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93525

{760) 878-02e2



'l ^.,,\i: /l 'J: i:. !Ji-.,: ..1.a: .'!. .; : ': ,t:i/r i l- i.i.i llilri,l: /.j.'it 1 
t Ir;!f f

Your Board could choose not to authorize this purchase order. This is not recommended
inhibit our ability to secure this equipment reguircd for new Sheriff vehicles.

as it would

i: iI i1 ;j I rl ii 1:jX:j :"t..l j l.ll;l ,'f, li',- r,' .,,',1-,' :l r' :,1: -r.\

Sheriff Department

Miquela Beall
Darcy Ellis
Denelle Carrington
Amy Shepherd
Nate Greenberg

Grealed/lnitiated - A5l2A24
Approved -A5ft024
Approved -21512024
Approved -21512024
Final Approval - 211212024

P. O. Draw€r N I 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93526
(760) 878{292



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-392  

 

Surplus Motor Pool Sheriff's Department Patrol Vehicles 
County Administrator - Motor Pool 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Miquela Beall Miquela Beall 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Declare the vehicles identified in Exhibit A as surplus; and  
B) Authorize Motor Pool to offer the vehicles for sale utilizing Ritchie Bros. Auctioneers for the 
decommission and sale of decommissioned patrol vehicles.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Prior to 2021, retired patrol vehicles were decommissioned on site by local companies and then sold via 
traditional auction. However, since that time, all the local companies that were utilized are no longer in 
business and we have not been able to find a new company to come to Inyo to decommission the units. 
As a result, retired vehicles have been sitting at the Posse Hut for years while we searched for an 
alternative. The vehicles themselves no longer meet the standard of safely due to their age and mileage 
and much of the aftermarket equipment is out-dated.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

 Non-General Fund  Budget Unit 200200 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 4911 - Sale of 
Fixed Assets 

Recurrence One-Time Revenue  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
None, we don't anticipate the vehicles will sell in FY23/24. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Funds will most likely be recognized in FY24/25. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to declare these vehicles as surplus and not approve them for auction, but 
that is not recommended. Law enforcement vehicles have requirements in order to be disposed of that 
are different from civilian units. All safety equipment and identifying graphics need to be removed before 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

they can be sold, which makes it difficult to decommission and sell these vehicles locally. Richie Bros. 
was recommended to us by several agencies in California as the vendor that they use to dispose of their 
patrol and safety vehicles. Currently, these vehicles are being stored at the Posse Hut, which is 
becoming overcrowded, and we need to make room for the 10 vehicles that will be retired when the 
Sheriff Dept. receives 10 new units this year.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Surplus Patrol Vehicle List 
  
APPROVALS: 
Miquela Beall Created/Initiated - 5/21/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/21/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/22/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/28/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/28/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SURPLUS PATROL VEHICLES FY23.24

Asset # Year, Make, Model, Color VIN Mileage
9432 2015 FORD INTERCEPTOR 1FM5KBAT2FGC66848 112646

9784 2016 FORD INTERCEPTOR 1FM5K8AR1GGD16192 142902

9434 2015 FORD INTERCEPTOR 1FM5KBAT2FGC66850 165088

9789 2016 FORD INTERCEPTOR 1FM5K8AR7GGD16195 124461

8477 2007 FORD EXPEDITION 1FMFU16527LA84169 123729

8990 2011 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 2FABP7BV8BX177069 130372

9462 2014 FORD EXPEDITION 1FMJU1J54EEF25562 96380

9433 2015 FORD INTERCEPTOR 1FM5KBAT4FGC66849 85527



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-322  

 

Approval of DKS Associates Contract in Preparation of 
the Inyo County Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure 

Network Plan 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Justine Kokx, Transportation Planner Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Declare DKS Associates of Sacramento, CA the successful bidder for planning services to prepare 
the Inyo County Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Network Plan; and  
B) Approve the contract between DKS Associates and the County of Inyo in an amount not to exceed 
$199,393 for the period of May 21, 2024, through June 30, 2026, contingent upon the Board’s approval 
of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On October 2, 2023, your Board accepted the successful Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant 
(STPG) from Caltrans to develop an Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Infrastucture Network Plan (Plan) for 
Inyo County.  The Plan will outline a path forward to install effective and equitable EV charging 
infrastructure throughout Inyo County and to electrify the county-owned vehicle fleet by gathering data, 
evaluating the physical and financial feasibility of expanding the charging network in the county, and 
conducting a site analysis for EV charging locations, with an emphasis on County-operated 
properties.  An important component of the Plan will be to develop a Stakeholder Advisory Committee 
through robust community engagement that will be made up of individuals with technical expertise to 
provide direction and insight for the development of the Plan. The Plan will encourage multimodal 
transportation by allowing visitors to charge EV's at public outdoor places, such as trailheads, County 
parks, and campgrounds, encouraging simultaneous use of trails and outdoor spaces while the vehicle is 
charging. The Plan will also provide a high-level analysis of hydrogen fueling feasibility in Inyo County.   
 
Public Works staff conducted the work to identify and secure a qualified contractor to prepare the Plan. 
This involved preparing an amendment to the Overall Work Program (OWP) in November 2023 to 
incorporate the funds into the OWP, followed by the Request for Proposals, which was advertised during 
February through March 28, 2024.  Inyo County Public Works received seven highly qualified 
proposals.   
 
The DKS proposal received the highest rating from the evaluators.  Their proposal revealed a 
comprehensive understanding of the unique nature and challenges facing Inyo County for EV readiness 
and identified strategies to create a successful Plan. DKS has specific expertise in developing similar EV 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

readiness and implementation plans in a variety of rural settings, including in Mono County, Calaveras, 
Shasta, Placer, Madera and Kern Counties. Their depth of EV infrastructure understanding and vast 
experience with having prepared over 50 EV charging infrastructure planning projects will ensure a 
successful plan for Inyo County. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded - Caltrans Sustainable Transportation 
Planning Grant 

Budget Unit 504605 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265, 4599 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
$20,000 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
$179,393 remaining for future fiscal years (includes $21,691 staff match) 
Additional Information 
Grant and Contract to expire 06/30/2026 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board may choose to not approve the contract with DKS. This is not recommended, as doing so 
would significantly delay the implementation of the Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant's schedule 
and development of the Plan. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Caltrans; Inyo County Local Transportation Commission. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. DKS Associates Agreement 
2. Summary Scoring Worksheet  
  
APPROVALS: 
Justine Kokx Created/Initiated - 5/20/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/21/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/21/2024 
Michael Errante Approved - 5/21/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/22/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/22/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 1 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________SERVICES 

 

 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for the 
_________________________________________services of ____________________________________ 
(hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and 
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the 
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by the ___________________________________ 
______________________________. Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under 
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County makes no guarantee or 
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the 
Consultant by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or 
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should 
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.  
 

2. TERM. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from ____________________to __________________ unless 
sooner terminated as provided below. In addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for 
additional one-year periods as follows: 
 

A. From  _________________through _________________ 
B. From  _________________through _________________ 
 

 County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days 
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof. 
 
 The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon 
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation.      County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Consultant at the County's request. 
 B. Travel and per diem.      County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per 
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.   
Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests  
 

                                 DKS Associates

                    Planning

                 Planning                   DKS

                           Inyo County
Public Works Director

May 21, 2024 June 30, 2026

N/A N/A
N/A N/A



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 2 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the 
_______________________________________________________________.  Travel and per diem 
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem 

Payment (Attachment C).  County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per 
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in 

Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County. 
 C. No additional consideration.     Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Consultant shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.     The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed  
$                                                       (initial term)   $                                                               (option 1) and  
$                                                            (option 2) for a total of $                                                     Dollars 
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or 
reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract 
limit. 
 E. Billing and payment.     Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 

statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which 
were done at the County's request.  This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth 
(5th) day of the month.  The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the 
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the 
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day. 
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses, 
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period.  The itemized 
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental 
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules.  Upon timely receipt of the 
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the 
month. 
 F. Federal and State taxes. 
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any 
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Consultant 
under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made 
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant’s when it is anticipated that 
total annual payments to Consultant under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred 
ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes 
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this  
   Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is 
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of 
Consultant's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from 
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue 
Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall 
complete and submit to the County an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing 
this Agreement.  

 

4. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A, which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Consultant that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Consultant  will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 

                 Inyo County Public Works Director

199,393  N/A
N/A N/A



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 3 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be 
performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 
 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal 
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant  enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required. 
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits 
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's 
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits 
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County.  Consultant will provide 
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and 
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute 
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the 
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of 
this Agreement. 
 B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 

telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant. 
 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Personal Property of County.     Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective 
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence. 
 B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services.     Any and all compositions, publications, 
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination 
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the 
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 

 
 For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and 
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 
 

 

 

 

http://www.sam.gov/


County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 4 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

9. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 
 
 All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant’s, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to  
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be 
considered an employee of County. It is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent Consultant: 
 

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement. 

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement. 

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant’s, and not as employees of 
County. 
 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
 Design Professional/Consultant agrees to indemnify, including the cost to defend, entity 

and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, costs, 

or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of 

Design Professional/Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of services under this 

contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active 

negligence, or willful acts of the County; and does not apply to any passive negligence of the County 

unless caused at least in part by the Design Professional/Consultant. 

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.     Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions. 
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.     Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant. 
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 

12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 5 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

13. CANCELLATION. 
 
 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Consultant may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 

 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Consultant shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of County. 

 

15. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days 
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts 
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.  

 

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver  
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 

18. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

 

19.  POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 6 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

gain, or enhancement.  Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 

20. SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Consultant  of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification 
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment). 
 

22. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

 

23. NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 
 

  County of Inyo:  
  ________________________________________  Department  
  ________________________________________  Address 
  ________________________________________  City and State 

 

  Consultant: 
  ________________________________________ Name 
  ________________________________________ Address 
  ________________________________________ City and State 
 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

 
///       //// 

Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526

DKS Associates - John Bosket
428 J Street, STE 340
Sacramento, CA 95814



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 7 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
_______ DAY OF _________________________, _________. 
 
 

COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT  
 
 
By: ______________________________   By: _________________________________ 
  Signature            Signature 
      _____________________________         _________________________________ 
        Print or Type Name      Print or Type Name 

 
Dated: ___________________________   Dated: ______________________________ 
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
        
_____________________________________________  
County Counsel  

 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
_____________________________________________ 
County Auditor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
______________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  

 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  
 
______________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

 

                       DKS Associates

              Planning

John-Carl Vallejo (May 13, 2024 11:56 PDT)
John-Carl Vallejo

John Bosket (May 20, 2024 09:06 PDT)
John Bosket

John Bosket

May 20, 2024



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional) 

Page 8 of 11 06/04/2019          

ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

                         DKS Associates

                Planning

05/21/2024 06/30/2026



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 9 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

 ATTACHMENT B 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 
 

 TERM: 

 

 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

 

 

 

 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

                         DKS Associates

                Planning

May 21, 2024 06/30/2026



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional) 

Page 10 of 11 06/04/2019          

ATTACHMENT C 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT: 

                          DKS Associates

                  Planning

    05/21/2024     06/30/2026



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

(Independent Consultant – Professional)  

                                                                                     Page 11 of 11                                                                           06/04/2019                                                                                               

  

ATTACHMENT D 
 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  

 AND ______________________________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF ____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 
 

 TERM: 

 

 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 
 

 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS   
 

                      DKS Associates

               Planning

   05/21/2024    06/30/2026



14

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
needs a comprehensive and actionable plan to 
guide the installation of EV chargers for use by 
local residents, visitors and County fleet vehicles. 
Along with serving as a decision support tool, this 
plan will position Inyo County to be competitive for 
current and upcoming funding opportunities.

To best achieve these objectives, DKS is collaborating 
with our strategic partner Frontier Energy. We believe that 
the DKS team has the commitment, relevant experience, 
technical and communication skills, methodology, and 
resources necessary to successfully provide the services 
scoped in the RFP. Our team members are on the leading 
edge of ZEV planning and adoption with more than 50 
infrastructure projects either completed or currently 
underway throughout the West Coast, including regional 
alternative fuels roadmaps and charging infrastructure 
master plans (Madera County, Santa Barbara County, 
San Luis Obispo County, Monterey County, Santa Cruz 
County, San Joaquin County, Calaveras County, Nevada 
County, Alameda County and the 14-county northern 
region) as well as at the local scale for cities such as 
South San Francisco, Sacramento, Davis, Anaheim, 
Encinitas and El Segundo. We regularly help agencies 
understand current travel patterns and infrastructure 
conditions and we use that data to forecast how 
to best prepare for the transition to expanded ZEV 
usage by recommending targeted infrastructure 
improvements and implementation strategies.

Our approach to preparing an EV charging network 
plan for the public and planning electrification of Inyo 
County’s fleet seeks to respond to the Inyo County Local 
Transportation Commission’s needs as articulated in 
the RFP’s scope of work. Thanks to years of experience 
working on multiple projects together helping municipal 
fleets transition light, medium, and heavy-duty vehicles 

from gas and diesel to ZEV propulsion, DKS Associates 
and Frontier Energy have developed proven frameworks 
for planning public charging infrastructure and municipal 
fleet electrification that includes each of the tasks listed 
in the scope of work. However, consistent with our 
methodology, the order of proposed tasks differs slightly 
from those listed in the RFP. Specifically, we will need to 
determine the projected energy loads based on analysis 
of existing fleet vehicles’ duty cycle, dwell time and fuel 
consumption patterns to select the preferred charging 
cycle (Task 7) before evaluating electrical infrastructure 
upgrades in conjunction with local utilities (Task 6).

Keys to our technical approach include the 
following differentiators that set this team 
apart as the best choice for this project: 

Grants and Incentives. DKS has had repeated success 
securing additional project funding on similar projects. For 
example, our South San Francisco EV Charging Masterplan 
helped the City win $1.5 million of in-kind contributions 
from multiple third-party EV charger providers allowing 
the City to achieve its vehicle electrification goals for 
a fraction of the infrastructure investment and realize 
a return equal to 15 times its investment in consulting 
services and infrastructure costs. An even more relevant 
example is the Sacramento EV Implementation Blueprint 
which directly led to the City of Sacramento winning $2 
million in Phase 2 funding from the California Energy 
Commission (CEC) to implement the EV Blueprint, one of 
only four projects statewide that were funded. Frontier 
provided pro-bono assistance in preparing the proposal 
and is helping to implement the 16 mobility hubs that 
were funded by CEC. Frontier helped five clients win 
grants from the U.S. Department of Energy: four of 
which are to implement community-driven charging 
infrastructure plans and one is a community benefits 
plan for carbon capture and sequestration. Frontier was 
recently awarded a U.S. DOE Building America award 
and a CEC project focused on mobile homes. Many of 

Attachment A: SCOPE OF WORK

INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 



15INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

these projects are focused on the rural and remote areas 
of California and the upper Midwest. Based on these 
experiences, coupled with expectations for more state 
funding in support of California’s Executive Order N-79-
20, Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG), 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
(CMAQ), and other future grants supported by the federal 
Infrastructure Investments and Jobs Act, we believe Inyo 
County should prepare for these opportunities that will 
likely fund the design and construction portions of the 
project. Most recently, after completion and adoption 
of the San Joaquin COG Alternative Fuels Vision Plan 
(AFVP) by the DKS/Frontier team, SJCOG was one of 
a limited number of agencies to be awarded a federal 
Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) program 
grant in the amount of $15 million. The SJCOG grant, 
called “Expanding Electrification for All in San Joaquin 
County” by SJCOG, will utilize the awarded funding 
to provide charging infrastructure for traditionally 
underserved communities in San Joaquin County. 

EV Charging Siting Tools. DKS has developed 
customized tools for electric vehicle charging siting 
location allocation analysis and costing. Our site 
optimization tools utilize travel model network and land 
use information as their foundation. Our experience and 
expertise in travel demand modeling – both traditional 
4-step and Activity-Based travel demand models is 
essential to develop our site optimization tools. Model 
data and outputs are then imported into ArcGIS Network 
Analyst to perform the location-allocation process 
within GIS. Given the interregional travel focus of 
this study, application of our site optimization tools is 
particularly appropriate. DKS has also developed the 
OPEX Cost Evaluation Tool to generate reliable estimates 
of electromobility infrastructure operating costs.

Data Analysis. Given the rapidly growing demand for 
public charging roadmaps including projects funded 
at the state level by the Infrastructure Investment and 
Jobs Act, DKS has been actively developing charger 
site selection optimization tools and seeking additional 
tools and data to deliver these projects. DKS has utilizes 
subscription data sources including Replica and Streetlight 
data, as well as more traditional sources such as the US 
Census, including American Community Survey (ACS), and 
Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (LEHD), as 
well as ESRI’s Business Analyst and Living Atlas to assist 
our team in recommending potential sites that fulfill client 
goals for siting including environmental justice goals. 

Social Pinpoint Virtual Mapping. To maximize 
public input and to directly solicit from the public and 
stakeholders where future electric charging locations 
should be, DKS will apply the interactive web-based 
software tool Social Pinpoint. Social Pinpoint uses a 
Google Map user interface to allow users to identify 
where charging infrastructure should be sited. This 
geo-referenced public input can then be directly 
compared with the technical location-allocation siting 
analysis results. Congruence of public perception 
relative to technical results is always compelling. 

Equally, inconsistencies are just as meaningful 
given that analysis tools are imperfect. Use of Social 
Pinpoint will help maximize public and stakeholder 
input and help inform the siting recommendations.

DKS FLEELET (DKS's Fleet Electrification Tool). 
Leveraging the experience and best practices gained 
over the course of multiple dozens of fleet transition 
plans, DKS developed an in-house, cloud-based tool 
named FLEELET that streamlines in-depth assessments of 
municipal and other vehicle fleets for electrification. The 
tool allows usto efficiently develop recommendations on 
appropriate fleet charging infrastructure and transition 
phasing based on vehicle data including odometer 
readings, VINs, model years, typical daily dwell times, 
and more. The tool is flexible with respect to its inputs 
and has proven successful in supporting the creation 
of multiple different fleet electrification plans by DKS. 
The tool’s scope covers a multitude of vehicle types 
and operational needs, including light-, medium-, 
and heavy-duty ZEVs and off-road equipment.

Equity Oversight. To ensure infrastructure improvements 
and investments are equitable and accessible to all users 
including traditionally underserved populations, DKS 
will provide equity oversight to the public/stakeholder 
involvement process as well as the technical analyses.

Depth of EV and Alternative Fuel Industry Knowledge. 
DKS will draw from its extensive professional network 
of EV charging vendors and charging networks to 
recommend solutions that best fit both public and fleet 
charging. As part of our multiple ongoing electromobility 
projects, DKS is in frequent contact with EV charging 
networks including EVGo, Electrify America, Tesla, 
ChargePoint, Blink, Rivian, Volta, Clipper Creek, Flo, and 
others. Frontier Energy is the operator of the Hydrogen 
Fuel Cell Partnerships and has unparalleled access to 
and knowledge of the hydrogen market. Frontier is 
part of three of the U.S. DOE Hydrogen Hub awards. 

Mobility Hubs. DKS and Frontier Energy defined 
the concept of an “e-mobility hub” that combined 
transit, cars, and micromobility at a shared location. 
Frontier continues to work with various stakeholders 
to implement the hubs, most notably the Green 
Tech Mobility Hub and City of Sacramento mobility 
hubs at libraries and community centers. 

Our approach to preparing an EV charging network 
plan for the public and planning electrification of Inyo 
County’s fleet seeks to respond to the Inyo County Local 
Transportation Commission’s needs as articulated in 
the RFP’s scope of work. Thanks to years of experience 
working on multiple projects together helping municipal 
fleets transition light, medium, and heavy-duty vehicles 
from gas and diesel to ZEV propulsion, DKS Associates 
and Frontier Energy have developed proven frameworks 
for planning public charging infrastructure and municipal 
fleet electrification that includes each of the tasks listed 
in the scope of work. However, consistent with our 
methodology, the order of proposed tasks differs slightly 
from those listed in the RFP. Specifically, we will need to 



16INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

determine the projected energy loads based on analysis 
of existing fleet vehicles’ duty cycle, dwell time and fuel 
consumption patterns to select the preferred charging 
cycle (Task 7) before evaluating electrical infrastructure 
upgrades in conjunction with local utilities (Task 6).

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Project Manager Dave Tokarski will be responsible 
for implementing our Project Management Plan 
(PMP). Dave will lead and coordinate all the work 
program tasks and deliverables, and be responsible 
for managing and reporting activities, controlling and 
communicating task assignments and deliverables. DKS 
uses technical and administrative tools to effectively 
manage projects by minimizing administrative 
time and maximizing our time to serve clients.

Our approach is key to meeting schedules and delivering 
a quality product within budget. The important elements 
of our approach that keep our projects on time include:

• Providing an experienced and effective project 
manager who fully understands the technical process.

• Using an internal online management tool to provide 
a constant view of the project’s status and schedule.

• Maintaining a constant view of upcoming 
deliverables in a shared internal online calendar.

• Regular check-in meetings with the Project Team 
to report progress on short-term action items and 
upcoming deliverables to address issues early and 
maintain accountability to schedule. Short-term action 
lists will be continuously updated throughout the 
course of the plan’s development for the bi-weekly 
check-in meetings. The short-term action list will 
identify the agency responsible, the desired deadline, 
and any clarifying notes regarding the action item.

• Frequently communicating with the Inyo County 
Local Transportation Commission project manager 
to understand needs and coordinate approach.

Each month, DKS will issue invoices and progress 
reports with the level of detail requested by the client. 
DKS utilizes the Deltek accounting software and time/
cost recording systems to accurately record and monitor 
labor and other costs for project performance.

DKS will coordinate with Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission to schedule a virtual project kick-off meeting 
to discuss the scope and schedule of deliverables, 
resolve questions or concerns, and discuss future 
meeting schedule and to establish the operational 
and communication protocols. Development of a 
contact list will be initiated that will include contacts 
of Inyo County Local Transportation Commission’s 
member agencies and key stakeholder contacts. DKS 
will coordinate with Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission to identify key representatives. 

DKS will prepare a meeting agenda for Inyo County 
Local Transportation Commission review and approval. 
DKS will take meeting notes and will transcribe them 
into a Short-term Action list that will be used for future 
check-in meetings during the course of the project. 
The Short-Term Action list will be updated bi-weekly 
and will serve as both the agenda and minutes for 
bi-weekly check-in meetings with Inyo County Local 
Transportation Commission and the project team. 

Deliverables:

• Short-term Action Lists

• Monthly invoicing and progress reports

• Kick-off meeting

The DKS team will 
identify the appropriate 
stakeholders from Inyo 
County’s diverse and 
rural community as 
we did for the Central 
Coast ZEV project. 



17INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

TASK 1 - STAKEHOLDER DATABASE

One of the challenges of developing a stakeholder 
database for an area as large as Inyo County is ensuring 
that there is representation from all of the various 
communities throughout the region. 

1.1 Prepare Stakeholder Database 

DKS will work closely with the Inyo County Local 
Transportation Commission and the City of Bishop to 
identify a broad cross section of residents to ensure 
that local communities are actively engaged. This would 
include representatives from:

• Big Pine

• Cartago

• Charleston View

• Darwin

• Dixon Lane - Meadow 
Creek

• Furnace Creek

• Homewood Canyon

• Independence

• Keeler

• Lone Pine

• Mesa

• Olancha

• Pearsonville

• Round Valley

• Shoshone

• Tecopa

• Trona

• Valley Wels

• West Bishop

• Wilkerson

To ensure that Inyo County’s substantial Native American 
population is included, DKS will coordinate with the 
Mono, Timbisha, and Northern Paiute nations by engaging 
leaders at the area’s reservations.

• Big Pine Reservation

• Bishop Paiute Reservation

• Fort Independence Reservation

• Lone Pine Reservation

• Timbisha Shoshone Reservation 

Outdoor enthusiasts come to Inyo County to enjoy Death 
Valley and hike Mount Whitney, making it a popular 
destination. Many travelers who visit Inyo County 
may use electric vehicles, so stakeholders should 
include representatives from National Parks, Chamber 
of Commerce, and others with connections to these 
audiences.

1.2 Compile Summary of Stakeholder Input

DKS will maintain this database throughout the project and 
use it to solicit and compile comments, as well as promote 
engagement opportunities online and via community 
workshops.

Deliverables:

• Stakeholder database

• Summary of input received from stakeholders

Social Pinpoint input  will help the team identify public charging locations based on 
community preferences. As shown on these maps, the project team received robust 
input from the City of Encinitas residents in order to confirm the best charging station 
locations throughout the community.



18INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

TASK 2 - STAKEHOLDER ADVISORY COMMITTEE

2.1 Create Stakeholder Advisory Committee

Working closely with Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission and its member agencies, DKS will reach out 
to partner agencies, stakeholders and interested parties to 
form a Stakeholder Advisory Committee (SAC) to facilitate 
collaborative development of the Plan. This committee 
will be made up of individuals with technical expertise 
to provide direction and insight for the development 
of the Plan. The purpose of these meetings will be to 
identify opportunities for collaboration, creative funding, 
implementation, and utilization of all partnership avenues 
to develop and deliver a successful program to support 
electromobility across all socio-economic segments. 

Members may include representatives from:

• Electric Drive Transportation Association

• PlugIn America

• Veloz

• Building Industry Association

• Charging Networks (Tesla, America, EVGo etc.)

• Top Regional Employers

• School Districts

• Great Basin Unified Air Quality Managment District

• National Parks

2.2 Organize and Facilitate SAC Meetings

DKS wil plan and facilitate three virtual meetings over the 
course of the project. The first will focus on the purpose of 
the plan and project outcomes. The second will review the 
existing conditions report, preliminary findings and public 
outreach results. The final meeting will focus on the Draft 
Final Report. 

2.3 Compile SAC Meeting Notes

At the completion of each meeting, the DKS team will 
compile notes. These notes will will be consolidated into 
the Final Report. 

Deliverables:

• Create Stakeholder Advisory Committee 

• Three stakeholder meetings via Zoom or other virtual 
platform

• SAC meeting notes

TASK 3 - PUBLIC OUTREACH

3.1 Development of a Community Engagement Plan

The DKS team will develop a Community Engagement 
Plan for review by the Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission to guide an effective outreach program with 
all planning partners and community stakeholders. This 
will include a broad range of stakeholders including those 
in the private, public, and non-profit sectors, the business 
community, environmental interest groups, public health 
advocates, as well as social-equity organizations. DKS is 
committed to multicultural outreach programs that engage 
traditionally disenfranchised populations. The Community 
Engagement Plan will use a cost effective multi-faceted 
approach, with a goal of engaging a broad representation 
of the project area’s residents, business interests and 
other key stakeholders. 

The Plan shall:

• Identify goals of the outreach effort.

• Develop key messages.

• Identify key stakeholders.

• Review all outreach methods available through Inyo 
County Local Transportation Commission and other 
partners (newsletters, eblasts, websites and social 
media) and provide a detailed program to support the 
project.

• Develop protocols to maintain and expand a broad 
stakeholder database throughout the life of the 
project.

• Establish a consistent protocol for the dissemination of 
information for the duration of the project.

3.2 Development of a Bilingual Online Survey and  
Mapping Tool

DKS uses Social Pinpoint, a GIS web-based interactive 
mapping tool to facilitate remote public input. This 
has been incredibly successful in previous charging 
infrastructure planning projects. We are able to create 
a base map for existing charging stations and facilities 
and then allow the public to identify specific preferred 
locations for future charging stations and the nature 
of those facilities. Social Pinpoint provides multilingual 
access in more than 80 languages. The platform which 
can be integrated in the Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission website or DKS can create a stand alone site 
for this purpose. There are multiple additional options to 
conduct bilingual online surveys using Survey Monkey, 
funding allocation exercises and idea walls which can be 
utilized for this project.



19INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

3.3 Facilitate Two Community Workshops (One Live and 
One Virtual)

DKS will plan, promote and facilitate two Community 
Workshops as part of this effort, one of which will be 
held virtually and both will take place during evening our 
weekend hours. Each workshop format will be defined 
in collaboration with the SAC and the project team. Each 
workshop will use techniques that engage the interest 
of participants, maximize opportunities for input and 
discussion, and incorporate residents’ input into the 
planning process. Workshop methods may include:

• Pre-meeting advertisement that clearly explains the 
intent, topics, and format of the event.

• Opportunities before and after workshops submit 
comments/questions.

• Live-polling activities as part of our online 
presentations.

• Recording of the workshops for future reference.

• Accommodation for Spanish language translation.

3.4 Prepare Outreach Summary Report

DKS will provide the Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission with a detailed summary report describing 
all efforts undertaken as part of the engagement effort. 
This will also include demographic information about 
participants, level of participation and key issues, themes 
and outcomes identified.

Deliverables:

• Community survey questions (both in English and 
Spanish)

• Meeting materials, agenda and presentations

• Presentation materials for in-person and virtual 
workshops 

DATA INPUT SUPPORTS METRIC RESOLUTION SOURCE

Existing public Level 2 
and DCFC EV charging 
stations

Proximity of parcels to existing charging 
infrastructure Exact locations (latitude, longitude) Alternative Fuel Data Center

Planned public Level 2 
and DCFC EV charging 
stations

Proximity of parcels to existing charging 
infrastructure Exact locations (latitude, longitude) PlugShare, Tesla, Electrify America, 

other charging networks

EV registration data Share of EVs of all registered vehicles By ZIP code California Energy Commission (ZEV and 
Infrastructure Stats Data)

Population Number of residents By TAZ or census block U.S. Census/American Community 
Survey

Employees Total number of employees and by 
occupation type By TAZ or census block U.S. Census/American Community 

Survey, LEHD (OnTheMap)

Traffic data and estimates Total number of trips to/from area, EV 
number and share of trips, share of trips By road link or census block Replica, Streetlight Data?

Multi-family residents Density of multi-unit dwellings By parcel or census block
U.S. Census/American Community 

Survey

Disadvantaged 

and underserved 

communities

Environmental justice By census tract CalEnviroScreen 4.0, Justice40

Desired locations for EV 

charging stations
Residents’ needs and preferences

Exact locations (latitude, 

longitude)

Task 2 & 3 outcomes, incl. input 

provided on Social Pinpoint

Highways and 

interchanges

Identify gaps in corridor fast charging 

network, incl. related to NEVI criteria

Exact locations (latitude, 

longitude)
Alternative Fuel Corridors

Existing land use
Identify suitable land use types for 

EV charging infrastructure
By parcel Assessor parcel data

Public Charger Siting Data Sources

The DKS team leverages numerous sources for data to collect and analyze the data for public charger sites to help Inyo County make 
informed decisions. 



20INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

TASK 4 - EXISTING CONDITIONS

The goal of Task 4 is to establish a baseline set of 
information by compiling and reviewing comprehensive 
data including existing County documents and plans, 
land use, travel patterns, vehicle adoption, and other 
transportation and GHG-reduction efforts. 

4.1 Review Data and Documentation

As a foundation for planning public EV chargers, it is 
essential to understand traffic patterns, EV adoption 
trends, existing charging locations, socio-economic 
conditions, and relevant plans and policies. The DKS 
team will harvest available travel data from Caltrans, Inyo 
County, local agencies including origin-destination data 
from: the U.S. Census; Longitudinal Employment and 
Housing Dynamic (LEHD); and sources we subscribe to 
such as Streetlight and/or Replica to identify current traffic 
patterns, seasonal traffic variation, projected annual traffic 
growth rates, and EV adoption within Inyo County. All 
results will be vetted with sources such as the American 
Automobile Association (AAA), Electrify America, and 
available charging station data to ensure a reasonable 
“capture” of EV trips within and through Inyo County. 
Unique to the character of Inyo County, our existing 
conditions analysis and documentation will focus on its 
rural characteristics such as its focus on outdoor activities 
such as camping as well as on US 395, which serves as the 
transportation spine of the county by carrying the majority 
of the county’s traffic volumes.

4.2 Summarize Existing EV Infrastructure and  
Traffic Patterns

We will summarize results of the existing conditions 
analysis into a memo illustrated by figures of traffic data, 
land use data, and demographic and economic data 
for client and stakeholder review. An important step in 
planning public EV charging infrastructure is to develop 
an understanding of regional traffic patterns, EV charging 
and sub-regional socio-economic trends, and recent plans 
and policies that will serve as a foundation for strategy 
development. 

The DKS team will compile available public charging 
station location data from the Alternative Fuels Data 
Center. For current pricing, we will review and compile 
data from PlugShare and other sources, including our 
industry contacts at the major public charging networks 
operating in and adjacent to the County, including Tesla, 
EVGo, Electrify America, and others, to fill in any missing 
data. DKS will summarize the data using both tables and 
maps, as illustrated in Figure 1, to provide both detailed 
and summary data in both numerical and visual forms. 
The existing conditions report will provide the County 
with a comprehensive understanding of “on the ground” 
infrastructure within the County. The focus of this task 
will be to set the stage for zero-emission vehicle (ZEV) 
strategy development by highlighting priorities upon 
which to base the strategy. This will include a detailed 
analysis of potential strengths including locations of 
existing (and planned) charging infrastructure as well as 
gaps in the charging network. This will provide the basis 

for the identification of potentially suitable locations for EV 
infrastructure in Task 6.

Deliverables:

• Summary of existing conditions

• Figures of traffic data, use data, and demographic and 
economic data

TASK 5 - DEMAND FORECASTS & SITING ANALYSIS

The purpose of Task 5 is to identify locations for EV 
charging infrastructure that can encourage adoption and 
use of EVs by the county’s residents, businesses, and 
visitors, and to recommend an action plan for deploying 
the charging stations. Additionally, it is important in site 
prioritization to recognize the uniqueness of Inyo County 
as the home of varied remote tourist destinations including 
Death Valley National Park.

In order to identify priority locations for charging 
infrastructure, DKS will utilize our siting optimization 
process, developed in 2018 and implemented and 
improved for multiple countywide EV charging planning 
projects throughout the State of California. Our process 
includes multiple steps, including a quantitative suitability 
analysis, gap analysis, and prioritization refinement.

5.1 Forecast EV Adoption and Develop Adoption Scenarios

While not specifically addressed in the RFP, our team feels 
it is important to document forecasted growth in electric 
vehicles for public and fleets. The DKS team uses our 
New Vehicle Adoption model to forecast EV adoption in a 
defined geographical area by:

• Estimating the number of households in the county 
that match the new-car-buyer demographic by using 
data from Federal Reserve Economic Data (FRED) and 
the American Communities Survey or 2020 Census.

• Identifying annual past years’ registrations of new 
light-duty vehicles (cars, SUVs, vans, and pick-up 
trucks) and percentage of sale by classification (luxury, 
compact, hybrid, etc.) 

• Estimating the percentage of EVs already in the county 
and the growth percentage over the last few years. 

• Forecasting the changes in population (e.g., new 
housing starts, population growth, population aging)

Using this data and other information gathered as part of 
this task, we will project three adoption scenarios for the 
total number of ZEVs and subsets for residents, commuters 
and visitors, light-duty fleets, and heavy-duty vehicles 
to help determine the baseline of vehicles and estimate 
future charging needs.



21INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

5.2 Quantitative Suitability and Gap Analysis

DKS will first develop a database of parcels potentially 
suitable for public charging in Inyo County based on 
County Assessor’s data and catalog the data associated 
with each parcel. Based on relevant project experience, 
we expect this to include: location; size; existing land 
use and zoning; and if available; future planned land use 
and zoning. For each non-single family residential parcel, 
DKS will quantify a set of appropriate data fields for 
analysis. These will likely include: distance from existing 
public Level 2 and DC fast charging infrastructure (from 
Alternative Fuels Data Center and PlugShare), number 
(and percentage) of EVs registered in each parcel’s ZIP 
code (from California Energy Commission data), population 
and employment density by US Census block or ZIP code, 
environmental justice indicators (CalEnviroScreen 4.0 
and Justice40), and person and vehicle trip data derived 
from sources that DKS subscribes to such as Replica and/
or Streetlight. DKS has extensive experience using these 
data platforms to analyze trip behavior by area, including 
person trip characteristics such as mode, distance, time, 
and purpose. These characteristics are all used to better 
define the needs of residents or employees of particular 
areas, as well as those traveling to, from, or though those 
areas.

Once all of the data has been compiled for parcels 
throughout the county into a comprehensive GIS database 
developed using spatial analysis where appropriate, DKS 
will prepare a prioritization tool containing appropriate 

parcels including all data sources listed above. The 
tool will include a spreadsheet based matrix of the key 
prioritization variables and, through an iterative process 
with agency staff and stakeholders, a set of weighting 
criteria will be developed to help score the relative priority 
for each potential public charging site (parcel). Scores 
will be calculated based on the individual criteria score 
multiplied by the weighting factor. This allows for dynamic 
ranking of locations based on client and stakeholder input. 
We will provide agencies with both a tabular listing and 
map of the ranking by points for potential sites.

As described above, we will perform a gap analysis to 
identify portions of the county that are most in need of 
charging infrastructure investment.  The gap analysis 
will focus on environmental justice areas mentioned 
previously, to identify vulnerable populations in the county, 
as well as on transportation corridors, such as the US 
395 and SR 190 corridors.  As Inyo County is also home 
to essential recreation destinations like Death Valley 
National Park, Inyo National Forest and several other parks 
and monuments, we will address the needs for charging 
along roadways that serve them based on available travel 
and visitation data. While site prioritization determines 
locations that may be particularly amenable to EV charging 
infrastructure, our gap analysis will determine those areas 
most in need of potential infrastructure in the future. A 
combination of these two analyses will lead to our overall 
recommendation of sites.

Sample Charger Siting Analysis for Public Agency Fleets

This conceptual 
design is an example 
of how the DKS team 
collaborates with public 
agencies to plan EV 
charging infrastructure 
for fleets, employees, 
and the public. Our 
collaborative effort 
helps ensure all project 
stakeholders can view 
and provide input on 
charger locations by 
type and use. 



22INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

5.3 Draft Recommended Sites

It is important to recognize that implementation of 
infrastructure recommendations developed as part of this 
study will depend on outside contributors. If proposed 
sites include private property, property owners must 
choose to host charging stations and there must be 
sufficient electrical capacity. Likewise, the availability of 
grant and rebate programs changes from year to year. 
This siting analysis is specifically tailored to support NEVI 
requirements.

5.4 County-Operated Property (COP) Site Analysis

In accordance with the RFP, the DKS team will evaluate 
the suitability of properties owned or leased and operated 
by the County of Inyo for the installation of EV chargers 
for public use. Our evaluation will focus on County owned 
properties (COPs) with public parking including parks, 
campgrounds, libraries, and other facilities. Working 
closely with Inyo County Local Transportation Commission, 
we will identify site evaluation criteria to select and 
prioritize COPs for charger installation. Examples 
include public access, parking availability, stall count 
and utilization, nearby public and commercial amenities 
such as restrooms and businesses for EV drivers to use 
or patronize while charging, on-site lighting, parking 
access/egress and other safety factors. Depending on the 
charging strategy selected in Tasks 6 and 7 some of these 
sites may also be suitable for opportunity charging by 
County fleet EVs. 

As with evaluation of fleet facilities in Task 7, we will 
review available facility drawings, utility bills and other 
available data and perform site inspections and coordinate 
with utilities to determine power capacity to support 
Level 2 or DC Fast Chargers. As we have learned from 
evaluating these types of locations in Davis, Encinitas, 
Elk Grove, El Segundo, Nevada County and elsewhere 
in California, there are likely Inyo County staff with local 
knowledge of site use and conditions who can also assist 
with this. 

COP locations selected for charger installation will be 
added to maps prepared in previous tasks with the same 
or greater level of detail.

Deliverables:

• Summary and findings of siting analysis

• Map and ranking of high priority locations by the 
public input process

• Map and list of COP site ranking

• Map and summary of multimodal service area 
assessment

• Summary of feasibility assessment results

• Composite score ranking of EV charging facility sites

TASK 6 - INFRASTRUCTURE ANALYSIS

The objective of this task is to determine a viable fleet 
charging strategy and evaluate the feasibility of each 
County-owned facility’s electrical system to accommodate 
charging infrastructure to ensure that electrical system 
upgrades are sized to meet the needs of future fleet 
EVs. We typically perform this task in close coordination 
with County electricians familiar with the fleet facilities 
as well as with the local electrical utilities (Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power and Southern California 
Edison) on connecting proposed EVSE to new, upgraded, 
or existing electrical infrastructure.

Depending on data availability, we will likely supplement 
our analysis with site visits to inspect the electrical system 
components, including electrical panels, electrical rooms, 
spare conduits, conduit stub-outs, etc. While it is unlikely 
that demand from Inyo County’s fleet and public vehicles 
will impact the electrical grid, we anticipate service 
upgrades will be required at least for larger fleet facilities. 
We will coordinate with utility representatives to evaluate 
the requirements and associated costs. 

A summary of facility data we typically use in this analysis 
is shown below. Prior to project kickoff, we will provide a 
more detailed list of facility data needs.

Sample Facilities Data Relevant to Facility Electrical 
Capacity Analysis

• Existing electrical service: Load data (data logging) 
and/or electric bills to determine available electrical 
capacity and peak load demand

• Relevant fleet facility as-built drawings (electrical, civil, 
signing, and architectural)

Anticipated Subtasks

6.1 Grid Capacity Analysis. As on most of our municipal 
electrification strategy projects, a critical question we 
will answer for Inyo County is, “what electrical system 
upgrades (if any) will be required to provide EV charging 
at each facility?” On this project, we may also need to 
evaluate the electric grid’s capacity to support hydrogen 
fueling infrastructure in subtask 6.3. To answer these, 
we will evaluate existing facility electrical loads relative 
to projected EV charging or hydrogen demand. We 
will review available electrical data, including as-built 
drawings of fleet depots, electrical one-line drawings, and 
information we will obtain from the County’s electrician 
and utility representatives for each facility’s panel and 
transformer capacity. As part of this task, we will also 
review facility electrical drawings to determine potential 
electrical capacity constraints and data gaps, as well 
as utility bills (12 months) to determine actual electrical 
consumption at each facility. With this information, we will 
calculate the available electrical capacity for each facility 
and determine potential grid impacts, if any.



23INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

6.2 Demand Analysis. To determine the projected 
electrical load, we will use the fleet analysis performed in 
Task 7 to determine optimal fleet charging strategy and 
charging equipment needs by using DKS’ fleet tool to 
evaluate multiple potential charging strategies for review 
and selection by the County’s fleet manager. This will 
subsequently allow us to estimate planning level costs to 
upgrade electrical infrastructure to support chargers and 
charger purchase and installation.

Assumption

DKS to receive all information at one time before 
proceeding with the analysis. If there is new or 
additional information added after the analysis has 
begun, that would be considered additional scope, 
effort, and schedule, which can be negotiated 
between the consultant and the client.

Deliverables:

• Summary and findings of infrastructure analysis

TASK 7 - COUNTY FLEET TRANSITION ANALYSIS

The objectives of this task are to:

• Identify potential barriers to fleet electrification

• Determine which internal combustion engine (ICE) 
powered vehicles can be replaced within the project 
timeframe by battery electric vehicles (EVs) or fuel cell 
electric vehicles (if selected)

• Prepare a plan to comply with the Advanced Clean 
Fleets regulation, including identifying exemptions and 
extensions

• Determine each vehicle’s anticipated electrical energy 
needs and each fleet facility where these vehicles are 
domiciled

This task will result in an estimate of anticipated electrical 
demand in kWh per day for EV charging. Inputs to our 
analysis typically include fleet fuel card reports and, 
if available, telematics data for fuel consumption, 
supplemented with questionnaire responses or interviews 
with fleet managers from each department for information 
on daily vehicle duty cycle and nightly vehicle dwell times. 
This task also considers available grant and incentive 
funding to help plan vehicle procurement timelines and 
processes.

A summary of vehicle fleet data we typically use in this 
analysis is shown below. A more detailed list of fleet data 
needs will be provided prior to project kickoff.

Sample Fleet Vehicle Data Relevant to ZEV Replacement 
and Energy Analysis

• Inventory of vehicles by year, make, model, fuel type, 
VIN

• Planned replacement date (if applicable)

• Current odometer readings

• Vehicle fuel consumption records

• Duty cycle data

• Daily hours of use/nightly vehicle dwell times

• Existing and planned auxiliary equipment (parasitic 
electrical loads)

• Special travel behavior (long trips, emergency 
preparedness and response, used for a designated 
purpose, hot-seat with short dwell times, etc.)

• Operating days/year

• Average idling time

• Assigned parking location name and address

• Use of specialized equipment (light bars, cameras, 
radios, etc.)

Anticipated Subtasks

7.1 Current fleet composition. Frontier will evaluate the 
County's existing fleet inventory and existing fleet fuel 
consumption or mileage records, duty cycle, dwell time, 
and other data to estimate theoretical electrical demands 
from EV charging at each charging location. 

7.2 Review Replacement Schedule. Frontier will clarify 
vehicle replacement time frames and prepare conceptual 
vehicle replacement timeframes with recommended zero 
emission vehicle replacements aligned with County and 
State carbon reduction and vehicle electrification targets, 
policies, and regulations such as the Advanced Clean 
Fleets Rule (ACF) as well as with current and coming 
incentives and grants.

7.3 Cost/Benefit Analysis. Frontier will identify market-
ready (and soon-to-be-market-ready) EVs to replace 
existing ICE-powered fleet vehicles and prepare a total 
cost of ownership summary of fleet replacement. This will 
also include a high-level cost/benefit analysis of pursuing 
hydrogen fueling for the County fleet.

7.4 Documentation/Mapping. Frontier will host the 
results of this analysis available on an interactive digital 
dashboard that will allow County fleet and facilities 
managers to compare vehicle replacement timeframes and 
other variables by fleet facility and County department.



24INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

Deliverables:

• Summary of existing county vehicle fleet

• Cost/benefit analysis of hydrogen

• Detailed timeline for transition

TASK 8 - ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

Frontier conducts techno-economic analyses for new 
transportation and building technologies, and to support 
decision making about local ordiences to exceed 
California Building Codes or to revise local zoning codes to 
encourage charging or hydrogen stations.

To assess the costs, benefits, and consequences of 
implementing the EV plan, Frontier will collaborate with 
Inyo County Local Transportation Commission to choose 
an economic model, such as Lifecycle Cost Analysis, Total 
Cost of Ownership, and Net Present Value. We’ll use the 
selected model to evaluate the capital and operating costs 
of each charging site and mobility hub, estimate the GHG 
savings, and forecast potential revenue from charging 
fees, Low Carbon Fuel Standard credits, and any other 
mechanisms.

The transition to ZEV fuels, charging and hydrogen, will 
transform local businesses and impact sales taxes and 
other county fees associated with petroleum fuels. It can 
also reduce the energy burden for residents, businesses, 
and government agencies through a lower-cost fuel type 
with more stable pricing. If Inyo County were to become 
an energy producer (e.g., hydrogen production), this 
would create new opportunities. This analysis will consider 
multiple if-then scenarios and the impact on residents, 
businesses, government agencies, schools, jobs, and 
tourism.

Frontier will also present multiple funding and financing 
opportunities. We typically recommend that our clients 
consider grants and incentives as revenue, not the 
primary funding tools. Grants are mercurial–here one 
day and gone the next–and require significant effort 
to win and administer. During the project, we will alert 
project stakeholders to opportunities to participate in 
funding programs and can provide support to compete 
for grants, rebates, incentives, no-interest loans, and IRS 
credits. If desired, we can also support stakeholders with 
information for a bond or tax measure.

We have learned that the benefit of a grant must 
significantly outweigh the work needed to win and 
administer the grant. A best practice has been to 
explore multiple traditional and non-traditional funding 
mechanisms as we did for the SACOG Megaregion 
Blueprint and the City of Sacramento Blueprint. 

Anticipated Subtasks

8.1 Complete a cost/benefit analysis of the capital 
and operating costs for charging stations and site 
improvements for EVs and e-bikes, including site and 
electric improvements

8.2 Add cost analysis to the interactive digital dashboard

8.3 Complete an economic impact analysis of potential 
revenue lost and gained for the County and for local 
businesses

8.4 Identify and evaluate potential financing options 
that include grants, incentives, and other funding 
mechanisms

Deliverables:

• Summary and findings of economic analysis

• Cost benefit analysis of plan implementation

• List of funding sources for plan implementation

TASK 9 - IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

The purpose of this task will be to provide clear 
direction to implement charger deployment for public 
and fleet use including a work plan timeline for action 
by Inyo County Local Transportation Commission and 
its member agencies. This will be driven by grant and 
regulatory deadlines as well as the critical path for 
charger installation, addressing funding, design, utility 
coordination, permitting, procurement, and construction, 
all identified in previous tasks.

Specific to fleet electrification, Task 9 will provide 
actionable guidance for project implementation and 
identify the timeline for EV replacement for each vehicle 
class and charger installation by the facility, including the 
number, type, and location of EV charging stations needed 
to support full fleet electrification by the implementation 
phase. This guidance will be based on such factors as 
projected EV industry trends, fleet vehicle replacement 
schedules, ACF and other state mandates, and budget 
constraints.

For public chargers, Task 9 will provide appropriate 
direction for installing public chargers at County and 
potentially privately owned properties with a step-by-step 
set of actions addressing funding, design, permitting, 
utility coordination, charging network selection, and 
installation. Specifically, this plan will help queue up 
Inyo County for subsequent rounds of NEVI funding for 
infrastructure along major travel corridors. In addition, the 
recommendations will be added to the interactive online 
dashboard. 

In conjunction with Tasks 1 and 3, the outreach and 
education campaign will notify the public and all 
applicable agencies of planned and installed new EV 



25INYO COUNTY • ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

chargers by posting on PlugShare (https://www.plugshare.
com/), on Inyo County’s and other local government 
websites, social media postings, and press releases to 
news outlets intended to raise awareness, especially 
within disadvantaged local communities in Inyo County.  In 
cases where high-priority EV charging stations have been 
identified on private property, property owners will need 
to be notified of the status of planning and implementation 
of sites impacting their property.

Anticipated Subtasks

Subtask 9.1 Develop Timeline for Implementation: 
Based on the public charger sitting recommendations 
developed in Task 5 and the fleet electrification and 
charging facilities recommendations developed in Tasks 
6 and 7, DKS will work with fleet and facilities managers 
to compare project implementation alternatives and 
develop a phasing strategy for implementation charging 
infrastructure over time with key milestones linked to 
specific charging needs from the State’s NEVI plan or ACF 
and other regulatory mandates.

Subtask 9.2 Draft Implementation Plan: DKS will 
prepare a work plan delineating the critical path and 
timeline for implementation actions by the Inyo County 
Local Transportation Commission and its member 
agencies,

Subtask 9.3 Outreach/ Education Plan: DKS will prepare 
a roadmap for agency and public notification of planned 
public chargers as well as property owner notification 
regarding selected privately-owned charging sites.

Assumptions

Client to provide information on County budgeting 
procedures and timeframe

Deliverables:

• Implementation Plan

• Outreach/Education Plan

TASK 10 - DRAFT AND FINAL PLAN

The DKS team will assimilate interim deliverables 
developed in Tasks 1-4 to produce an Administrative 
Draft Alternative Fuels Vision Plan. The DKS team will 
respond to one set of consolidated comments from 
the project development team to prepare the draft will 
include all elements described in the RFP scope. To 
facilitate its accessibility to a wide range of readers, all 
technical information will be conveyed graphically using 
infographics, charts and figures to the greatest extent 
possible. The DKS team will address one consolidated 
set of comments on the administrative draft plan to 
produce the Draft Alternative Fuels Vision Plan for public 
consumption. The DKS team will prepare user-friendly 
PowerPoint presentations to present the draft plan to the 

County’s governing board.

DKS will assist regional agency staff in the development 
of the board staff reports. The DKS team will address 
comments received by the respective governing boards 
and from the public. Based on these comments the DKS 
team will prepare the Final Draft Alternative Fuels Vision 
Plan for final approval.

Deliverables:

• Draft Inyo County EV Charging Infrastructure Network 
Plan

• Response to comments received on Draft Plan

• Final Inyo County EV Charging Infrastructure Network 
Plan

TASK 11 - BOARD REVIEW

DKS will present the Draft Final Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure Network Plan for approval at the Inyo 
County Local Transportation Commission board meeting. 
Presentation materials will be based on the deliverables 
developed in Task 10.

Deliverables:

• PDF of final EV Charging Infrastructure Network Plan

• Presentation material for Board presentation

• Board meeting minutes



26
IN

YO
 C

O
U

N
TY

 • 
EL

EC
TR

IC
 V

EH
IC

LE
 C

H
AR

G
IN

G
 IN

FR
AS

TR
U

C
TU

RE
 N

ET
W

O
RK

 P
LA

N
 

6
. 

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

D
K

S
 a

n
d

 F
ro

n
ti

e
r 

a
re

 k
n

o
w

n
 f

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l-

sc
a

le
 p

u
b

lic
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 p

la
n

s 
in

 1
8

 m
o

n
th

s 
o

r 
le

ss
. T

h
is

 is
 a

 t
im

e
fr

a
m

e
 

th
a

t 
w

e
 b

e
lie

ve
 is

 r
e

a
lis

ti
c 

fo
r 

In
yo

 C
o

u
n

ty
 a

s 
w

e
ll.

 D
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

va
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 a
cc

u
ra

cy
 o

f 
fl

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 f
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

d
a

ta
, w

e
 c

a
n

 p
re

p
a

re
 p

u
b

lic
 a

g
e

n
cy

 fl
e

e
t 

p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

re
la

ti
ve

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
fl

e
e

ts
 li

ke
 In

yo
 C

o
u

n
ty

's
 in

 6
-1

2
 m

o
n

th
s.

A
s 

sh
o

w
n

 in
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

, c
e

rt
a

in
 t

a
sk

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 c
o

n
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y 
w

h
ile

 o
th

e
rs

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 s
e

q
u

e
n

ti
a

lly
. W

e
 t

ry
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 t
a

sk
s 

co
n

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y 

w
h

e
n

e
ve

r 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 s
h

o
rt

e
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

im
e

. F
o

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
, w

e
 w

ill
 a

ss
ig

n
 d

iff
e

re
n

t 
ta

sk
s 

to
 d

iff
e

re
n

t 
st

a
ff

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

is
 g

o
a

l. 
F

o
r 

in
st

a
n

ce
, o

u
r 

fl
e

e
t 

e
le

ct
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 

te
a

m
 w

ill
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 T
a

sk
s 

6
 a

n
d

 7
, w

h
ile

 o
u

r 
p

u
b

lic
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 r

o
a

d
m

a
p

 t
e

a
m

 w
ill

 c
a

rr
y 

o
u

t 
Ta

sk
s 

4
 a

n
d

 5
. 

It
 is

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 n
o

te
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
n

e
rg

y 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s 

fr
o

m
 v

e
h

ic
le

 e
le

ct
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 in

 T
a

sk
 7

 b
e

fo
re

 w
e

 
co

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
in

 T
a

sk
 6

. T
h

is
 is

 w
h

y 
th

e
se

 t
a

sk
s 

m
a

y 
a

p
p

e
a

r 
to

 b
e

 o
u

t 
o

f 
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

. 
W

e
 h

a
ve

 a
ls

o
 in

cl
u

d
e

d
 a

m
p

le
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
Ta

sk
 1

0
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e

r 
in

p
u

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 P

la
n

.



,lders 
--

l!l_.Brfo'S 

PROJECT NAME: INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK PLAN 

DKS PROJECT #: A2473B-DOD 

Date: 3/211/2D24 

-
I 20 0 

" 0 
10 0 

◄O 0 

,. 0 
14 0 
26 0 
,. 0 
1• 0 

18 3 

22 0 
J2 0 

I 2ll 14 
26 • 

26 0 
2' 0 
34 0 
22 0 

14 • 

.. • 

0 • 

16 42 
10 3) 

,. :JO 
u u 

2 :u 
• u 

• 11 

2 10 

,0 6 
.. • 

I.I 0 

JO 11 

ID 4 
i'i 

rr,1,•1 I ,., , ... 

$3,190.00 so.oo $3,190.00 
$2,280,00 SO.OD $2

!
280,00 

19,700.00 $0.00 S9,700.00 
. ,_,' , .. ,, . ·-·

$5 050.00 $0.00 $5 050.00 
$2,l!MO.OO $0.00 s I a£1100Q 

$5 070.00 so,oa SS,O70.OO 
$3 040.00 JO;OO $3 040,00 
14,210'.GO .S0.,00 _ __ $4_.�0.00 
, ;11,1111111 :11,1, 

O,670.00 $758.00 
$4,650.00 $0.00 
S6 $00.0D $0.00 

1 , IJIJI .:· . ...-m 
, .. ,m.oa $3

1
270.00 

$5,170,00 $1.516.0Q_ 

$5,490.00 $0.00 
SS-"10.00 $0.00 
$6,710,00 Sll.00 
'4,360.00 $0.00 

__ ,,,.,, t:fll'iTiJ 

$2 990.00 $834.00 

SJ.310.00 S.920.DO 
$0,00 Sl 7$4,00 

. 1111.II ·-·

$3 040.00 SS 7<45.DO 
$1 860.00 $4,951.00 

$3,320.00 ,- .DO 
121190,00 si S90.oo 

1,,11-, I ,r_.,, ,K 

$630.00 U731.00 I S4�61..00 
$1130.00 S'.2,017.00 
U 630.00 U"39,DO 
"30.00 n.no.oo 

,y,11_1,.,' :,-,, 

$4,580.00 S816.OO 

11.220.00 Sl,362.00 
14:070.00 10,DO 

'IJ/f.ll :- -

ss 930.00 ,,, .... 00 

Attachment B: Schedule of Fees









County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Certain Professional Services Agreements 20230703/ah 

Attachment D: 2023 Insurance Requirements for 
Certain Professional Services Agreements 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. (Coverage requirement
may be waived if Contract scope of work specifies that performance shall be remote.)

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. (Provision may be waived if Contractor provides written declaration of the
following: (a) Contractor has no employees and agrees to obtain workers’ compensation
insurance and notify Inyo County if any employee is hired, (b) Contractor agrees to verify proof of
coverage for any subcontractor, and (c) Contractor agrees to hold Inyo County harmless and
defend Inyo County in the case of claims arising for failure to provide benefits.)

4. Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions): Insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 2,000,000 aggregate.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo 



County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Certain Professional Services Agreements 20230703/ah 

Attachment D: 2023 Insurance Requirements for 
Certain Professional Services Agreements 

County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the 
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called 
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 

Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  

Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  

Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of 
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $10,000 
unless approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the 
Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due 
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) 
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County 
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 

Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  

Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis: 
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning

of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years

after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form

with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase
“extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.



Attachment D: 2023 Insurance Requirements for 
Certain Professional Services Agreements 

Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and 
Endorsements pages are to be received and approved by Inyo County before work commences. 
However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified 
copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any 
time. Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature 
of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  

Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting 
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors.  

Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but 
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years 
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 

Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 

-end- 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Certain Professional Services Agreements 20230703/ah 



ICEVCINP Summary Scoring Worksheet

Total Rank Mike Russ Justine Phil Katie Daniel crosscheck

Energetics 1735 6 267.5 320 322.5 275 265 285 1735

C&S 1630 7 290 210 300 270 305 255 1630

ICF 1920 2 325 325 335 320 295 320 1920

ARUP 1767.5 4 287.5 325 310 285 255 305 1767.5

TRC 1785 3 295 360 295 300 265 270 1785

DKS 1985 1 345 270 360 320 340 350 1985

Energeia 1750 5 290 320 335 275 275 255 1750



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-381  

 

Jail Administration Remodel Project Change Order No. 3 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Michael Errante, Public Works Director Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the Public Works Director to sign Change Order No. 3 for $91,093.00 to Pagenkopp 
Construction, Inc. for additional scope-of-work on the Jail Administration Remodel Project. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On November 7th, 2023, the Board awarded a contract to Pagenkopp Construction, Inc. for $215,898.99 
for restoration work at the Inyo County Jail Facility in Independence, CA. Subsequently, Change Order 
#1 was approved for $19,281.00 and signed by Michael Errante, Public Works Director. Change Order 
#2 for $68,951.90 was subsequently approved. This will resulted in a contract value to date of 
$304,131.89. 
 
Original Contract          $215,898.99 
Change Order 1             $19,281.00 
Change Order 2             $68,951.90 
Change Order 3             $91,093.00 
Total Contract              $395,224.89 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund / Criminal Justice Funds Budget Unit 011501 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5640 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure (through contract completion)  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Following this recommended Change Order 3 for $91,093.00, the total cost for FY 23-24 will 
be $395,224.89 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to authorize the change order and the additional scope-of-work will not be 
completed. This is not recommended as there is remaining budget for this project, and taking on this 
additional scope of work will allow for the Sheriff Administration building to be nearly completely 
remodeled, as opposed to leaving work incomplete for future years. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Jail Admin Remodel Project/Pagenkopp Company Inc. Contract 
2. Jail Admin Remodel Change Order No. 1 
3. Jail Admin Remodel Change Order No. 2 
4. Jail Admin Remodel Change Order No. 3  
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 5/16/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/16/2024 
Greg Waters Approved - 5/16/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/16/2024 
Stephanie Rennie Approved - 5/23/2024 
Michael Errante Approved - 5/28/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 5/28/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/28/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/28/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, lhat at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7th day of November 2023 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

In the Rooms of tlte Boatd of Supewircrs

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to: A) Award the contract
for the Jail Administration Remodel to Pagenkopp company, lnc. of Big pine, cA as the
successful bidder; B) approve the construction contract between the County of lnyo and
Pagenkopp Company, lnc of Big Pine, CA in the amount of $215,898.99, and authorize the
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained; and C)
authorize the Public Works Director to execute all other project contract documents,
including contract change orders, to the extent permitted by Public Contract Code Section
20142 and other applicable laws. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 7h

Day of November,2023

NATHAN GREENBERG
CIerk of the Board ofSupervisors

Public Works-
Jail Administration
Remodel Project

'\s

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

cA0
Other PublicWorks
DATE: November 13,2023

By:



INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINAORRILL ' JEFF GRIFFITHS. SCOTT MARCELLIN . JENNIFER ROESER r MATT KtNGSLEy

NATE GREENBERG DARCY ELLIS
CouNtv a DMINISTRATIVE OFFICER AssT, CLERK oF THE B1ARD

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

November 7,2023 Reference lD:
2023-4283

Jail Administration Remodel Project
Public Works

ACTION REQUIRED

ITEM SUBMITTED BY
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer

ITEM PRESENTED BY
Michael Errante, Public Works Director

REGOMMENDED ACTION:
A) Award the contract for the Jail Administration Remodel to Pagenkopp Company, lnc. of Big pine, CA
as the successful bidder; B) approve the construction contract between the County of lnyo an-d
Pagenkopp Company, lnc of Big pine, CA in the amount of $215,g9g.99, and autirorize the Chairperson
to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained; and C) authorize the public Works
Director to execute all other project contract documents, including contract change orders, to the extent
permitted by Public contract code section 20142 and other applicable laws.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFIGATION:
Public Works contracted for extensive repairs due to the water damage at the JailAdministration
Building. lnyo County contracted with Belfor Property Restoration to investigate and remediate water
related damage to the building. This was the first phase of the project and ii now complete. This contract
award is for the second phase of this repair project, which is the reconstruction of the areas demolished
during the remediation phase.

lnyo County received two competitive bids on November 1,2023 to build new interior walls, including
doors, insulation, drywall and paint. The bid also includes carpet, countertops and exterior paint. BiJ
amounts are listed below.

1. Pagenkopp Company lnc. $215,898.99 (low bidder)
2. JTS Construction 9397,500.00

Staff recommends awarding the contract to Pagenkopp Company lnc., as they were the lowest
responsible bidder.

FISCAL IMPACT:

l''
on-General Fund / Criminal Justice Fundsnding Budget Unit 01 1 501

Budgeted? lYes Obiect Code 5640
Recurrence iture h contract comn on

Fiscal Year

P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93S26
(7601 878-0292



Future Fiscal Year lmpacts

Additional lnformation

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
It is recommended that your Board accept the successful low bid as submitted. We could go back out to
bid or decline to do the work, but this is not recommended as your Sheriffs administrativebffices at the
jail are partially demolished and non-habitable.

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tabulation Sheet
2. Pagenkopp Company lnc. Contract
3. Pagenkopp Bid

APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
John Vallejo
Breanne Nelums
Amy Shepherd
Michael Errante
Nate Greenberg

Created/lnitiated - 1 1 l1 12023
Approved - 111212023
Approved - 111212023
Approved - 111212023
Approved - 111212023
Approved - 111212023
Approved - 111212023
Final Approval - 1 11212023

P. O. Drawer N I 224 N. Edwards Street I tndependence, CA 93526
17601 878-0292



COUNW OF INYO BID TABULATION
Project Title: Jail Administration Remodel projeA

Bid Opening Date and Time: November 1st,2023 3:30 pM

Location : County Administration Center, I ndependence, CA

Opened By:

hesent 6r- fa/->..<; F

CSeu asK

k"ty

Total

s 1ql qao. oD

fierqtbl ,q

ADDENDA 1

4SI
J

BOND

J*t
eIrrC--

BIDDER NAME
1

2

3

:G^^ I"4 t vtC V-,e{fr



CONTRACT
BYAND BETWEEN

THE COUNTY OF INYO
and

Pagenkopp Company, lnc. CONTRACTOR

for the

JAIL ADMINISTMTION REMODEL PROJECT

THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY oF INYO to CoNTRACTOR on and
made and entered into effective, November 7 2023 , by and between the COUNTY
OF INYO, a political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as
"coUNTY"), and Pagenkopp Company, lnc. (hereinafter refened to as
"CONTRACTOR"), for the construction or removal of JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL

PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), which parties agree, for and in consideration
of the mutual promises, as follows:

1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at his/her own
expense, all labor, materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery, equipment,
transportation, permits, services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions and otherwise
shall perform all work necessary or appurtenant to construct the Project in accordance with the any
and all Contract Documents specified within section 4 of this Contract, within the Time for
Completion set forth, as well as in all other in the Contract Documents, for:

Title: JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

2. TIME OF COMPLETION. Project work shall begin within 15 calendar days after
receipt of the Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and
shall continue until all requested services are completed. Said services shallbe completed no later
than the Time of Completion as noted in the Project's Special Provisions or Scope of Work
Attachment. Procedures for any extension of time shall be complied with as noted in the Project's
Special Provisions or Scope of Work Attachment.

3. PAYMENT/CONSIDERATION. For the performance of all such work, COUNTY
shall pay to CONTRACTOR for said work the total amount ofi
Two Hundred Fifteen Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety Eight and 99/100 dollars ($ 898.99215
adjusted by such increases or decreases as authorizedin accordance with the Contract
Documents, and payable at such times and upon such conditions as otherwise set forth in the
Contract Documents.

4. ALLPROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN. CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that
shall include and consist of (collectively "the Contract Documents"):

The Bid Proposal Form
The Bid Bond
The Faithful Performance Bond

JAIL ADI\iIINISTRATION REIVIODEL

Construction Contract - No. 147
Page I of6

-/
J
{

this

Project

lL0822



{_
./
,/

The Labor and Materials Payment Bond
Insurance Specifi cations
All documents as described in Section S-1.02, o'Definitions," of the Standard
Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated May 2020
The Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated
May 2020
The Special Provisions concerning this Project including the Appendices and the
Plans
Scope of Work Attachment fnegotiated contracts only]
Any and all amendments or changes to any of the above-listed documents
including, without limitation, contract change orders, and any and all documents
incorporated by reference into any of the above-listed documents.

All Contract Documents are attached hereto

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. Contractor represents that he/she is qualified and
licensed to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract. County relies upon the
representations of Contractor regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and ability to
perform the services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract. Acceptance of work by
the County does not operate to release Contractor from any responsibility to perform work to
professional and/or trade standards. Contractor shall provide properly skilled professional and
technical personnel to perform all services under this Contract. Contractor shall perform all
services required by this Contract in a manner and according to the standards observed by a
competent practitioner of the profession. All work products of whatsoever nature delivered to the
County shall be prepared in a manner conforming to the standards of quality normally observed
by a person practicing in Contractor's profession and/or trade.

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Nothing contained herein or any document executed
in connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership or joint
venture relationship between County and Contractor, nor to allow County to exercise discretion or
control over the manner in which Contractor performs the work or services that are the subject
matter of this Contract; provided, however, the work or services to be provided by Contractor shall
be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the County's objectives in entering this Contract.

Contractor is an independent contractor, not an employee of County or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates. Contractor will not represent him/herself to be nor hold her/himself out
as an employee of County. Contractor acknowledges that s/he shall not have the right or
entitlement in or to any of the pension, retirement or other benefit programs now or hereafter
available to County's employees. The consideration set forth in Paragraph 3 shall be the sole
consideration due Contractor for the services rendered hereunder. It is understood that County will
not withhold any amounts for payment of taxes from the Contractor's compensation hereunder.
Any and all sums due under any applicable state, federal or municipal law or union or professional
andlor trade guild regulations shall be Contractor's sole responsibility. Contractor shall indemnify
and hold County harmless from any and all damages, claims and expenses arising out of or
resulting from any claims asserted by any third party, including but not limited to a taxing
authority, as a result of or in connection with payments due it from Contractor's compensation.

JAIL ADMINISTMTION REIVODEL

Construction Contract - No. 147
Page 2 of 6

V
V

{

Project

fi0822



7. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING. The parties recognize that a substantial
inducement to County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation, experience and
competence of Contractor. Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or obligations of the
Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the express consent of the County.
Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract
without the written authorization of the County. If County consents to such subcontract,
Contractor shall be fully responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor.
Nothing in this Contract shall create any contractual relationship between County and
subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the County to pay any monies due
to any such subcontractor, unless otherwise required by law.

8. INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and
its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and
expenses, including attorney fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein,
caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor,
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may
be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of
the County.

9. POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the
meaning of the Political Reform Act because Contractor:

a. Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control and direction of the
County or of any County official, other than normal Contract monitoring; and

b. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel IFPPC Reg. I S700(a)(2)].

10. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.
Performance Standards: Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession and/or

trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and regulations
that relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.

a. Safety Training:
i. Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as needed to assure work

will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a language" that is understandable to
employees receiving the training. The training shall in all respects be in compliance with
CAL OSHA; and

ii. Contractor working with employees shall maintain a written Injury and Illness
Prevention (llP) Program, a copy of which must be maintained at each worksite or at a
central worksite identified for the employees, if the Contractor has non-fixed worksites;
and

iii. Contractor using subcontractors with the approval of the County to perform the
work which is the subject of this Contract shall require each subcontractor working with
employees to comply with the requirements of this section.
b. Child. Famil), and Spousal Support reporting Obligations:

i. Contractor shall comply with the state and federal child, family and spousal
support reporting requirements and with all lawfully served wage and earnings assignment
orders or notices of assignment relating to child, family and spousal support obligations.

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REI\ilODEL

Construction Contract - No. 147
Page 3 of6

Project

r 10822



c. Nondiscrimination
i. Contractor shall not discriminate in employment practices or in the delivery of

services on the basis of membership in a protected class which includes any class
recognized by law and not limited to race, color, religion, sex (gender), sexual orientation,
marital status, national origin (lncluding language use restrictions), ancestry, disability
(mental and physical, including HIV and Aids), medical Conditions (cancer/genetic
characteristics), age (40 and above) and request for family care leave.

ii. Contractor represents that it is in compliance with federal and state laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment and agrees to stay in compliance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. sections 12701, et. seq.), Age
Discrimination in EmploymentAct of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title VII(42 U.S.C.
2000, et. seq.), the California Fair Employment Housing Act (California Government
Code sections 12900, et. seq.) and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto.

11. LICENSES. Contractor represents and warrants to County that it has all licenses,
permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required
of Contractor to practice its trade and/or profession. Contractor represents and warrants to County
that Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the
term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals which are legally required of
Contractor to practice its profession.

12. PREVAILING WAGE. Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code,
Contractor agrees to comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which this
Contract is subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by
the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the
Department publication entitled "General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the project
is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the
State Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in said publication. Such
rates of wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of
the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and are available to any interested party upon
request. Contractor agrees to comply with County and the Department of Industrial Relations
regulations in submitting the certified payroll.

13. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE. This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State
of California. The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of
California for the County of Inyo.

14. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or
communication that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing
and either served personally or sent prepaid, first class mail. Any such notice, demand, et cetera,
shall be addressed to the other party at the address set forth herein below. Either pafty may change
its address by notifying the other party of the change of address. Notice shall be deemed
communicated within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this section.

If to County: County of Inyo
Public Works Department
{ffn; Mike Errante, Director of Public Works

JAIL ADIVIINISTRATION REMODEL

Construction Contract - No. 147
Page 4 of6

Project

tt0822



168 N. Edwards
PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526

If to Contrasf6l; Pagenkopp Company, lnc

124 Mountain Road

Big Pine, CA 93513

15. AMENDMENTS. This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written
document executed by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by Inyo County
Counsel.

16. WAMR. No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy
hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder.

17. TERMINATION. This Contract may be tenninated for the reasons stated below:
a. Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities under

this Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the other
party or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract; or

b. By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding
ending or being materially decreased during the term of this Contract.

18. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for every provision.

19. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or
unenforceable, the remainder ofthe provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect
and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated.

20. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. It is
understood and agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by the
Inyo County Board of Supervisors upon Notice. In the event that the Board of Supervisors declines
to enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that there is, in fact, no binding
agreement, either written or oral, between the parties herein.

21, ATTACHMENTS. All attachments referred to are incorporated herein and made a
part of this Contract.

22. EXECUTION. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which
shall constitute one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties. ln
approving this Contract, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such
counterpart.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract, including the Contract Documents and all
other documents which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and
exclusive agreement between the County and Contractor. All prior written and oral
communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REIVIODEL

Construction Contract - No. 147
Page 5 of6

Project

I I 0822



super$eded in total by this Contract.
---o0o-*

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR have each caused this Contract to be
executed on its behalf by its duly authorized representative, effective as of the day and year first
above written.

qouNry CONTRACTOR

Pagenkopp Company, lnc.

By:

Jennifer Roeser

Title: Chairperson

Dated: 11t0v2023

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

By:

N

Title: Wnzr

Dated: 11 t0v2023

&"'2frbVilaabt/i/e
CountyAuditor

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

4aza* {"M-f
County Risk Manager

JAIL AOMINISTRATION REMODEL

Construction Contract ". No. 147
Page 6 of6

Project

I i0822



FOR THE

AGREEMENT BETWEEN TIIE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Pagenkopp Company, lnc.

JAIL ADMIN ISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

INSURANCE PROVISIONS



Attachment Cz 2O23 Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts
Including Light Construction not covered under Civil Code 2783 or 2782.5

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees,

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as

L. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an
"occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence, lf a

general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location (lSO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit.

1'. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

2. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. (Not required if consultant provided written verification it has no employees.)

3. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): lnsurance appropriate to the Contractor's
profession, with limit no less than 52,000,000 per occurrence or claim, S2,OOO,OOO aggregate,

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above,
lnyo County requires and shall be entitled tothe broadercoverage and/or the higher limits maintained
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of
insurance and coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Additional lnsured Stotus: lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the
form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if
a later edition is used),

Primory Coveroge: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 0104 13 as respects lnyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by lnyo
County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Umbrello or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for MOST LIGHT CONSTRUCTION 2O230403/ah



Attachme nt Ct 2023 Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts
Including Light Construction not covered under Civil Code 2783 or Z7B2.S

Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required,
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-lnsured Retentions
(SlRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true
"following form" or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional
lnsureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.

Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to lnyo County.

Woiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo County has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self'lnsured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by lnyo County. lnyo
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the
retention, The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention
may be satisfied by eitherthe named insured or lnyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SlR) or deductible that exceeds 525,000
unless approved in writing by lnyo County. Any and all deductibles and SlRs shall be the sole
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the
lndemnified Additional lnsured Parties. lnyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due
Contractor to fund the SlR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SlR)
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible, lnyo County
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification.

Acceptability of lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the
state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Claims Made Policies: lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1" The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning

of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years
after completion of the contract of work.

3' lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form
with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase
"extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification ol Coverage: Contractor shall furnlsh lnyo County with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and

county of lnyo lnsurance standards for Mosr LTGHT CONSTRUcIoN 20230403/ah



Attachment C: 2023 Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts
Including Light Construction not covered under Civil Code 2783 or 2282.5

Endorsements pages are to be received and approved by lnyo County before work commences.
However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the
Contractor's obligation to provide them. lnyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified
copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any
time. lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature
of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Subcontroctors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting
allthe requirements stated herein, and Contractor shallensure that lnyo County is an additionalinsured
on insurance required from subcontractors.

Durdtion of Coverage; CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

Special Risks or Circumstances: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circu mstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance standards for Mosr LIGHT coNsrRUcIoN 20230403/ah



CONTRACT
BYAND BETWEEN

THE COUNTY OF INYOa
I AGv* Grv'p*^r

and

,t lGur CONTRACTOR

for the

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL

THIS CONTRACT is
made and entered into effective,

PROJECT

the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and
20_U..-by and between the COUNTY
Califomia, (hereinafter referred to as

(hereinafter referred to as

removal of JAIL ADMINIfiTRATION REMODEL

OF INI"YO, a pol
"COUNTYU), and
"CONTRACTOR"), for

the State ofsubd

PROJACT (hcreinafter referred to
of the mutual promises, as follows:

as "PROJECT"), which parties agrce, for and in consideration

1. SERVICES TO BE PERF'ORMED. CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at his/her own
expense, all labor, materials, methods, processes, irnplements, tools, machinery equipment,
transportation, permits, sgrvices, utilities, and all other items, and related functions and otherwise
shall perform all work necessary or appurtenant to construct the Project in accordance with the any
and all Contract Documents specified within section 4 of this Contract, within the Time for
completion set forth, as well as in all other in the contract Documents, for:

fi[ls; JAIL ADMlNtsTMrtoN REMopEt pROJECT

2. TIME Of'COMPLETION. Project work shall begin within 15 _ calendar days after
recoipt of the Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identifred in the NTP) and
shall continue until all requested services are completed. Said services shall be completed no later
than the Time of Completion as noted in the koject's Special Provisions or Scope of Work
Attachment. Procedures fbr any extension of time shall be complied with as noted in the Project's
Special Provisions or Scope of Work Attachment.

3. PAYMENT/CONSIDERATION. For the performance of all such work, COUNTY
shall to said of:
trc
adjusted by lncreases or as with the
Documsnts, and payable at such times and upon such conditions as otherwise set fonh in the
Contract Docurnents.

ALL PROWSIONS SET X'ORTH HEREIN. CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that
shall include and consist of (collectively'the Contract Documents"):

The Bid Proposal Form
The Bid Bond
The Faithful Performance Bond

JAIL ADMINlSTRATION REMOOEL

Construction Contract - No. 147
Prge I of6

t

4.
this

Project

110822



BID PROPOSAL T'ORM

TO: COUNTY OF INYO
Attn.: Inyo County Clerk of Board of Supervisors
224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N
Independence, Californi a 93 526
(Herein called the "County")

FROM: Paoenknnn moanv lnc
Big Pine, CA

FOR:

(Herein called "Bidder")

JAIL ADN{INISTRATION RtrMODEL PROJECT
(Herein called "Project")

In submitting this Bid, Bidder understande and agrees that:

1. BID DEADLINE. Bids must be received no later than 3:30 P.M. on November lst, 2023 by
the Inyo County Assistant Board Clerk, 224 North Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N),
Independenceo CA 93526, at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud. No oral,
telegraphic, telephonic or fax proposals or modifications will bc accepted.

2. PROJECT BID AMOItftT:.

JATL ADMINTSTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Pago I

Item Ouantitv Untt Unit Pricc Total
Mobilization I LS
Demolition l LS
Repair Exterior Framing I LS c\
Construct 9 ft walls 60 LF * x<r
Relocate Electrical 1 LS A I il
R 2l Insulation ExteriorWalls 500 SF ITAttCtl {utvr 1 ,
Drywall Hang, Tape, andTexture I LS
Prime and Paint (interior walls) I LS
Supply and Install 3'x7'SC Doors 2 EA
Commercial Carpet 4600 SF
Cove Base 1800 LF
Exterior Wall Coatins I LS
F'abricate and Install oaraoet cao r000 LF'
Replace door bottoms, door sweEps,
and thresholds

2 EA

Bid Total In Numbers $

Bid Total In Words



BII} PROPOSAL FORM
Updrtsd Octohr tS6, t0tt by Addcndum #l

TO: COUNTY OF INYO
Attn.: Inyo County Clerk of Board of Supervisors
224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N
Independence, Californ ia 93526
(Herein called the "County")

FROM: Pacrenkopp Companv fnc
Biq Pine cA 93513

(Herein called "Bidder")

FOR: JAILADMINISTRATION REMODELPROJECT
(Herein called "Project")

In submitting this Bid, Bidder understiands and agrees that:

l. BID DEADLINE. Bids must be reeeived no later than 3:30 P.M. on Novenrbcr letr 202l by
the Inyo CountyAssistant Board Clerk, 224 North Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N),
Independonce, CA 93526, at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud. No oral,
telegraphic, telephonic or fax proposals or modifications will be accepted.

2. PROJEQT BIDAMOLJNT:

Item Ouantitv Unit Unit Price Total
Mobilization -trave1, bond I LS !-t ,642
Demolition I LS 7293.75
Repair Exterior Framing I LS 2834.75
Construct 9 ft walls 30 LF 3011.8s

Ord€r) N/A I.l/A N/A NIA
R 2l Insulation Exterior Walls s00 SF 1,236.25
Drvwall Tape, and Texture I LS 30 .24s . s0
Prime and Paint (intsrior walls) I LS 36, 062.25

t LS L4, 662 .33
Instetl S'x?'$C Door, Srrppb tld*;
.fume

I EA
1. 5s2 .00

Commercial Carpet squares 2'x2 4300 SF 54, 900
Cove Base 1800 LF 2.7'7 5 .9A
Exterior Wall Coatine I LS 3r, 42L .56
Fabricate and Install Darapet cap 1000 LF Ll.212. . sO
Fabricate and Install eyebrows over
doors

2 EA
339.25

Replace door bottoms, door sweeps,
and thresholds

2 EA
r016.60

Page I of2



BID PROPOSAL FORM
Updrted Oaehnr NIftrtrIt by AddrnAum #l

Furnieh rnd lngtsll eolld surfacs
cquntfftops ftlrck color)

50 SF
5692.50

Bid Total In Numbers $ zrs , 898.99
Bid Total In Words Two hundred fifleen thousand,eight hundred nlnety-elght and nineby-nine cents

lrrrs f.rid wos rsceived on
NnrraSE/L, Zo 4h O 31t6 lnnAttest: Nothon OrednOergl--f-
Admlntshotive Offlcer ond Cterk ofthe Boord, lnyo County, CA.

By: Assistonl

Page2 of2



CfrASUREW 1{0G331{053
Fax 1605-335-0357
www.cna$uretv.com

E mai l: .uwsorviceq@e!flguqly.com
POSox5077 giourFelb SD 57i17-5077

DATE: January 24,2023 AGENT CODE: 04 29671
TO Advantage Business

Insurance Services
27132 paseo Espada, StE.424

Fax: 714-617-1732

San Juan cA 92675
ATTENTION: NUMBEROFPAGES: I
FROM Underwri
RE: File #20536970X - Theresa

$0.00 - Underuiriting File
Pagenkopp dba Pagerikopp Company

500K Single / 500K Aggregate
Code:601 - Western

We received the information you submitted electronically. Thank you for thinking of CNA Surety.

Based on the information submitted, we are pleased to approve the account for our FAST-Track
pro$am. We will support singlejobs to $500,000, and a bonded aggregate of$500,000. This line is
subject to acceptable credit, contracts and bond forms, For final requests that require a Performance
and Payment bond, we will charge a flat rate of $30 per $1,000.

Thank you for placing this business with CNA Surety. If you have any questions, please contact our
office.

Consider making your payment through CNA Surety ePay, pay for your bond/policy
premium online using your own credit/debit card or ACH at youiconvenience 24 hours a day. Simply
go to: onlinepay.cnasurety.com and follow the easy-to-use prompts. You can pay your bill in minutes,
saving you time and money.

IMPORTAT\T NOTICE
The information contained in this communication may contain confidential and/or privileged information an6 is intended for the sole use
ofthe intended recipient. Ifyou are not the intended recipienl, you are hereby notihed ttrat any unauthorized use, disclosurq distribution
orco-py{8 of this oommunication is shictly prohibited and that you will be held responsible fo. uny such unau$rorized activity, including
liability Pt yv resulting damages. As appropriatg such inciden(s) may also be reported to law eiforcernent. If you receiv"i ihis
communication in error, please reply to the sender and destroy or delete this communication including any attashments. Thank you.



Please see Special Provisions Section for details on what this lump sum must include.
No provisiorr in this section is intended or shall be construed to alter the terms and conditions
specified in the Conhact Documents for payment of any amounts in the event the Project
contract is awarded to Bidderpursuant to this Bid.

3. INCLUSION OFALL COSTS. This Bid insludes all costs for all labor, materials, tools,
taxes, insurance, transportation, and o&er related supplies and services to perform all services
and provide all materials as required by, and in ascordance with, the Contract Documents for the
Project.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The Contract Documents shall constitute the Contract
becween the parties, which will come into full force and effect upon acceptailce, approvalo and
execution by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors. The Contract Documents are
complementary and are incorporated herein by reference and madc aparthereof with like force
and effect as if all of said documents were set forth in full herein. The Contract Documents
include all documents defined as "Contract Documents" in the Standard Specifications ofthe
Inyo County Public Works Department, dated May 202A.

5. ACCEPTANCE. County reserye$ the right to reject any and all Bids, or part of any Bid, to
postpone the scheduled Bid deadline date(s), to make an award in its own best interest, and to
waive any inegularities or tecbnicalities that do not significantly affect or alter the substanse of
an otherwise responsible Bid and that would not affect a Bidder's ability to perform the work
adequately as specified. However, this Bid shall remain open and shall not be withdrawn for a
period of sixty (60) calendar days after the date designated in the Notice Inviting Bids for
publicly opening this Bid, If Bidder receives written notice of the award of the Project Contract
to Bidder on or before the sixtieth day, Bidder shall execute the Contract and deliver to County
the executed Contract and all of the bonds, certificates and/or endorsements of inswance
cover&ge, and other required documents no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date on
which Bidder receives such notice.

This solicitation in no way obligates County to award a Bid Contract described hereirq nor will
County assume any liability for the costs incured in the preparation and transmittal of Bids in
response to this solicitation. County reseryes the right to not accept any Bid, to reject any or all
Bids, to reject any part of any Bid proposal, to negotiate and modif any Bid, and to waive any
defects or irregularities in any Bid at County's sole discretion. Furthermore, County shall have

the sole discretion to awatd a Bid Contract as it may deem appropriate to best serve the interests
of County. In this regiud, County may consider demonstrated quality of work, responsiveness,
comparable experience, professional qualifications, references, and proposed fees. Awards will
not be based on cost alone. County does not guarantee a minimum or maximum dollar value for
any Contract(s) resulting from this solicitation.

lf the Conhact Documents require or pcrmit this Bid to include two or more Alternates, County
resewes the right to award the Contract for that Altemate which County, in ite sole discretion,
determines at the time of award to be in County's best interest.

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page2



6. TIME OF COMPLETION. The Bidder further specifically agrees to complete all the work
no later than the Time for Completion specified in the Contract Special Provisions.

7. ADDENDA. The Bidder acknowledges receipt ofthe followingAddenda arrd has provided for
all Addenda changes in this 

"to' ooo",r.um #1 1o-2s-23

(Fill in Addendum numbers and dates Addenda have been received.
If none have been received, enter "NONE".)

WARNING: IF AN ADDENDUM OR ADDENDA HAVE BEEN ISSUED BY T}IE
COTINTYAND NOT NOTED ABOVE AS BEING RECEIVED BY THE BIDDER, THIS
PROPOSAL MAY BE REJECTED.

8. BIDDER'S BUSINESS INFORMATION. Bidder provides the following information
concerning its business:

Biddels Name: Pagenkopp company lnc

Address: 124 Mountain Rcl

Fig Pine Zip Code 93513
(The above address will be used to send notices or requests for additional information.)

Telephone: ( zoo ) A?N-RRRq

Federal Identification No.

Contractor's License No.: 941857 State: CA

Classification: B Expiration Date: 1-31-24

Type ofBusiness (check one):

lndividual ( ), Partnership ( ), Joint Venture ( )

Corporation (x), Other (Specifu): ()

Owners, Officers, Partners, or Other Authorized Representatives:

IMPORTA|{T NOTICE: If bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name
of corporation above and list below, names of the president, secretary, treasurer, and chief
executive officer/manager thereof; if a partnership, joint venture, or other business entity, state
true name of firm above and list below, names of all partners, joint venturers, or fbr other
entities, parties having authority to act on behalf of the entity, such as offrcers, owners, directors;

JAIL ADMINISTRATION RIMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

page 3



if bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first, middle, and last names in full
above and write "N/A" below.

9. PROPOSAL GUARANTEE. As security for the Bid, this Bid includes one of the following
proposal guarantee instruments (the "Proposal Guarantee"), in the amount required by this
section, as checked:

(a) -.** Bid Bond ftom a corporate surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of
California;or

O) X Cashier's Check or Certified Check, made payable to the County of Inyo, attached
to the form entitled CashieCs or Certified Check; or

(c)- Cash, in legal tender of the United States ofAmerica" enclosed in a separate
envelope marked "Cash Proposal Guarantee,"

The Proposal Guarantee is in the amount of Ten Percent (10%) of the total amount of the Bid. If
the Contract Documents require or permit this Bid to inolude two or moreAlternates, the amount
of the Proposal Guarantoe must not be less than Ten Percent OA%) of the amount of the bid total
submitted for the alternate having the highest total bid amount. Only one form of Proposal
Guarantee may be submitted with each Bid.

Bidder hereby agrees that County shall be entitled to payment by forfeiture of the Proposal
Guarantee if County awards the Project Contract to Bidder, but Bidder fails or refuses to execute
the Contract and/or furnish all of the bonds, certificates and/or endorsements of insurance
coverage, and other required documents no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date on
which Bidder receives notice of the award from County.

l0' BID PROTEST. In the event a dispute arises concerning the bid process prior to the award of the
contract, the parly wishing resolution of the dispute shall submit an appeal request in writing to the
County Director of Purchasing. Bidder may appeal the recommended award or denial of award,
provided the following stipulations are met:

Only a bidder who has actually submitted a Bid Proposal is eligible to submit an appeal
request/bid protest against another bidder. Subcontractors are not eligible to subrnit bid
protests. A bidder may not rely on the bid protest submitted by another bidder, but must timely
pursue its own protest-

Appeal must be in writing. The appeal must contain a complete statement of the basis for the
protest and all supporting documentation. Materials submitted after the Bid Protest Deadline

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL I'ROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 4

7



3

will not be considered. The protest must refer to the specific portion or portions of the Conhact
Documents upon which the protest is based. The protest must include the name, address and
telephone number of the person representing the protesting bidder if different from the
protesting bidder.

A cgpy of the protest and all supporting documents must also be transmitted by fax or by e-
mail, by or before the Bid Protest Deadline, to the protested bidder and any other bidder who
has a reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.

Must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the recommended award or
denial of award letters.

An appeal of a denial of award can only be brought on the following grounds:

a. Failure to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements specified in the Bid
Package or any addenda or amendments.

b. There has been a violation of conflict of interest as provided by Califomia Government
Code Section 87100 et seq.

c. A violation of State or Federal law.

Appeals will not be accepted for any other reasons than those stated above. All appeals must
be sent to:

4.

5

6.

Nate Greenberg, Director
County of lnyo
Purchasing Department
224N. Edwards St,
Independence, CA 93526

County's Purchasing Director shall make a decision concerning the appeal, and noti$ the Proposer
making the appeal, within a reasonable timeframe prior to the tentativeiy scheduted date for awarding
the contract. The docision of County's Pwchasing Director shall be deemed final.

11. ADDTTIONAL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS. Bidder agrees that, in addition to the
Proposal Guarantee, Bidder is required to submitn as a part of this Bid, the following forms
properly complekd, and signed as required, all of which accompany this Bid Proposal Form and
are incorporated herein by this reference:

(l) Designation of Subcontractors (Public Contract Code section 4100 et seq.)
(2) Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity (Government Code section 12900

et seq., sections 11135-11139.i)
(3) confractor's Labor code certification (Labor code section 3700)
(4) Contractor and $ubcontractorDept. of Indusmial Relations (DIR) Registration (Labor Code

section 1725.5)
(5) Non-CollusionAffidavit (Public Contract Code Secrion 7106)
(6) Public Conffact Code Section 10162 Questionnaire
(7) Public Contract Code Statement (Section 10232)

JAIL ADMINISTRATION R.EMODEL PROJECT
Bid ProRosal Fonns



(8) small Business Enterprise commitmsnt (construction contracts)
(9) Small Business Enterprise Final Report of Utilization of Small Business Enterprise

12. DEFINITIONS. The definition and meaning of the words used in this Bid Proposal Form
are the same as set forth in Section 1070, trAbbrevlations, Symbots rnd Deffnltlone," of the
Standard Specifioafions of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated May 2A20.

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY DECLARES, UNDER PENAITY OF PERIURY
ACCORDING TO THE LAWS OF'THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, THAT THE
STATEMENTS, DESTGNATTONS, CERTIFICATIONS, AN D REPRESENTATI ONS MADE IN
THIS BID PROPOSAL, INCLUDING ALL ATTACHMENTS, ARE TRUE AND CORRECT
AND HE OR SHE IS THE TNDryIDUAL, MANACING PARTNER, CORPORATE OFFICER,
OR OTIIER REPRESENIATTVE, DULY AUTHOR]ZED BY LAW TO MAKE THIS BID ON
BEHALF OF'BIDDE& AND BY SIGNING BELOW MAKES THIS BID ON BEHALF OI.'
BIDDER ACCORDING TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH OR
INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN.

o (Date)

Darrin Pagenkopp Owner

)

(Printed Name) (Printed Title)

JAIL ADMINISTRATTON REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

page 6



INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

BID BOND
(BrD PROPOSAL GUARANTEE)

(Not required if a certified or cashier's check or a cash deposit accompanies the bid as a proposal
guarantee)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That we, see attached

as Principal, and
(Name ofBidder)

(Name of Corporate Surety)

as Corporate Surety admitted to issue such bonds in
bound unto the County of [nyo, State of California,

the State of California, &re held and firmly
in the sum of

3,lilil,f'#ffiiTfiff*
and severally, firmly by these presents.

The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that whereas the above bounded principal is
about to submit to the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo a bid for the construcfion of
the J{LADMINISTRATION REMODELPROJECT , in compliance with the Contract
therefor:

Now if the bid of the Principal shall be accepted and the Confact awarded to the Principal by
said Board of Supervisors, and if the Principat shall fail or neglect to enter into the Contract
therefor in accordance with the terms of the Principal's bid and the terms set forth in the Bid
Paokage, or to fumish the required Faithful Performance and Labor and Materials payment
Bonds, Certificates of insurance, and other required documents, to the satisfaction ofthe Board
of Supervisors of said County, no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the Principal has
received notice from the County that the Conhact has been awarded to the Principal, ihen the
sum guaranteed by this Bond is forfeited to the County of lnyo.

It is expressly agreed and understood that any errofs, clerical, mathematical, or othenvise, in the
bid shall not be or constitute a defense to a forfeiture of this Bond.

JAIL ADMIMSTRATTON REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

PageT



WITNESS our hands and seals this _ _ day of 20 A.D.

Principal

(sEAL) By:
(Title ofAuthorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be sent)

Surety

(sEAL) By:
(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Noticss to be sent)

NOTE:

THE SIGNATURES OF TIIE PRINCIPAL (BIDDER) AND THE SURETY MUST EACH
BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTI{ER OFFICER
AUTHORIZED UNDf,R CALIFORNIA LAIV) AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
MUST BE ATTACIIEIT TO THIS BOND. The Bid Bond must be executed on this form by a
corporate swety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California. No substitutions will be
accepted. If an attomey-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged statement from the surety
appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds in suoh amounts on behalf
of the surety, must ilccompany the Bid Bond.

ADDRESS OF COI]NTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT:

County of Inyo (Attn,: Public Works Director)
224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N
Independence, Californla 93526

JAIL ADMIMSTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 8



t

JAIL AI}MIMSTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

CASHIERTS OR CERTIFIED CHECK
(BrI) PROPOSAL GUARANTEE)

(Not required if Bid Bond accompanies the bid as aproposal guarantee)

A cashier's or certified check in the amount required as a proposal guarantee for the Bid and
made payable to the County of Inyo is attached below:

ATTACH CIIECK TTERE

Bidder (print name): Darrin Pagenkopp

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 9

I

II



JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

DESIGNATION OF' SUBCONTRACTORS

In compliance with the provisions of thc Subletting nnd Subcontracting Falr PracticesAct
(Section 4100 et. seq. of the Public Contract Code of the State of California), the undersigned
bidder has set forth below the full name, and the location of the place of business of each
Subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the Prime Contractor in or
about the construction of the work or improvement, or a Subcontractor licensed by the State of
Califomia who, under subcontract to the Prime Conhactor, specifically fabricates and installs a
portion of the work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the Plans and
Specifications to which the attached bid is responsive, and the portion of the work which will be
done by each Subconhactor for each subcontract in excess ofone-halfofone percent ofthe
Prime Contractor's total bid, or $10,000.00, whichever is greater.

The Bidder understands that if he fails to speciff a Subcontractor for any portion of the work to
be performed under the Contract in excess of one-half of one percent of his bid, or $10,000.00,
whichever is greater, he shall be deemed to have agreed to perlorm such portion himself and that
he shall not be permitted to sublet or subcontract that portion of the work except in cases of
public emergency or necessity, and then only after a finding, produced to writing as a public
record of the Awarding Authority, setting forth the facts constituting tho emergency or necessity.
lf no Subconfractors &re to be employed on the project, enter the word'rnone".

Ou*r'
Signatureornul@ (Title)

PT
(Date)

JAIL ADMINTSTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal F'orms

Page l0

I.TEM
NO.

DESCRTPTTON
OFWOR.K

v"oF
't'oTAr

CONTRACT

SUBCONTRACTOR'S
LICENSE TYPE, NUIITBE&

SXPIRATIONDATE

NAME,AI}DRESS,
PIIONENUMBER

Cmvet xb c* Li( +r
7J-4tto

ffto -Vut't^ CirLle
30a.ks. 11V

(Printed Name)



CERTIFICATION REGARDIN G EQUAL EMPLOYMEN T OPPORTU NITY
(Government Code Section f 2900 et seq., Sections Ilt35-t1t39,7)

JAIL ADMIMSTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

During the performance of this Conhact, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall not
unlawfully deny the Contract's benefits to any person, nor shall any person be unlawfully
subjected to discrimination under the contract and its performance on the basis of religion, color,
ethnic. group identification, sex, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor and its
subcontractors shall not discriminate unlawfully against any employec or applicant for
employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry physical disability,
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. The Contrastor shall insure that
the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free from such
discrimination.

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and HousingAct
(Government Code, Section 12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated therzunder
(Crlifornia Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 72S5.0 et seq.), and the Provisions of
Article 9.5, ChaBter I, Part 1, Division 3, fitle 2 of the Government Code (Government
Code, Sections llf 35-11139.7).

Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to
labor organizalions with which they have a collective bargaining ot other agreement.

The Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in
all subcontracts to perform work under the contract.

0*N€a-
(Name and fitle of Signer)

il, lzt
Signature Date'

Company Name

Business Address L
R I 7-

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page I I

I

I



CONTRACTOR'S LABOR CODE CERTIF'ICATION
(Labor Code Section 3700 ct seq.)

JAIL ADMINISTRIITION REMODEL PROJECT

I am aware of the provisions of Seqtion 3700 and following of the Labor Code which requires
every employer to be insured against tiability for worksrs'compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions
before commencing the performance of the work ofthis contract.

,Tor,rln- 44eoLp O*n*",

I

($me andfltte of Signer)

nh lzz
drtet

rrL

JAIL ADMTNISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 12

cCompany Name

Businese Address /
i ,A<



CONTRACTOR Ah[D SUBCONTRACTOR REGISTRATION
with

CA Department of Industrlal Relations (DIR)
(cA LABOR CODE SECTION U25.s)

Bidderhereby cfiifies that they, and all subcontractors listed on the submitted Bid Form
documents, are registered with the CA Department of Indushial Relations pursuant to
requirements of CA Labor Code Section 1725.5 and will comply with all requirements as noted
in the aforementioned CA Labor Code Section.

a e-* t L3.
Signed Natlf

t rr)4-

CA DIR

(l

Printed

,-L8---" \t'{1"

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Pagc 13



The undersigned declares:

I amthe Ct s*r

NON.COLLU $ ON AFFIDAVIT
(Public Contract Code Section 7106)

(Code of Civil Procedure Section 2015.5)

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

of
the party making the foregoing bid. The bid is not 1n of, or of, any
undisclosed person, partnership, company, organization, or bid is
genuine and not collusive or sham. The bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited
any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid. The bidder has not directly or indirectly colluded,
conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or to refrain
frorn bidding. The bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement,
communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder,
or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder. All
statements contained in the bid are ffue. The bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his
or her bid price or any breakdown thereo{, or the contents thereo{ or divulged information or
data relative thereto, to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid
depository or to any member or agent thereo{ to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not
paid, and will not pay, any peftion or entity for such purpose. Any person executing this
declaration on behalf of a bidder that is a corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability
company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents that he or she has
full power to executeo and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the bidder.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that the foregoing is
true and correct and that this declaration is

L9 ?>o,.

,trE
C-rvat

on

Date

(State)

tr a

) U

and Title of

P

Signature

Company Name

Business Address

JAIL ADMINISTRATION RNMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposat Forms

Page 14



PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10162 QUESTTONNATRE

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REilIOI}EL PROJECT

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10162, the Bidder shall complete, under
penalty of perjury the following questionnaire:

Has the Bidder, any offtcer of the Bidder or any employee of the Bidder who has a proprietary
interest in the Bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on,
or completing a federal, state, or local govenunent project because of a violation of law or a
sat'ety regulation:

No

If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space.

By bidder's signature on the Bid Proposal Form, Bidder certifies, underpenalty of perjury under
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing statements in accordance with Public
Contract Code Section 10162 are true and conect.

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page t5

Yes



PUBLTC CONTRACT CODE STATEMENT (SECTTON 10232)

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10232, the Contractor hereby states under
penalty of perjury, that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a
federal court ha.s been issued against the Contractor within the immediately preceding two year
petiod because of the Conttactods failure to comply with an order of a federal court which orders
the Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board.

By Biddels siguature on the Bid Proposal Form, Bidder certifies, underpenalty of perjury under
the laws of the Stste of California, that the foregoing statements in accordance with Public
Contract Code Section 10232 are true and correct.

&N vbPP' h*Auur
(Name nnd Title of Signer)

tr L)
Signature

Company Name

Buslness Address rA*

t1( ol"

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 16



LOCAL BUSINESS PREFERENCES
II\IYO COUNTY ORIIINANCE NO. 1258

JAIL AI'MIMSTRATION NEMODEL PROJECT

Local Business Preference Qnyo County Ordinance No. 1258 is by reference only. Please corttact Inyo

County Public Works for further information.

JAIL ADMIMSTRATTON REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page l7



SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE COMMITMENT
(C0NSTRUCTTON CONTRACTS)

JAIL ADMIMSTRATION REMODBL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page l8

NOTE: PLOASE REFER TO INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDENEXT PAGE OT THIS F'ORM

Depattrnmt: Invo Countv Public Workr Deoqrtoegt- _ LOCATION: Indcoendence. CA

PROJECT DI]SCRIPTION JN II. ADMINISTRATION R I?M()DFI PROJEL'T

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT:

OPENING DATE:

BIDDER'S COMPANY

tlA tvtD:

BID ITEM NO. ITEM OF WORK AND DESCRIPTION
OR SERVICES TO BE

SUBCOi.ITRACTED OR MATERIALS
'TO BE PROVIDED

LICSNSE IM'O./CERT.
No. oILOCALAND
SMALLBUSINESS
ENTERPRISEAND

EXPIRATION
DATE

NAMEAND CONTACT
INFORMATION FOR LOCAL

AND SMALT,IIUSINESS
EN'TERPRISE

(Must be certified on the dale bid$
are oflened)

DOLLARAMOI]N]
I.OCALAND SMALL

BUSINESS
ENTERPRISE

ya**.,{t ( dtd},tul 0g ,"11v.11
v't .dl ,

For Inyo County to Complete:

7.p-)1Jt28.Pmject Number:

Finoncing Typc:

CootractAward Date:

Chcckcd by:

Print Nnme Signanrro Date

TotalClaimed
Particlprtion

r-l

$
qq

.l?-
%

l/.*-*.
Signature ofBidder

h I (to qu-nns I
Tel. No.

t Ar,errr
P€rcon to Contact {Plenec Type or Print)

Smsll Euglncss SntcrpriEc (Rov 5/l 0)



INsrRUcrIoNs- Small Business Enterprise Commitment lcor.rstnucrroNcoNTRAcrs)
(0s/10)

ALL BIDDERS:

PLEASE NOTE: It is the bidder's responribility to verlfy that the Small Business Enterprlse (SBE)
subcontractors are certilied by the proper certiSing authorities, and submit evidence of thrt
certification rvlth the bid. If a SBE prlme contractor ls not certilicd on the date of tho bld opening,
the SBE prime contractor will not quallfy for the contracting preference. If the SBE $ubcontractor
or subcontractors flre not certilied on the date of bid openingo that portion of that firm's
participatlon will not count toward the minimum ten percent of the monetary value of the work
needed to quallfy for the contracting preference.

The form requires specific information regarding the construclion conkact: Total ConbactAmount, Bid
Opening Date, and Bidder's Name.

lndicate the appropriate bid item number (or numbers); Item of Work and description or services to be
subcontracted or materials to be provided by the SBE; thc SBE's business license information/expiration
date, certification number and its expiration date; the SBE's contact information, including company and
contact name, address, and telephonc number; and the dollar amount expected to be paid to the SBE.

IMPORTANT: Identiff all SBE firms participating in the project regardless of tier, including the prime
contractor, if an SBE. Names of the First Tier SBE Subeontactorc and their respective item(s) of work
listed should be consistent, where applicable, with the names and items of work iu the "List of
Subcontractors" submitted with your bid. Provide coples of the SBEs'guotes, and lf npplicable, I copy
ofjoint venture agreernents pursuant to the Subcontractors Listing Law and the Special Provisions.

There is a column forthe total SBE dollar amount. Enter the Tbtal Claimed SBE Participation dollars and
percentage amount of items of work submitted with your bid pursuant to the special provisions. (If 100%
of item is not to be performed or fumished by the SBE, describe exact portion of time to be performed or
furnished by the SBE.)

This form must be.submitted with thg bid if the bidder is attempting to qualify for the SBE contracting
preference. If the bidder is not attempting to quali$ for the SBE contracting preference the form does not
need to be submitted.

JAIL ADMINISTRATION REMODEL PROJECT
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 19



ADDENDUM NO. 1

TO THE SPECIF'ICATIONS FOR

Jail Administration Remodel Project

October 25th,2023

This addendum is being issued to notifr bidders that the following changes have been made
to the Project bid documents:

1. Demolition
a, Stub wall in Assistant SherifFs Room will still be removed.
b. Delete proposed 2 Yz" pony wall on top of countertop at Records and demo

cabinet and countertop below. This area will get a3 Yz" steel stud watl with
drywall.

c. Surface communications conduit in Multi-Purpose Room will be demo'ed after
IT removes the cabling.

2. Framins
a. Wall and door addition off Hallway 2 in Public Information Oflicers Roorn

have been omitted.
b. Add full height (9') 3 5/8" light gauge wall to area where cabinet will now be

demo'd in Records.
c. Wire brush and prime exterior metal studs where there is visible rust.
d. Caulk daylight at bottom of expansion joint at prior to insulating exterior walls.
e. Proposed wall between Filing Room and Assistant SherifPs Office has been

removed from scope.
3, Doors. Frames. and Hardware

a. All new doors and hardware have been removed from scope.
b. Only one new knock-down frame is required to pair with the repurposed door

from the Records Room being reinstalled between the Sheriffs Office and the
Assistant SherifPs Office.

c. Existing door removed in between Civil Officer and Records will be reinstalled
between Sheriffs and Assistant Sheriffs Office in a new Timely (or equal)
frame

4. Electtical
a. All electrical work will be by Change Order
b. The ceiling light fixture between the Filing Room and the Assistant Sheriffs

Offioe will not need to be rotated or changed out to 2'x2' light fixtures because
the proposed wall adjacent has been omitted.



5. Pshti[g
a. Paint/Repaint all doors and frames located within the project area on the plan

sheet
b. Paint mail organizer in Records Office black.

6.
a. Add Sheet Metal Eyebrow over two exterior doors using the same Kynar 500

metal used for the parapet cap.
7. Wscellaneogs

a. Add plastic comer protectors at 8) interior locations
b. Add FRP 4' high across two 3' legs of the Janitor's Mop Sink in Storage

Room.
8. Ggu$s$ons

a. Replace all plastic laminate countertops in Break Room and the Mail Room
with black solid surface countertops.

9. Eloof,ing
a. Omit carpet for Storage Room where mop sink is located. Sealed concrete to

remain

Receipt of this addendum should be acknowledged by referencing Addendum #l and the
date of receipt of Addendum #l on the Proposal Form. Failure to acknowledge receipt of
this addendum on the Bid Proposal Form may be considered grounds for rejection of the bid.

If a bid is submitted, it should be with the understanding that the revisions contained herein
are incorporated into the specifications for the Jail Administration Remodel Project and
form a part of the bid documents. It is requested that Contractors that may have been given
plans or specifications for this project be advised of these contract revisions.

Inyo County
Department of Public Works

fu?,fiateno
Senior Civil Engineer

Date: October 25th. 2023



12/19/2023





















Darrin Pagenkopp (May 16, 2024 10:35 PDT)
May 16, 2024



Pagenkopp Company Inc. 

Construction and Resort Specialists 

Big Pine, CA 93513 

7 60-920-8889( office) 

714-280-6377(cell)

Lic#941857

DIR #PW-LR-10000964659

Inyo County

5/2/2024 

Change Order #003 

JAIL REMODEL 

Additional Exterior Paint/ Paint Upgrade 

Original Bid-4,600 sq ft 
Pressure Wash predetermined area 
Surface prep and caulk as necessary 
Paint predetermined section with Dunn Edwards Elastomeric Exterior Wall Coating 
Mask off 6 windows 
Paint 2 doors( Black) 
Scaffolding, lifts, and extensions as needed 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------$31,42 l .56 
Paint Upgrade to VandlGuard change order --------------- --------$3,543.00 
New Total--------------------------------------------------------------------------------$34,964.56

New Proposal-Additional 15,800 sq ft 
Paint an additional 15,800 sq ft (spray and back roll) 
Pressure wash entire building 
Surface Prep and Caulk as necessary with Zip liquid flashing 
Mask off 19 windows and accessory structures 
Use upgraded VandlGuard Silicone Elastomeric Paint 
Prime and Paint 15 doors ( Black) 
Prime and Paint 19 window frames 
Scaffolding, lifts, and extensions as needed 

Total of New W ork---------------------------------------------------------$87 ,550 .00

All material is guaranteed to be as specified, and the work to be performed in accordance with information provided 

Respectfully Submitted: Pagenkopp Company, Inc. SIGNATURE "Dat!IUH S. P� 

ACCEPTANCE OF CHANGE ORDER. ________________ _ 

The above process, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted. Pagenkopp 
Company,Inc. is authorized to do the work as specified. Change Order payment due as items are completed. 
Please sign and return this to our office, or scan and email 

SIGNATURE 

------

SIGNATURE _____ _ 

Grand  Total Change Order 3            $91,093.00



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-376  

 

Resolution Adopting List of Projects for Fiscal Year 
2024-25 Funded by Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 

Account (SB-1) 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Approve proposed Resolution No. 2024-20, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County 
of Inyo, State of California, Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2024-25 Funded by SB 1: The 
Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017," and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and 
B) Authorize the Public Works Department to apply for and submit all required documentation to receive 
the Inyo County allotment of SB 1, Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding and authorize the 
Public Works Director, or his designee, to sign for the RMRA funding and all associated supporting 
documents. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill (SB) 1, to address basic road maintenance, 
rehabilitation and critical safety needs on both the State highway and local streets and roads. 
An  overview and details of the Senate Bill were outlined at the Board meeting of May 9, 2017. To recap, 
SB 1, or The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, will increase the per gallon fuel excise taxes; 
increase the diesel fuel sales tax; increase vehicle registration fees; and provides inflationary 
adjustments to tax rates in future years. The collected revenue is to be placed in the State Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) for allocation. State law requires counties and cities to 
establish eligibility for SB 1 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funding on an annual 
basis by submitting a list of proposed projects to the California Transportation Commission (CTC). 
Project lists do not have to be adopted within a county or city budget for FY 2018-2019 and into the 
future, but project lists do have to be adopted by resolution at a regular public meeting. 
 
Projects that are proposed do not need to be completed in that fiscal year, and can be amended or 
continued in subsequent project proposals. Public Works is bringing a resolution and project lists for the 
2024-25 SB1 funding cycle as required in the SB1, Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 
legislation to be eligible for Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funding. The 
requested projects in this SB1 funding cycle will include a continuation of any previously approved 
projects, 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund  Budget Unit 034600 

Budgeted? Yes (salaries and contractors for specific projects) Object Code ALL 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
None 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
None 
Additional Information 
None 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not approve the resolution and project lists; however, this is not 
recommended as the County would not be entitled to the SB1 funding. The addition of this funding will 
allow for continuing improvements to the County's road infrastructure and provide safer roads for the 
traveling public. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. RMRA (SB-1) FY 24-25 Resolution and Project Submittal 
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 5/14/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/14/2024 
Greg Waters Approved - 5/21/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/21/2024 
Michael Errante Approved - 5/21/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/22/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 5/23/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/23/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO._______ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024‐25 FUNDED BY  

SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 
5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 
2017 to address the significant multi‐modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and  

WHEREAS, SB 1  includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the 
residents of Inyo County are aware of the projects proposed for funding  in our community and 
which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS,  Inyo County must adopt by  resolution a  list of projects proposed  to  receive 
fiscal year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by 
SB 1, which must  include a description and  the  location of each proposed project, a proposed 
schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

WHEREAS, Inyo County, will receive an estimated $4,114,189 in RMRA funding in Fiscal 
Year 2024‐25 from SB 1; and 

WHEREAS,  this  is  the 8th year  in which  Inyo County  is  receiving SB 1  funding and will 
enable  Inyo County  to continue essential  road maintenance and  rehabilitation projects,  safety 
improvements,  repairing  and  replacing  aging  bridges,  and  increasing  access  and  mobility  
options for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

WHEREAS,  Inyo  County  has  undergone  a  robust  public  process  to  ensure  public  input  
into our community’s transportation priorities/the project list; and  

WHEREAS,  Inyo  County  used  a  Pavement  Management  System  to  develop  the  SB  1  
project  list  to  ensure  revenues  are  being  used  on  the  most  high‐priority  and  cost‐effective 
projects that also meet the communities priorities for transportation investment; and  

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help Inyo County maintain and rehabilitate dozens 
of the 530 streets/roads, and several of the 50 bridges, add active transportation infrastructure 
throughout the County this year and several types of similar projects into the future; and 

WHEREAS,  the  2018  California  Statewide  Local  Streets  and  Roads  Needs  Assessment  
found  that  Inyo  County’s  streets  and  roads  are  in  an  “excellent/good/at‐risk/poor”  condition 
and this revenue will help us  increase the overall quality of our road system and over the next 
decade will bring our streets and roads into a “excellent/good” condition; and  

WHEREAS,  the  SB  1  project  list  and  overall  investment  in  our  local  streets  and  roads  
infrastructure  with  a  focus  on  basic  maintenance  and  safety,  investing  in  complete  streets 

Page 1 of 3 



Page 2 of 3 
 

infrastructure, and using cutting‐edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant 
positive co‐benefits statewide. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the Board of Supervisors 
of Inyo County, State of California, as follows: 
 
1.   The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 
2.   The following list of newly proposed projects will be funded in‐part or solely with Fiscal 

Year 2024‐25 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues: 
 
Project #46 – Grader Overlay Projects 
Project #47 – Dixon Area / Lazy A Slurry Seal Project 
 
[Project detail for each newly proposed project can be found in Attachment A] 
 
3.   The  following  previously  proposed  and  adopted  projects may  also  utilize  Fiscal  Year 

2024‐25 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With 
the  relisting  of  these  projects  in  the  adopted  fiscal  year  resolution,  the  County  is 
reaffirming  to  the  public  and  the  State  our  intent  to  fund  these  projects with  Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:  

 
Project  #10  –  North  Round  Valley  Bridge  Replacement,  Birchim  Lane  Improvement;  State 
matching funds requirement 
Project  #13  –  Crack  Fill,  Patching,  Restriping, Overlay, Guardrails,  and  Culverts,  As  Required 
(Revised for FY 23/24) 
Project #14 – Warm Springs Road Grader Overlay 
Project #15 – Death Valley Road Chip Seal 
Project #16 – Trona Wildrose Road Chip Seal 
Project #17 – Panamint Valley Road Paver Overlay 
Project #18 – Old Spanish Trail Road Grader Overlay 
Project #21 – Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation 
Project #22 – Micro Fiber Slurry Seal (Revised, roads added) 
Project #23 ‐ Guardrail Replacement and Modernization (Revised, roads added) 
Project #24 ‐ Trona Wildrose Reconstruction 
Project #25 ‐ Lone Pine Town Streets Asphalt Resurfacing Project  
Project #26 ‐ Lone Pine Sidewalks and ADA Improvement Project 
Project #27 – Various Roads Fog Coat Project (Revised, roads added) 
Project #28 – Short‐Span Bridge Repair, Rehab, or Replacement Projects (Span less than 20’) 
Project #29 – BPMP (Bridge Preventative Maintenance Projects ‐ Span 20’ and over) 
Project #30 – Horseshoe Meadows Road Slide Repair Project 
Project #31 – Sugarloaf Road Grader Overlay 
Project #32 – Watterson Road Grader Overlay 
Project #33 – Substation Road Grader Overlay 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Project #34 – China Ranch Road Grader Overlay 
Project #35 – Bob White Road Grader Overlay 
Project #36 – Stateline Road FLAP Full Reconstruction Project 
Project #37 – Collins Road Bridge Reconstruction  
Project #38 – Poleta Road Bridge (City of Bishop Cost Sharing) 
Project #39 – Silver Canyon Road Bridge Rehabilitation 
Project #40 – Independence Town Roads Slurry Seal 
Project #41 – Emigrant Pass Old Spanish Trail HSIP Grant 
Project #42 ‐ Buttermilk Road Rehabilitation 
Project #43 – Storm & Snowmelt Runoff Road Rehabilitation 
Project #44 – Climate Resiliency – Armoring and Repair 
Project #45– Lone Pine Road Yard Construction Project 
 
 
[Project detail for each relisted project can be found in Attachment A] 

 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of  Inyo County, State of California 

this _______ day of _______, 2024, by the following vote:  
 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #46 
 
Grader Overlay Projects 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Apply Cold Mix Asphalt (CMA) to the following roads: 

 
Locations: 
 

 
 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$577,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #47 
 
Dixon Area / Lazy A Roads Slurry Seal Project 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Bear Creek / Lazy A Slurry Seal Project is intended to apply a Micro Fiber Slurry Seal to all paved 
roads. The Inyo County Road Crews will prepare the surface with crack filler and the slurry seal will be 
applied by a contractor. 
 
Locations: 
 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life of this treatment is 5 years 
 
Anticipated construction date: 
 
July 2024 through June 2025 
 
Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 
$700,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 

SB 1 Projects 

Project #10  

North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, Birchim Lane Improvement; State matching funds requirement 

Description; 

In 2017, a storm system destroyed a County bridge located in North Round Valley Road #1003, a County Road. 

This bridge was on the primary access route for the community of 40 Acres, located at the North end of the 

paved section of North Round Valley Road, approximately one mile north of the bridge. This bridge 

replacement qualified for State of California OES disaster funds at 75% reimbursement of project costs, 

incident #2017‐11; 3602 (attached). Also included in this incident is the repair and stabilization of Birchim Lane 

#1006, a County Road. Birchim Lane is a secondary primitive road that allows access to the effected 

community, and has now become the primary access to the community of 40 Acres. Birchim Lane has also 

qualified under the OES Disaster incident and is eligible for the 75% reimbursement of project cost from the 

State of California. Environmental and bridge design are currently underway for the North Round Valley 

Bridge, as well as design and repair of Birchim Lane. The Office of Emergency Services has approved the 

Engineers estimate of $3,400,000 for the North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, as well as $600,000 for the 

Birchim Lane repair and stabilization. It is anticipated that the State of California OES will fund $3,000,000; 

Inyo County will provide the 25% contribution of $1,000,000 with SB1 funds. Due to the anticipated three to 

four year construction schedule, it is anticipated that the County contribution will be divided over the FY2020‐

2021,  FY2021‐2022, FY2022‐2023 and FY 2023‐2024 SB1 funding cycles, at $250,000 each cycle. 

NOTE: This project is complete but remains as a listed project because the environmental closeout will take 

five years, ending in FY 27/28.  

Locations;  

North Round Valley Road, with the damaged bridge, and Birchim Lane, that intersects North Round Valley 

Road, is located in Inyo County, 15 miles North West of Bishop.   

Estimated useful life;  

Useful life is 50 years 

Anticipated construction date; 

 Pre‐Con Schedule 7/1/2020 through 6/30/2021    Construction Schedule 7/1/2021 through 06/30/2024 

Costs for this project are estimated to be;  

25% County contribution requirement;    $1,000,000,   (Anticipate dividing between FY2020‐2021, FY2021‐

2022, FY2022‐2023, and FY 2023‐2024 SB1 cycles. Environmental Closeout will cost about $60,000, at 

approximately $12,000/year. 



 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 

2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #13  (Revised FY 23/24) 
 
Crack Fill, Patching, Restriping, Overlay, Guardrails, and Culvert – As Required 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Application of rubberized crack fill and pot‐hole patching to seal asphalt pavement to prevent 
water intrusion to the subgrade, protecting the subgrade from erosion and causing pavement 
failure. Overlay for some roads that are in an advanced state of deterioration, restriping, and 
guardrail and culvert repairs and/or replacement as necessary. This project has been revised to 
provide funding for the purchase, repair, or maintenance of trucks and equipment to 
accomplish this scope‐of‐work. 
 
Locations: 
 
County‐wide, the Inyo County Road Route system, where several roads are grouped in areas, or 
‘zones’ will be used for identification of the residential streets, outlying roads, and individual 
roads receiving the crack fill, patching, restriping, overlay, guardrail, and culverts. Not every 
road in each route will warrant the application, the routes identified below are both residential 
and outlying roads, roads within the routes will receive some application, towns and routes are 
as follows; 

‐ Bishop Area;  Routes #1001 through #1006 

‐ Big Bine  Area; Routes  #2001, through #2004 

‐ Independence Area; Routes #3001 through #3005, and #3008 

‐ Lone Pine Area; Routes #4001 through #4008 

‐ Tecopa/Shoshone Area; Routes #5002 through #5006 

 
Estimated useful life: 
Useful life is 10 years  
 
Anticipated construction date: 
7/01/2024 through 6/30/2025 
 
Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
$1,500,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #14 
 
Warm Springs Road Grader Overlay 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Warm Springs Road Grader Overlay includes the prepping, tack coating, and application of 
a 2” +/‐ layer of Cold Mix Asphalt (CMA) to 2.3 miles of existing roadway 24’ wide. Also included 
in this scope‐of‐work is any necessary shoulder backing and ditch clearing/shaping, as well as 
striping/asphalt markings. 
 
Location: 
 
The location is from US 395 to Eastside 
 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life is 15 years for the CMA overlay 
 
Anticipated construction date: 
 
July 2024 through June 2025 
 
Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 
$900,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

 
Project #15 
 
Death Valley Road Chip Seal 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Death Valley Road Chip Seal includes the application of chip sealing to 4 miles of existing 
roadway 24’ wide. Also included in this scope‐of‐work is the striping/asphalt markings for areas 
overlaid by the chip seal. 
 
Location: 
 
The location is the road segment from 11.2 miles and 15.2 miles east of US 395 on Hwy 168 out 
of Big Pine. 
 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life for the chip seal is 5 years 
 
Anticipated construction date: 
 
July 2024 through June 2025 
 
Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 
$700,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #16 
 
Trona Wildrose Road Chip Seal 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Trona Wildrose Road Chip Seal includes the chip sealing of 2) 2 mile long  segments of 
roadway 22’ wide. Also included in this scope‐of‐work are the striping/asphalt markings for 
areas overlaid by the chip seal. 
 
Location/s: 
 
The location of the two road segments are north of the Inyo County Line on the South end 
 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life for the chip seal is 5 years 
 
Anticipated construction date: 
 
July 2024 through June 2025 
 
Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 
$650,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

 
Project #17 
 
Panamint Valley Road Paver Overlay 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Panamint Valley Road project involves performing a paver overlay of intermittent segments 
of the 14 mile long section of existing roadway 22’ wide. Also included in this scope‐of‐work is 
the striping/asphalt markings for areas affected by the asphalt overlay. 
 
Location: 
 
The location of the Panamint Valley Road is between Highway 190 and Trona Wildrose Road  
 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life for the overlay is 10 years  
 
Anticipated construction date: 
 
July 2024 through June 2025 
 
Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 
$500,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #18 
 
Old Spanish Trail Road Grader Overlay 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Old Spanish Trail Road Grader Overlay involves performing a grader overlay of intermittent 
segments of the existing roadway 22’ wide. Also included in this scope‐of‐work is the 
striping/asphalt markings for areas affected by the asphalt overlay. 
 
Location: 
 
The location of the Old Spanish Trail Road is between Highway 127 and the Nevada Border 
 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life for the grader overlay is 10 years 
 
Anticipated construction date: 
 
July 2024 through June 2025 
 
Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 
$250,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #21 
 
Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation Project involves the application of cold mix overlay to 
low areas of the existing Lasky Lane roadway to reconfigure drainage patterns to appropriate 
surface drainage transport mechanisms. 

 
Location: 
 
The location of the Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation area is the section of Lasky Lane just north 
and west of Lone Pine.  
 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life for the Lasky Lane Drainage Remediation work will be 30+ years. 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$20,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

 
Project #22  
 
Micro Fiber Slurry Seal Various Roads (revised, roads added) 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Micro Fiber Slurry Seal Project involves the application of a reinforced slurry seal to various 
roads within Inyo County road system. 

 
Locations: 
 
Aspendell   

2023  COLUMBINE DRIVE 

2027  NORTH STREET 

2081  ALPINE DRIVE 

2086  WHITE PINE ROAD 

2087  IRIS DRIVE 

2088  CATARACT ROAD  

2089  SAGE ROAD 

2090  CARDINAL ROAD 

2091  BROOK LANE 

2093  RESERVOIR ROAD 

2098  SIERRA SUMMIT 

2099  SUMAC ROAD 

2100  MANZANITA ROAD 

   
South Lake Area   

2095  HABEGGER LANE 

2096  CANYON DRIVE 

2097  MOUNT TOM VIEW DRIVE 

    
Big Pine East   



3201  POPLAR STREET 

3202  CENTER STREET 

3203  LOCUST STREET 

3204  HOME STREET 

   
   

Big Pine West   
3206  CROCKER AVENUE 

3207  CORNELL STREET 

3208  DEWEY STREET 

3209  CHESTNUT STREET 

3210  WALNUT STREET 

3211  BLAKE ROAD 

3212  WEST STREET 

   
West Bishop   

1118  SARAH VIEW 

1117  AUDREY LANE 

1090  ORINDA DRIVE 

1018  VALLEY WEST CIRCLE 

1023  SUNRISE DRIVE 

1074  LONGVIEW DRIVE 

1050  HIGHLAND DRIVE 

 
Round Valley   

1003 
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD 
(Pine Creek to Birchim) 

1114  HARDY ROAD 

 
Estimated Useful Life: 
 

The estimated useful life for the microfiber slurry seal is five (5) years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$500,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #23 (Revised 5‐9‐23) 

 
Guardrail Replacement and Modernization 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The guardrail replacement and modernization will be performed at various segments of 
guardrail within the Inyo County Road system.  

 
Locations: 
 
The guardrails to be replaced and or modernized include initial sections on the follow roads: 
Mumy Lane, Reata Road, Sunland Drive, Dixon Lane, Whitney Portal Road, Eastside Road, Five 
Bridges Road, East Warm Springs Road, Sabrina Road, South Brockman Lane, Pine Creek Road, 
and Onion Valley Road.  

 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life for the guardrail replacement is expected to be twenty (20) years 
minimum 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$1,000,000 from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #24 
 
Trona Wildrose Reconstruction 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Trona Wildrose Reconstruction Project will reconstruct one (1) mile of Trona Wildrose 
Road. The road has deteriorated due to base failure. The failed section of asphalt will be 
removed by grinding, and the product of the grinding operation will be used to supplement 
imported Type II Class B base, which will be spread and compacted, and a new 4” section of hot 
mix asphalt (HMA) will be placed and rolled in two lifts. A new centerline and fog lines will be 
painted on the asphalt. 

 
Location: 
 
One (1) mile of Trona Wildrose Road starting at the Inyo County/San Bernardino County line.  

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life for the reconstruction of this road is twenty (20) years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$750,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #25 
 
Lone Pine Town Streets Asphalt Resurfacing Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Lone Pine Town Streets Asphalt Resurfacing Project will require the pulverization and 
paving of several roads with 2.5” of HMA (Hot Mix Asphalt). 

 
Locations: 
 
All proposed roads to be pulverized and paved are within the Town of Lone Pine. Roads slated 
for this scope of work include East Mountain Street, North and South Brewery Street, North and 
South Mt. Whitney Drive, East and West Post Street, Tim Holt Street, North and South Lone 
Pine Avenue, North and South Lake View Street, and East Muir Street. Additionally, bike lanes 
will be striped on the shoulders in select areas, and three (3) existing ADA ramps in the project 
area will be upgraded to ADA standards. 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 
The estimated useful life for the reconstruction of this road is twenty (20) years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

Total Project Costs $1,500,000 

Inyo County Match $220,000 from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 

FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

Project #26 
 
Lone Pine Sidewalks and ADA Improvement Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Lone Pine Sidewalks and ADA Improvement Project will require the removal and 
replacement of several sidewalks in the Town of Lone Pine.  

 
Locations: 
 
All proposed sidewalks to be removed and replaced will be brought up to ADA standards. 
Potential segments of sidewalks to receive this remediation work include Whitney Portal from 
Washington to Jackson, Jackson from Whitney Portal to Begole, as well as Locust Street in front 
of the school. 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life for the reconstruction of this road is thirty (30) years minimum 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$100,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act 
FY 2024/2025 SB 1 Projects 

 
Project #27 
 
Various Roads Fog Coat Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Various Road Fog Coat Project involves the preparation and application of fog seal and 
associated striping and pavement markings of Rock Creek Road (1001), Fort Independence 
(3029), Shabbell Lane (3036), Whitney Portal Road West (4018A), and Nine Mile Canyon Road 
(5040), and Ed Powers Road   

 
Locations: 
 
Rock Creek Road (1001), Fort Independence (3029), Shabbell Lane (3036), Whitney Portal Road 
West (4018A), and Nine Mile Canyon Road (5040), and Ed Powers Road 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 5 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$750,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #28 
 
Short Span Bridge (20’ and under) Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 

Repair, rehabilitation, or replacement of all short span bridges 20’ and 
under including the associated bridge rails. 
 
Locations: 
 
Mumy Lane 1 

Mumy Lane 2 

South Brockman Lane 

Sunland Drive 

Poleta Road 

Whitney Portal Road ‐ Canal 

Whitney Portal Road ‐ Turnout 

Whitney Portal Road ‐ Hairpin 

Reata road 

East Warm Springs Road ‐1st Bridge off US Hwy 395 

East Warm Springs Road ‐ 2nd Bridge off US Hwy 395 

East Warm Springs Road ‐ 4th Bridge off US Hwy 395 

Dixon Lane East of Saniger at Canal 

Five Bridges Road at Owens River 

Eastside Road, Just North of Redding Canyon 

Sabrina Bridge Below New Construction 

Sabrina Bridge Above New Construction 

Five Bridges Road West of Granite 1st Bridge 

Five Bridges Road West of Granite 2nd Bridge 

East Warm Springs Road ‐ 3rd Bridge off US Hwy 395 

Collins Road Bridge over Big Pine Canal 

 

 



Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of these repairs is 30 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2027 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$750,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #29 
 
BPMP (Bridge Preventative Maintenance Projects) 
 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The scope‐of‐work involves all bridges 20’ and over that are inspected periodically by Caltrans 
Bridge Engineers for the Inyo County Public Works. Several of the bridges need concrete patch 
work and the application of epoxy coating to the traffic surface. 

 
Locations (initial listing): 
 
48C0005  Mazourka Canyon Road 

48C0009  Whitney Portal Road 

48C0010  Old Sherwin Grade Road 

48C0012  E Bishop Creek Road 

48C0014  Whitney Portal Road 

48C0015  Glacier Lodge Road 

48C0016  Glacier Lodge Road 

48C0023  Old Sherwin Road 

48C0024  Lubken Canyon Road 

48C0032  Bell Access Road 

48C0035  Cottonwood Powerplant Road 

48C0036  Cottonwood Road 

48C0037  Ash Creek Road 

48C0038  Fall Road 

48C0041  Pine Creek Road 

48C0043  Dixon Lane 

48C0045  Manzanar Reward Road 

48C0047  Five Bridges Road 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this 10 years 



 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$200,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #30 
 
Horseshoe Meadows Road Slide Repair Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
One lane of the Horseshoe Meadows Road was lost due to erosion over the years, at a location 
near the top of the switchbacks climbing the face of the mountain. The plan is to design and 
pour a reinforced cantilevered roadway to replace the lost road width.  

 
Locations: 
 
Horseshow Meadows Road 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 50 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$1,000,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #31 
 
Sugarloaf Road Overlay Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
This project involves the overlay of approximately 1 mile of Sugarloaf Road with Cold Mix 
Asphalt (CMA). 

 
Locations: 
 
Sugarloaf Road West of Big Pine 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$250,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project # 32 
 
Watterson Road Overlay Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Apply cold mix asphalt overlay to approximately .3 miles of road surface 

 
Locations: 
 
Watterson Road off Barlow Lane in West Bishop 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$80,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #33 
 
Substation Road Overlay Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Apply cold mix asphalt to 1.67  miles of Substation Road 

 
Locations: 
 
Substation Road near Lone Pine, CA 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$400,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #34 
 
China Ranch Road Overlay Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Apply Cold Mix Overlay to 1 mile of China Ranch Road 

 
Locations: 
 
China Ranch Road, off Furnace Creek Road in Tecopa 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$250,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #35 
 
Bob White Road Overlay Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Apply Cold Mix Asphalt overlay to .66 miles of Bob White Road in Tecopa 

 
Locations: 
 
Tecopa, CA 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$170,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #36 
 
State Line Road FLAP Grant Reconstruction Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The scope of this project includes rehabilitation and widening of 5.21 miles of State Line Road from 
Death Valley Junction to the State Line of Nevada. State Line Road will be widened to 28-feet. This 
includes two 12-foot-wide travel lanes and two 2-foot-wide paved shoulders along with grading, drainage 
structures, full depth reclamation, placement of crushed aggregate base and asphalt pavement, 
signage, striping, and any other safety-related features. 

 
Locations: 
 
State Line Road from Death Valley Junction to the Nevada State Line 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 30 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2028 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$17,167,000 Total Estimated Project Costs 

$15,400,000 FLAP (Federal Land Access Program) Grant 

$1,767,000 Inyo County Match Requirement, of which $160,000 has been paid from RMRA 

Funds to initiate the FLAP Grant 

 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #37 
 
Collins Road Bridge Reconstruction Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Collins Road Bridge over the Big Pine Canal was damaged during the winter of 22/23 storm 
cycle. After the last storm in March 2023 the West Abutment wall was leaning significantly due 
to scouring under the abutment footing. The Inyo County Engineer determined that the bridge 
was damaged beyond repair and authorized LADWP to remove the failed structure before it 
collapsed into the waterway. The current plan is to order precast box culverts and install them 
as soon as the water flows drop in the Fall months. 

 
Locations: 
 
Collins Road Bridge over Big Pine Canal 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 50 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$250,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #38 
 
Poleta Road Bridge Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Poleta Road Bridge is located on the boundary between the City of Bishop and Inyo County. 
City of Bishop is planning to reconstruct the bridge but has requested that Inyo County 
contribute an appropriate amount of funding based on the percentage of bridge structure 
within the Inyo County ROW (Right‐of‐Way) 

 
Locations: 
 
East line Street at the boundary between City of Bishop and Inyo County 
 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 50 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

The entire project is intended to be STIP funded, but Inyo County Public Works is programing in 

contingency funding $50,000 from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds. 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #39 
 
Silver Canyon Road Bridge Rehabilitation Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Silverado Canyon Road Bridge is requiring rehabilitation to bring it up to current standards. 

 
Locations: 
 
The Silverado Canyon Road Bridge is located near Laws, CA  

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 30 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$75,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #40 
 
Independence Town Roads Slurry Seal Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Independence Town Roads Slurry Seal Project is intended to apply a Micro Fiber Slurry Seal 
to all paved roads and alleyways in the Town of Independence. The Inyo County Road Crews 
will prepare the surface with crack filler and the slurry seal will be applied by a contractor. 

 
Locations: 
 
All roads in Independence, CA 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 5 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$700,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #41 
 
Emigrant Pass Old Spanish Trail HSIP Grant Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
The Local Transportation Commission (ICLTC) on behalf of the Road Department prepared a 
successful grant application for the Federal Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) grant 
(attached)to apply high friction surface treatment, install chevron signs at five curves, and one flashing 
beacon for westbound traffic prior to the first curve. The grant approved a $209,600 project cost 
request with a 10% match of $20,960. 
 

Locations: 
 
Emigrant pass, Old Spanish Trail 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

Total project costs $230,560 

HSIP Grant $209,600 

Inyo County match funding $20,960 from RMRA funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #42 
 
Buttermilk Road Rehabilitation Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Buttermilk Road is a non‐paved road that provides access to locals and visitors alike to the 
Buttermilk Mountain Climbing Area. The road was severely damaged during the floods that 
resulted from the atmospheric rivers of FY 22/23. The road needs to be filled and graded to 
make it driveable again. 

 
Locations: 
 
Buttermilk Road is access from CA 168 west of Bishop, CA near Starlite Road. 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 5 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$200,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #43 
 
Storm & Snowmelt Runoff Road Rehabilitation Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
Several roads in Inyo County were heavily damaged as a result of the 2022‐2023 storm cycle 
when back‐to‐back atmospheric rivers resulted in severe erosion of both paved areas and 
shoulders within the right‐of‐way. Additionally, the snow pack in the southern High Sierras is 
currently at 442% as of May 12th, 2023. This snow pack will eventually result in more flooding 
and damage to roads and bridges as ambient nighttime temperatures stay above 32 degrees. 
 
Scope‐of‐Work 
 
The work to be performed under this project involves the importation of structural fill material 
to be placed and compacted in the areas where erosion took place within the right‐of‐way.  It 
also involves the removal of damaged asphalt paving, the restoration of the Type II Class B base 
material, and the replacement of any asphalt paving that was lost as a result of the erosion. 
Also included in this work is the replacement of damaged or undersize culverts and headwalls 
or flares, painting of striping and pavement markings, signage, placement of rock slope 
protection, and other armoring to prevent similar damage in the future. 



 
 

Locations: 
 
The road damage is distributed county‐wide, but the roads with the greatest damage to date 
are Whitney Portal Road and Old Sherwin Grade Road. We are currently assessing all of the 
roads in Inyo County to arrive at a more concise damage estimate. 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 5 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$200,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #44 
 
Climate Resiliency – Armoring and Repair Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
This project is intended to provide funds to armor and repair roads as necessary to minimize 
damage from the effects of the FY 22/23 storm cycle, as well as anticipated snow melt runoff, 
including the installation of culverts and headwalls, installation of rock slope protection, and 
other improvements to prevent similar damage in the future. 

 
Locations: 
 
Affected roads are distributed throughout Inyo County, but the roads that are currently 
candidates for this work are Whitney Portal Road, Old Sherwin Grade Road, Buttermilk Road, 
Five Bridges Road, South Lake Road, Manzanar Reward Road, Onion Valley Road, Glacier Lodge 
Road, and Horseshoe Meadows Road. 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 10 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$200,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



Attachment A ‐ Road Repair and Accountability Act FY 2024/2025 SB 1 
Projects 
 
Project #45 
 
 Lone Pine Road Yard Construction Project 

 
TR#18‐002 
 
Description: 
 
This project involves the construction of a new road yard maintenance building in Lone Pine, 
CA. 

 
Locations: 
 
Lone Pine, CA 

 
Estimated useful life: 
 

The estimated useful life of this treatment is 50 years 

 
Anticipated construction date: 
 

July 2024 through June 2025 
 

Costs for this project are estimated to be: 
 

$500,000+ from RMRA (SB‐1) Funds 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-380  

 

Highway Safety Improvement Program Onion Valley 
Guardrail Project - Notice of Completion Resolution, 

Coral Construction Change Order No. 2, Eastern Sierra 
Engineering Amendment No. 3 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Approve Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $33,371.00 for additional work performed by Coral 
Construction, Inc.; 
B) Approve Amendment No. 3 in the amount of $4,000.00 for additional work performed by Eastern 
Sierra Engineering; 
C) Approve Resolution No. 2024-21, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Onion Valley 
Guardrail Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
lnyo County received notification of a successful Highway Safety lmprovement Program (HSIP) Cycle 10 
grant application on March 26, 2021. The Project identified in the grant submittal encompasses removing 
the existing guardrail at 18 different locations along Onion Valley Road near the town of independence 
and replacing it with guardrail meeting current standards. Eastern Sierra Engineering was awarded a 
design contract as a result of an RFP issued by lnyo County Public Works. Eastern Sierra Engineering 
has completed the design of the replacement guardrail segments.The Board approved the plans and 
specifications for the advertisement for bids at the June 6th, 2023 Board meeting. The low and only bid 
on the project was from Coral Construction Company of Wilsonville, Oregon. 
 
All but one segment of guardrail was removed and replaced last Fall 2023 by Coral Construction, but 
Segment 10 required that the asphalt roadway be removed and a 16" thick concrete roadway 83' long 
and 25' wide was installed to support the traffic lane and provide a place to attach the new guardrail. At 
the direction of Inyo County Public Works, the length was increased to 91'.  Additionally, a continuous 
concrete curb was placed along the inside radius to prevent scouring by storm waters. This resulted in 
an increase in the quantities of the scope-of-work beyond that in the original contract. This resulted in the 
necessity for a change order to Coral Construction Company for $33,371.00 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Eastern Sierra Engineering also provided construction services beyond the scope of their agreement. 
This resulted in the necessity for an Amendment 3 to their consultant agreement for $4,000.00 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund (FHWA) Budget Unit 034601 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5715 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure (project now complete)  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve Change Order No.2 to the contract with Coral Construction, Inc. 
for additional work performed on the Onion Valley Guardrail Project. This would result in Coral 
Construction Company not being fairly compensated for the work they performed at the direction of Inyo 
County Public Works. The Board could choose not to approve Change Order No. 3 to Eastern Sierra 
Engineering for additional construction services provided during the construction phase of the Onion 
Valley Guardrail Project. This would result in Eastern Sierra Engineering not being fairly compensated for 
the services they performed at the direction of Inyo County Public Works. The Board could also choose 
not to approve a Resolution directing the Public Works Director to record a Notice of Completion for the 
project. Failure to sign a Resolution allowing the Public Works Director to record a Notice of Completion 
would result in the contractor, Coral Construction Company not being paid their retention. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Onion Valley Guardrail Project/Coral Construction Co. Change Order No. 2  
2. Notice of Completion Onion Valley Guardrail Project  
3. Notice of Completion Resolution Onion Valley Guardrail Project  
4. Onion Valley Guardrail Eastern Sierra Engineering Amendment No. 3  
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 5/15/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/16/2024 
Greg Waters Approved - 5/23/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/23/2024 
Michael Errante Approved - 5/28/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 5/28/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/28/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/28/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kris Karpstein
Typewriter
5/15/2024





 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Inyo County Public Works Department 
P. O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 
 

 
 

                                                                                               The area above this line is for Recorder’s Use 

 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION     

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 
 
1. A work of improvement known as the Onion Valley Guardrail Project on the property hereinafter described 
was completed on May 16th, 2024 and was accepted by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors on June 18th, 
2024. 
 
2. The property on which the Onion Valley Guardrail Project has been completed is Onion Valley Road, West 
of Independence, CA 
3.   The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 North 
Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, owns and maintains the County Roads. 
 
4.  The undersigned Michael Errante is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has been duly 
authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted June 18th, 2024 by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo to 
execute and file this Notice of Completion. 
 
5. The name of the original contractor that conducted the Onion Valley Guardrail Project pursuant to the 
construction contract with the owner is Coral Construction, Inc. of Wilsonville, Oregon 
 
Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related functions that 
are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the purchase order.    
  

 
COUNTY OF INYO 

 
 
Dated:  _________________________  By:         

       Michael Errante, Director of Public Works 
 



 

VERIFICATION 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
     )  SS. 
COUNTY OF INYO  ) 
 
 
I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the County of 
Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity on behalf of which I 
executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the Onion Valley Guardrail Project, 
and which entity is the owner of the aforesaid interest or estate in the property therein 
described; that I am authorized by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on the entity's 
behalf; that I am authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the public entity; 
and that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof. I declare under penalty of 
perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and the information set forth 
therein are true and correct. 
 
 
 
 
Dated:        ____________________________________ 
       Michael Errante 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION #2024 - __ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE 

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE 
ONION VALLEY GUARDRAIL PROJECT 

 
 

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo, has 
determined that the Onion Valley Guardrail Project has been completed in accordance with the project 
specifications. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized 
and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of Completion pertaining to the Onion 
Valley Guardrail Project. 
 
Passed, approved and adopted this              day of                                 , 2024 by the following vote: 
 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
     
             
      Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
by       

Assistant Clerk of the Board 

   
 













 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-402  

 

DataPilot - Digital Forensics & Certified Training Grant 
Application 

Sheriff 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Rennie, Sheriff Chris Connolly 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the submittal of the DataPilot Digital Forensics and Certified Training grant application.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The DataPilot Digital forensics and certified training grant will provide the department with mobile digital 
equipment and specialized training. This enhancement will enable the department to retain digital items, 
such as cell phones, within the agency for forensic analysis, eliminating the need to outsource these 
tasks. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Digital Forensics & Certified Training Grant- 
DataPilot 

Budget Unit TBD 

Budgeted? No Object Code TBD  
Recurrence One-time expenditure   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
$6,895, which accounts for 50% of the cost of the equipment and program. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could not approve the grant. This alternative is not recommended as the awarded funds will 
assist in efforts regarding digital forensics.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. DataPilot Grant Documents 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lindsey Stine Created/Initiated - 5/24/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/24/2024 
Lindsey Stine Approved - 5/24/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 5/24/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/28/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/28/2024 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 5/28/2024 
Stephanie Rennie Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 



NEW FUND/BUDGET UNIT INFORMATION

artment

CA Officer

For Auditor-Controller's Office Use O

Budget Unit Name:Date:0512312024
Type ofBudget:
Check one: r' Grant ntrust

State Federal r' OtherCheck one:
Type ofBudset Officer resnonsible for budeet unit:

SHRF-SHERIFF
Brief description of what the new fund/budget will be used for:
This grant will provide digital forensic software and certified training. Will allow access to pull

evidence data from digital devices for evidence purposes.

Department Head Signature:
r'Yes No

Accrue Interest?

Signature:

Fund Group #:Assigned Fund #:Assigned Budget Unit #:

Budget Report:tln Exclude
lnactive

Assigned Department #:Function Code #: Activity Code #:

GASB34
Other

CodeInterest Earnings Assigned To

Signature



GRANT PROCESSING REQUEST FORM
CountY of lnYo

REVIEWED &APPROVED BY

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER:

SIGNATURE DATE:

REVIEWED & APPROVED BY SAMS

ADMINISTMTOR:

SIGNATURE: DATE:

REVIEWED & APPROVED BY BOARD

OF SUPERVISORS

BOARDORDERATTACHED Y N BOARD APPROVAL

DATE:

DATE

L
GRANT

AGENCYPHONE N0: J
q4q - 4+\- crY51

AGENCY CONTACTGRANTING AGENCY:

Tnln Q,\o\
EXAMPLE OF NUMBER

Dept: Department of Education
(Aqency No.)84.XXX (Grant Program No.)

IF FEDERAL GRANT... CFDA #

:"

PROGRAM TITLE:

\ror\a\ Ft>we €-
FUNDING

TOTAL ESTLOCAL MATCH OTHERSTATEFEDERAL

)a
IF LOCAL MATCH IS REQUIRED, ARE FUNDS AVAILABLE IN DEPARTM ENT BUDGET? gI N

ACCOUNT TO WHICH THE MATCH WILL BE CODED: BUDGET UNIT:

NEW BUDGET UNIT REQUESTEDTCru

AMOUNTINDIRECT COSTS? Y N

REIMBURSEMENT GRANT? Y 6)
REQUEST FOR FUNDS SUBMITTED BY:

\ ,,,nn\so t\ N\nto
FINANCIAL & PROGRESS REPORTS PREPARED BY

1 ,'nA.\ot \ tFnnu
P

EMAIL:

lgrlru d /-tarrAduu'7+\/. US
FAX:

1(oO' A78'aloe
PHONE:

1(00 Fi7?, ?t5lv



SYSTEMS ACCESS
)lr,:i i,ri,,.li,|ir,,;r..i i-i :. i ..,;:l

,a ,." ,, ),t::.riti i. ti, i:.r], r! ,r1.,:.r,:,.. ':1.:rr:: f i,., :l

' I r r! rj : I l:11 1, l;. ' r:r'ji'i , ij .

.i t.t t-i: i ,il

),,

,l li:i'ii rr,l 1il

li lili,: l

' i.r,l : l.

I r,'l:,,; j'i ,,,1

lt.r.l l, r.

'\.i ; I i

'. r ir 'l t: l i lr llil

,t ::", i

i: ) !,! :l .ii

Ir j. ir,,.

,!.ti 'i:i.

1.



Please see the included grant information for Digital Forensics & Certified Training. We are proud to
partner with local law enforcement, probation/parole, and correctional agencies to help keep their
communities safe. We understand this has been a challenging time for law enforcement agencies
and that budgets are running thin.

For agencies with current digital forensic software, this program allows you to acquire new
technology, while saving money on your current yearly software subscription costs. This program
also allows you to add much needed field triage capabilities to your current lab-based tools.

For agencies with no current digital forensic software, you can now have access to pull evidence
data from digital devices. Certified Training is included with this program. We look forward to
partnering with you in helping keep your community safe.

Our grant program is made possible by our amazing law enforcement partners who have donated
unused and underutilized licenses for agencies in need.

Thank you,

Jeremy Kirby

Grants Coordinator
DATAP|LOT,lnc.

FBI NAA
iBr {Jr16rrrrrd6r^rdiil.r..^..

T'fi:""'J:2024

Congratulations to the below recipients from QL2024:
CenterTownshipPolice(PA) BarringtonPoliceDepartment(Ni) CityofCrockerPoliceDepartment(MO) CrossCountysheriffOffice(AR)

BangsPoliceDept(TX) BlaineCountySheriffsDept(OK) CrescentCityPoliceDept(CA) BroadwaterCountysheriffsDept(MT) HighmarkHealthpolice(pA)
Harrisburg Police Dept (lL) Liberty Lake Police Department (WA) Beaverhead County Sheriff's Office (MT) york City police Department (SC)

TroutmanPoliceDepartment(NC) OntarioPoliceDepartment(OR) JacksonCountysheriffsOffice(CO) JacksonCountysheriffsOffice(CO)
Eufaula Police Department (oK) cowley county Sheriff's Office (KS) Brighton Police Department (TN) Aspen Police Dept (CO) Apache county Sheriff (Az)



t

2024 Mobile Forensics LTP Grant

*All Departments Can Apply including State Agencies*

Grant Background: This grant is set up for law enforcement agencies to acquire much needed Mobile
Forensics Software and training for their departments. Law enforcement agencies are having trouble keeping
up with increasing amounts of cases involving cell phone data. Agencies have to ship cell plones to outside
sources for their mobile forensic needs. This is time consuming and can lead to a loss of data or legal
precedence. The Mobile Forensics LTP Grant allows law enforcement agencies the ability to acquire their
own mobile forensic software at steeply discounted prices due to the goodwill of agencies allowing the
transfer of unused or underutilized licenses and devices. Agencies can now obtain multiple licenses and
receive training with the grant.2024 Update: Recent surveys have shown that obtaining evidence data in the
field is now a top priority for law enforcement agencies. The new field triage device 

"an 
be acquired as part

of this program or by itself.

Need:
r Qualified Agencies should have less than 380 sworn officers/deputies
o All correctional facilities, probation & parole departments may appry
o Qualified Agency shall have a need for mobile forensic software or training
. Agency employee must be able to attend on-demand training for up-to 4 hours (does not
need to be continuous) of total time.

Description of Pro i ect:

Goals: The Mobile Forensic LTP Grant should be used by law enforcement agencies to
help build cases and increase conviction rates. This should be a benefit to the community
that they serve.

Objectives: The grant's objective is to allow law enforcement agencies to have quick access
to and training on, state-of-the-art mobile forensic tools in use throughout the USA.
Process: Return application below and allocate matching funds. Spots are available on an
immediate needs basis. Program is non-competitive as it is first come, first serve.
Outcome: This grant aims to allow up to 120 agencies nationwide (2024 FY), the ability to
obtain mobile-forensic software and training at a steeply discounted rate through matching
in-house funds and donated licenses.

Descrintion of the Product and What is Included:

Mobile Forensic Training: Learn how to acquire, analyze and report on mobile forensic data
found on cell phones and tablet computers. Learn how to preserve evidence data from
devices, Physical vs. File System vs Logical vs ADB Rooting: New link-screen technology.
App analysis: SQL, DB Forensics, Time formats in files. Analyze using Timeline, Link
Graph, Prime List/ Etc. Use of desktop view and how to locate, view and share evidence data
with D.A. and prosecuting attorney.

o

a

a

a

a

Return to: DATAPILOT C/O Grants Department 18200 Von Karman Avenue Suite 780 Irvine CA,92612
Or via Email to: grants@,datapilot.com wrvw.datapilot.com Call us at949.341.0007



T

a

Description of the Product and What is Included (continued):

DATAPILOT 10: A first-of-its-kind field triage device for acquiring data

in the field or back in the lab. The portable device is in use throughout the

United States with hundreds of agencies and allows LE personnel to
quickly acquire evidence from cell phones and tablet computers. Techno

Power Kit (TPK) for added field capabilities.
DP Desktop Forensic Software: Acquire evidence with multiple
acquisition methods from thousands of cell phones and tablet computers.

Analyze evidence with link analysis, timeline, keyword search, activity
map and gallery. Ease case management and creation. View all data

including application data and deleted data when applicable. Show chain of
custody. Create evidence reports for use in court and flag individual files

with notes.

a

Budset:

We understand that federal funds have become harder to receive.

Departments do not have the funds needed to purchase a single mobile
forensic software suite plus the additional cost of training. Nor do they

have the time or resources to drive to other jurisdictions for help in
acquiring cell phone data. This grant drastically cuts down the cost of
acquiring DATAPILOT 10, currently in use by the USSS, DHS and

various other Law Enforcement agencies. Certified mobile forensic
training on the device is included as well at no additional cost.

DATAPILOT l0 field device

A

I

I

.!i4t:.:..:-_:-..' -

Work nlan/Timeline: DP Desktop malytics soliware

o All applications for the Mobile Forensics LTP Grant must be received prior to

612812024 and agency funds must be received by 0811612024.

Grant is non-competitive and is issued on a first come first serve basis for no more than 120 law

enforcement agencies. Please return application at your earliest convenience.

Equipment is shipped directly to LE agency

Once equipment is received, user must register for certified training and complete before using the

forensic device.

a

a

a

- -

Fill Out Application Receive Equipment Training Provided

Return to: DATAPILOT C/O Grants Department 18200 Von Karman Avenue Suite 780 Irvine CA,92612
Or via Email to: grants@datapilot.com www.datapilot.com Call us at949.341.0007

[qJtnt

H
ntpo*IS



Agencies may choose any (or all) of the options below. Please circle what item you would like
below and fill out the application. Email this page to grants@datapilot.com for approval.

MSRP Grant Pays Cost Per License to
Law Enforcement

Agencv

Amount of licenses
needed *Max2

Grant Option 1

DATAPILOT 10 with
Certified Training and

Techno Power Kit

$50885 $3,440 s2,445
Circle Below

t2

Grant Option 2
DPDesktop forensic

software (2year
license) & Certified

training

$8,785 $4,845 $3,940
Circle Below

l2

$6,975
Circle Below

2

Grant Option 3
DPDesktop forensic

software, DATAPILOT
70, (2year licenses)
Techno Power Kit,

fied Training

$130870 $6,895

Application mav be returned via email or mail: Approval process takes less than a week.

Name:

Organization:

Address:

City:

Phone:

E-mail:

,a\J

-!.,

s
o

St. CA zip:6?hA U
t-o

Amount of Sworn Full Time Officers/Deputies: 3b
Current Mobile Forensic Software in Use (if none, mark N/A)

Est. Volume of Cell Phone Extractions per Month

Prepared by Rank:
f'PPvuxro
iaqFc^Y Qj 0\Aev\m f\gQror\ro 9el'rnre

Unyi: Cq n\o\y -Vrucrglrtce

olddfrl

lo -\

Si Date Scan your application and email to:
grants@datapilot.com

Return to: Datapilot C/O Grants Department 18200 Von Karman Avenue Suite 780, Irvine, Ca.92612
Or via Email to: srants@.datanilot.com wrvw.datapilot.com Call us at 949.341 .0007



Get Digital Evidence Data, lmmediately in the Field

@ Ce| phones @Tablets @ Smart Watches @ Drones @ CCw @ Gaming Systems @ tvtore

*
g
"o@

ftc$r se!.qt ldion O

u
ACQUIRE

H
ri.lt I tO*

rilc'40'

REPORIS

c\lf icescti

Faster acq u isitions
More supported devices
Acquire from HDMI devices
Acquire from smart watches
Advanced analytics

I 1()f,{L

New for 2024
o

a

o

o

a

o

E
B

DATAPILOT

Real-Time Acquisition

ACQUIRE

Collect Data Fast

Add our new Fast Extraction
software to your current

computer and enhance your
forensic ca pa bi lities today.

View Results On-Scene

Review pertinent data, right
on-scene, so you can make
informed decisions quickly,

without delay

More Devices
Get data directlv from wearable

devices wilholt the need of
accompanying cell phone.

FBI NAA
a&fl ilioeltu&nreir&t, r...

lifi:i* 2024

&

Order Today at datapilot.com

18200 Von KarmanAve. Suite 780, lrvine, California 92612 | 949.341.0007 | datapilot.com



rrqoo

J.,i.
;. 6 rk@&i

cqoo

nI
it

4.,,-' '- --.. " #tl _il
i.\I

i
i.
i
:.:

cqoo

t4dG ,i

-

I
i;
:ji;,

7.

i1

t.'

\\
x
!
,i .

'l
a

-,r -#.*4 tra1r.-2')'.t':

"1EqoO

s -,'
), -.

o'-...

G'.'.'-'
I .--,

J6
l' ..*u

sLi
,, l= - -"1\t

i
F

\
I
i
I

t
!,
a,'.;: E

E,J ltslilldl$itt f fr: : i;:
D
D .rt ttu'ttwettta&4t.alqt" / '/)

.E

g
u

Benefits Of DATAPILOT SO

Portable for field or lab use

Training lncluded

US Based ComPanY

8 Acquisition Methods

Powers Target Devices

Works with Other Forensics Tools

Search & Reporting Features

Export data to .csv, .xml, PDF and SQL

Works on Apple & Android Devices

Customizable for AgencY SPecs

6

lutions
e!lli
:!9qrlr993
9lr9 v
mqq
cra?

Solve more cases, faster with DATAPILOT 10.

Order todaY at dataPilot.com DATAPILOT
1g200 Von KarmanAve. Suite 780, lrvine, California 92612 | 949.341.0007 | datapilot.com



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-187  

 

Ratification of Payment to Axon Enterprises, Inc. 
Sheriff 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Office of the Sheriff Michael Atkins 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Declare Axon Enterprises, Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ a sole-source provider of gap coverage, body 
cameras, evidence storage, redaction tool assistant, and installation; and B) Ratify payment to Axon 
Enterprise, Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ in the amount of $1,181.35 for gap coverage; and 
C) Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Axon Enterprise Inc. of Scottsdale, AZ. for 
the provision of body cameras, evidence storage, redaction tool assistant in an amount not to exceed 
$664,465.62 for the period of May, 1, 2024 through June 30, 2028, contingent upon the Board’s approval 
of future budgets and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Sheriff’s Department is requesting continued replacement, maintenance, and storage of Axon body-
worn cameras. Axon's body-worn cameras provide unique features, durability, and reliability, and their 
software offers full integration with our current Taser (conducted energy devices) as well as secure cloud 
storage. No other body camera provider can provide full integration with Taser equipment or many of the 
features of the Axon body cam. These items are standard-issued equipment for Sheriff’s Personnel and 
are essential to our daily operations. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund AB443 Small and Rural County 
Sheriff Funding 

Budget Unit 022700 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
$1,181.35 for gap coverage between March 26, 2024, and June 30, 2024 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
FY 2024-2025, $131,246.66; FY 2025-2026, 2026-2027, 2027-2028, $133,009.43 annually FY 2028-
2029, $133,009.32 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board may decide to deny the sole source and direct staff to initiate a Request for Proposals. The 
Sheriff's staff does not recommend this course of action as they would lose access to five years of 
evidence storage and not have body camera video footage or maintenance until a new contract can be 
enacted. This recommendation would be costly, create an officer safety situation, and open the County 
up to potential risk. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Axon Quote for Inyo County - Updated with GAP Coverage until July  
  
APPROVALS: 
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 5/17/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/17/2024 
Riannah Reade Approved - 5/17/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 5/22/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 5/23/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/23/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/29/2024 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 5/29/2024 
Stephanie Rennie Final Approval - 5/29/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Q-523211-45387.776DG

Issued: 04/05/2024

Quote Expiration: 03/21/2024

Estimated Contract Start Date: 06/01/2024

Account Number: 126706
Payment Terms: N30

Delivery Method: 

SHIP TO BILL TO SALES REPRESENTATIVE PRIMARY CONTACT

Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA
550 South Clay Street
INDEPENDENCE,
CA
93526
USA

 
Inyo County Sheriff's Office - CA
PO Drawer S
Independence
CA
93526
USA 
Email: 

David Gollobit
Phone: +1 6023212774

Email: dgollobit@axon.com
Fax: 

Michael Atkins
Phone: 760-608-9045

Email: matkins@inyocounty.us
Fax: 

Quote Summary Discount Summary

Program Length 61 Months Average Savings Per Year $26,873.73

TOTAL COST $641,271.35
ESTIMATED TOTAL W/ TAX $664,465.62 TOTAL SAVINGS $136,608.15

 

Axon Enterprise, Inc.
17800 N 85th St.
Scottsdale, Arizona 85255
United States
VAT: 86-0741227
Domestic: (800) 978-2737
International: +1.800.978.2737



Page 2 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Payment Summary 
Date Subtotal Tax Total
May 2024 $1,181.35 $0.00 $1,181.35
Jul 2024 $127,072.92 $4,173.74 $131,246.66
Jul 2025 $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43
Jul 2026 $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43
Jul 2027 $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43
Jul 2028 $128,254.27 $4,755.05 $133,009.32
Total $641,271.35 $23,194.27 $664,465.62



Page 3 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Quote Unbundled Price: $777,879.50
Quote List Price: $680,754.50
Quote Subtotal: $641,271.35

Pricing

All deliverables are detailed in Delivery Schedules section lower in proposal
Item Description Qty Term Unbundled  List Price Net Price Subtotal Tax Total
Program
M00012 BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 35 60 $344.15 $297.90 $297.90 $625,590.00 $23,194.27 $648,784.27
A la Carte Hardware
H00001 AB4 Camera Bundle 35 $849.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
H00002 AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 5 $1,638.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
A la Carte Software 
73683 AXON EVIDENCE - STORAGE - 10GB A LA CARTE 400 1 $0.60 $0.62 $248.00 $0.00 $248.00

73478 AXON EVIDENCE - REDACTION ASSISTANT USER 
LICENSE 30 1 $10.00 $9.57 $287.10 $0.00 $287.10

ProLicense Pro License Bundle 4 1 $40.00 $39.00 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00
BasicLicense Basic License Bundle 37 1 $15.00 $13.25 $490.25 $0.00 $490.25
A la Carte Services 
100610 AXON SIGNAL - INSTALLATION SERVICE - VIRTUAL 1 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

101208 AXON TASER 10 - 2 DAY INSTRUCTOR COURSE - INSIDE 
SALES 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00

101267 AXON VR - PSO - FULL INSTALLATION 1 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00
Total $641,271.35 $23,194.27 $664,465.62



Page 4 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Delivery Schedule

Hardware 

Bundle Item Description QTY Shipping Location Estimated Delivery 
Date

AB4 Camera Bundle 100147 AXON BODY 4 - CAMERA - NA US FIRST RESPONDER BLK RAPIDLOCK 35 06/01/2024
AB4 Camera Bundle 100147 AXON BODY 4 - CAMERA - NA US FIRST RESPONDER BLK RAPIDLOCK 1 06/01/2024
AB4 Camera Bundle 100466 AXON BODY 4 - CABLE - USB-C TO USB-C 39 06/01/2024
AB4 Camera Bundle 74020 MAGNET MOUNT, FLEXIBLE, AXON RAPIDLOCK 39 06/01/2024
AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 100206 AXON BODY 4 - DOCK - EIGHT BAY 5 06/01/2024
AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 70033 AXON - DOCK WALL MOUNT - BRACKET ASSY 5 06/01/2024
AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 71019 AXON BODY - DOCK POWERCORD - NORTH AMERICA 5 06/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100681 AXON SIGNAL - SIDEARM SENSOR ONLY 35 06/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 71044 AXON SIGNAL - BATTERY - CR2430 SINGLE PACK 70 06/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100126 AXON VR - TACTICAL BAG 2 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100748 AXON VR - CONTROLLER - TASER 10 2 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100832 AXON VR - CONTROLLER - HANDGUN VR19H 2 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101122 AXON VR - HOLSTER - T10 SAFARILAND GREY - RH 1 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101123 AXON VR - HOLSTER - T10 SAFARILAND GREY - LH 1 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101294 AXON VR - TABLET 2 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101300 AXON VR - TABLET CASE 2 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20378 AXON VR - HEADSET - HTC FOCUS 3 2 08/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100390 AXON TASER 10 - HANDLE - YELLOW CLASS 3R 35 2 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100390 AXON TASER 10 - HANDLE - YELLOW CLASS 3R 1 2 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100393 AXON TASER 10 - MAGAZINE - LIVE DUTY BLACK 35 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100393 AXON TASER 10 - MAGAZINE - LIVE DUTY BLACK 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100394 AXON TASER 10 - MAGAZINE - HALT TRAINING BLUE 4 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100395 AXON TASER 10 - MAGAZINE - LIVE TRAINING PURPLE 3 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100396 AXON TASER 10 - MAGAZINE - INERT RED 30 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100399 TASER 10 LIVE CARTRIDGE 700 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100400 AXON TASER 10 - CARTRIDGE - HALT 210 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100401 AXON TASER 10 - CARTRIDGE - INERT 300 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100611 AXON TASER 10 - SAFARILAND HOLSTER - RH 35 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100623 AXON TASER - TRAINING - ENHANCED HALT SUIT V2 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20018 AXON TASER -  BATTERY PACK - TACTICAL 35 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20018 AXON TASER -  BATTERY PACK - TACTICAL 6 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20018 AXON TASER -  BATTERY PACK - TACTICAL 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 70033 AXON - DOCK WALL MOUNT - BRACKET ASSY 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 71019 AXON BODY - DOCK POWERCORD - NORTH AMERICA 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 74200 AXON TASER - DOCK - SIX BAY PLUS CORE 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80087 AXON TASER - TARGET - CONDUCTIVE PROFESSIONAL RUGGEDIZED 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80090 AXON TASER - TARGET FRAME - PROFESSIONAL 27.5 IN X 75 IN 1 10/01/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100399 TASER 10 LIVE CARTRIDGE 110 10/01/2025
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100400 AXON TASER 10 - CARTRIDGE - HALT 280 10/01/2025
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100399 TASER 10 LIVE CARTRIDGE 100 10/01/2026
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100400 AXON TASER 10 - CARTRIDGE - HALT 280 10/01/2026
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73309 AXON BODY - TAP REFRESH 1 - CAMERA 36 12/01/2026
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73689 AXON BODY - TAP REFRESH 1 - DOCK MULTI BAY 5 12/01/2026
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100210 AXON VR - TAP REFRESH 1 - TABLET 2 02/01/2027
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101009 AXON VR - TAP REFRESH 1 - SIDEARM CONTROLLER 2 02/01/2027
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101012 AXON VR - TAP REFRESH 1 - CONTROLLER 2 02/01/2027



Page 5 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Bundle Item Description QTY Shipping Location Estimated Delivery 
Date

BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20373 AXON VR - TAP REFRESH 1 - HEADSET 2 02/01/2027
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100399 TASER 10 LIVE CARTRIDGE 110 10/01/2027
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100400 AXON TASER 10 - CARTRIDGE - HALT 280 10/01/2027
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100399 TASER 10 LIVE CARTRIDGE 100 10/01/2028
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100400 AXON TASER 10 - CARTRIDGE - HALT 280 10/01/2028
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73310 AXON BODY - TAP REFRESH 2 - CAMERA 36 06/01/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73688 AXON BODY - TAP REFRESH 2 - DOCK MULTI BAY 5 06/01/2029

Software 
Bundle Item Description QTY Estimated Start Date Estimated End Date
Basic License Bundle 73683 AXON EVIDENCE - STORAGE - 10GB A LA CARTE 37 06/01/2024 06/30/2024
Basic License Bundle 73840 AXON EVIDENCE - ECOM LICENSE - BASIC 37 06/01/2024 06/30/2024
Pro License Bundle 73683 AXON EVIDENCE - STORAGE - 10GB A LA CARTE 12 06/01/2024 06/30/2024
Pro License Bundle 73746 AXON EVIDENCE - ECOM LICENSE - PRO 4 06/01/2024 06/30/2024
A la Carte 73478 AXON EVIDENCE - REDACTION ASSISTANT USER LICENSE 30 06/01/2024 06/30/2024
A la Carte 73683 AXON EVIDENCE - STORAGE - 10GB A LA CARTE 400 06/01/2024 06/30/2024
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20370 AXON VR - FULL ACCESS - TASER ADD-ON USER 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73478 AXON EVIDENCE - REDACTION ASSISTANT USER LICENSE 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73618 AXON COMMUNITY REQUEST - LICENSE - PLUS 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73638 AXON STANDARDS - LICENSE 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73680 AXON RESPOND PLUS - LICENSE 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73683 AXON EVIDENCE - STORAGE - 10GB A LA CARTE 350 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73686 AXON EVIDENCE - STORAGE - UNLIMITED (AXON DEVICE) 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73739 AXON PERFORMANCE - LICENSE 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 73746 AXON EVIDENCE - ECOM LICENSE - PRO 35 07/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101180 AXON TASER - DATA SCIENCE PROGRAM 35 11/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20248 AXON TASER - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE 35 11/01/2024 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 20248 AXON TASER - EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE 1 11/01/2024 06/30/2029

Services 
Bundle Item Description QTY
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100751 AXON TASER 10 - REPLACEMENT ACCESS PROGRAM - DUTY CARTRIDGE 35
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101184 AXON INVESTIGATE - TRAINING - OPERATOR AND EXAMINER 3
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101193 AXON TASER - ON DEMAND CERTIFICATION 1
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 11642 AXON INVESTIGATE - THIRD PARTY VIDEO SUPPORT 35
A la Carte 100610 AXON SIGNAL - INSTALLATION SERVICE - VIRTUAL 1
A la Carte 101208 AXON TASER 10 - 2 DAY INSTRUCTOR COURSE - INSIDE SALES 1
A la Carte 101267 AXON VR - PSO - FULL INSTALLATION 1

Warranties 
Bundle Item Description QTY Estimated Start Date Estimated End Date
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80464 AXON BODY - TAP WARRANTY - CAMERA 35 06/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80464 AXON BODY - TAP WARRANTY - CAMERA 1 06/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80465 AXON BODY - TAP WARRANTY - MULTI BAY DOCK 5 06/01/2025 06/30/2029



Page 6 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Warranties 
Bundle Item Description QTY Estimated Start Date Estimated End Date
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100197 AXON VR - EXT WARRANTY - HTC FOCUS 3 HEADSET 2 08/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100213 AXON VR - EXT WARRANTY - TABLET 2 08/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101007 AXON VR - EXT WARRANTY - CONTROLLER 2 08/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 101008 AXON VR - EXT WARRANTY - HANDGUN CONTROLLER 2 08/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100704 AXON TASER 10 - EXT WARRANTY - HANDLE 35 10/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 100704 AXON TASER 10 - EXT WARRANTY - HANDLE 1 10/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80374 AXON TASER 7 - EXT WARRANTY - BATTERY PACK 35 10/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80374 AXON TASER 7 - EXT WARRANTY - BATTERY PACK 1 10/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80374 AXON TASER 7 - EXT WARRANTY - BATTERY PACK 6 10/01/2025 06/30/2029
BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 80396 AXON TASER 7 - EXT WARRANTY - DOCK SIX BAY 1 10/01/2025 06/30/2029



Page 7 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Shipping Locations

Location Number Street City State Zip Country
550 South Clay Street INDEPENDENCE CA 93526 USA

2 550 South Clay Street INDEPENDENCE CA 93526 USA

Payment Details

May 2024
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Upfront Gap 73478 AXON EVIDENCE - REDACTION ASSISTANT USER LICENSE 30 $287.10 $0.00 $287.10
Upfront Gap 73683 AXON EVIDENCE - STORAGE - 10GB A LA CARTE 400 $248.00 $0.00 $248.00
Upfront Gap BasicLicense Basic License Bundle 37 $490.25 $0.00 $490.25
Upfront Gap ProLicense Pro License Bundle 4 $156.00 $0.00 $156.00
Total $1,181.35 $0.00 $1,181.35

Jul 2024
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Annual Payment 1 H00001 AB4 Camera Bundle 35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 1 H00002 AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 1 M00012 BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 35 $112,572.92 $4,173.74 $116,746.66
Upfront PSO 100610 AXON SIGNAL - INSTALLATION SERVICE - VIRTUAL 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Upfront PSO 101208 AXON TASER 10 - 2 DAY INSTRUCTOR COURSE - INSIDE SALES 1 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
Upfront PSO 101267 AXON VR - PSO - FULL INSTALLATION 1 $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00
Invoice Upon Fulfillment M00012 BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total $127,072.92 $4,173.74 $131,246.66

Jul 2025
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Annual Payment 2 H00001 AB4 Camera Bundle 35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 2 H00002 AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 2 M00012 BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 35 $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43
Total $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43

Jul 2026
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Annual Payment 3 H00001 AB4 Camera Bundle 35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 3 H00002 AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 3 M00012 BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 35 $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43
Total $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43

Jul 2027
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Annual Payment 4 H00001 AB4 Camera Bundle 35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 4 H00002 AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 4 M00012 BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 35 $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43



Page 8 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Jul 2027
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Total $128,254.27 $4,755.16 $133,009.43

Jul 2028
Invoice Plan Item Description Qty Subtotal Tax Total
Annual Payment 5 H00001 AB4 Camera Bundle 35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 5 H00002 AB4 Multi Bay Dock Bundle 5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Annual Payment 5 M00012 BUNDLE - OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 10 PLUS 35 $128,254.27 $4,755.05 $133,009.32
Total $128,254.27 $4,755.05 $133,009.32

 



Page 9 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Tax is estimated based on rates applicable at date of quote and subject to change at time of invoicing. If a tax exemption certificate should be applied, please submit 
prior to invoicing. 

Standard Terms and Conditions

Axon Enterprise Inc. Sales Terms and Conditions

Axon Master Services and Purchasing Agreement:

This Quote is limited to and conditional upon your acceptance of the provisions set forth herein and Axon’s Master Services and Purchasing Agreement 
(posted at www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions), as well as the attached Statement of Work (SOW) for Axon Fleet and/or Axon Interview Room 
purchase, if applicable. In the event you and Axon have entered into a prior agreement to govern all future purchases, that agreement shall govern to the 
extent it includes the products and services being purchased and does not conflict with the Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program Appendix as 
described below.

 ACEIP:

The Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program Appendix, which includes the sharing of de-identified segments of Agency Content with Axon to 
develop new products and improve your product experience (posted at www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions), is incorporated herein by 
reference. By signing below, you agree to the terms of the Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program.

Acceptance of Terms:

Any purchase order issued in response to this Quote is subject solely to the above referenced terms and conditions. By signing below, you represent that you 
are lawfully able to enter into contracts. If you are signing on behalf of an entity (including but not limited to the company, municipality, or government agency 
for whom you work), you represent to Axon that you have legal authority to bind that entity. If you do not have this authority, please do not sign this Quote.



Page 10 Q-523211-45387.776DG

Exceptions to Standard Terms and Conditions

Agency has existing contract 00021234 (shell 00060977) originated via Quote(s): Q-181520 (shell Q-313589), Q-290640, Q-236708, Q-220209

Agency is terminating those contracts effective 05/31/2024. Any change in this date will result in modification of the program value which may result in additional 
fees or credits due to or from Axon.

100% discounted body-worn camera and docking station hardware contained in this quote reflects a TAP replacement for hardware purchased under existing 
quotes Q-290640, Q-181520, Q-236708. All TAP obligations from this contract will be considered fulfilled upon execution of this quote.

\s1\ \d1\
 Signature Date Signed

4/5/2024



Page 11 Q-523211-45387.776DG

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-358  

 

Bid Acceptance of Idemia Livescan Machine 
Sheriff 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Rennie, Sheriff Shane Scott, Lieutenant 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve and award the contract for Livescan machine, training, maintenance and associated services to 
Idemia of Reston, VA in an amount not to exceed $42,199.74, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The RAN budget pays for the LiveScan machines located at the Jail, Administrative Building, and 
Bishop's Police Department. LiveScan fingerprint machines offer a modern, efficient, and reliable method 
for capturing fingerprint data for a variety of applications. These systems can be easily integrated with 
various databases and software used by law enforcement, government agencies, and other 
organizations for background checks, identity verification, and security clearances. 
 
Idemia was the only response received to RFP NUMBER: 24-001-SHERIFF For the Provision of a 
Livescan Machine Associated Services, Training and Maintenance. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 056610 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5650 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
$25,661.74 for the Livescan machine and one-year warranty 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
$3308 for maintenance per fiscal year 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to reject the bid and direct the Sheriff's office staff to initiate a new RFP. 
However, this action is not recommended as we received only one response to our RFP. 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Idemia Request For Proposal Response Letter 
2. 2024 Idemia Quote Summary 
  
APPROVALS: 
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 5/17/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/17/2024 
Riannah Reade Approved - 5/17/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 5/22/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 5/23/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/23/2024 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 5/23/2024 
Stephanie Rennie Final Approval - 5/23/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



$rDEMrA
'11951 Freedom Drive, Suite 1800, Reston, Virginia 20190

April 15,2024

Riannah Reade

lnvo County Sheriffs Office
550 S, Clay Street
lndependenoe, CA 93526
Tel: 760-878-0326
Email: rreade@invocountv. us

Response ro REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL, RFP NUMBER: 24-001€HERIFF

Reference No. IDCA-L041 524-01

IDEMIA is pleased to provide lnyo County Sheriff's Office with the following price quote for the IDEMIA
Livescan System equipped with the accepted standard California Department of Justice (CAL-DOJ)

software and workflows.

IDEMIA's fully integrated Livescan solution provides lnyo Gounty Sheriff's Office the following
features and benefits:
I Single-source vendor for all components of the LiveScan solution, including the AFIS interface for records

submission to the State,

r Certification to the FBI's Electronic Fingerprint Transmission Specifications

r "HiUNo Hit" Response from the State AFIS Search

o Automatic fingerprint sequencing and duplicate print checking
before scanning is completed, ensuring data lntegrity

r Quick check, review, and edit can be performed on each print

r All LiveScan $ystems includ€ on-site installation, training, and
'l year on-site warranty

Reference: IDCA-L04152441 Page 1 of9

ldemlaldentltyESecurltyUSALLCrllg5lFr6gdomDrlv6,Suile1800,Roslon,Vkglnls20190 rwww.na.idemis.com



Solution Description and Pricing
IDEMIA offers the equipment and services described in Table 1

$23,816IDEMIA LivsScan System Cablnet AH Tenprint/Palm Capture, lncludlng:
. IDEMIA Llvescan System Software
o FBI Appendlx F ceftlfled TenprlnVPalm 500PPl ScEnner wlth Molsture

Dlscrlmlnatlng Optics ScannerTM (MDO) Block Teohnology
. Comput€r, Monltor, keyboard
I Ruggedlzed Cabinet - Adluetable Helght
o Standard CaFDOJ dEfined Workflows and proflles
r Demographic lnterface (Dl) reoeiveo B,TXT flles
r UPSr lnstallatlon / On.slte Tralnlng
r Warranty: 1 Year On-elte Advantage Solutlon warranty, 9X5, Noxt

day on-slte r€eponse and parts replacement
. Freldhl

LS-H"59HD.22
ts-csry'c4
LS.COMX.NECFTP
L S - S WO X. Dl " O F CS"EPUSH
ts"uPs
LS.tAT.CUSTOM
LS.FREIOHT.CAB

$1,845.74Esflmefed Sa/es Tax (@ 7.75%):

$25,661,74TOTAL Extcnded Prlce;

Description Unit Price
rinUPalm re - Gabinet ble ht Tsble I Prlco rource: SL-LAWENF

Current shippingis 60+ days after receipt by IDEMIA of lnyo County Shariff's Office completed pre-install
documantatlon, or as otherwise schaduled.

Optional Annual Maintenanoe Support will etart immediately following the 1st Year Warranty, Annual Maintenance
prices shown above are for Year 2 ggy. Annual maintenance priclng is subJect to increase beginnlng in Year 3.

Please contact the IDEMIA Maintenance Agreement team for pricing details: ContractMaintenance@us.idemia.com,

Options and Pricing
IDEM described in Table

'f
\

$1,409LS"PRNT.M.2 Prlnter Black & Whtte Tenprlnt Card, Duplexer, 550 she€t Tray

$1,701Cablnet System'Dlgital Photo.Capture to include: Dlgltal Camera, Dlgltal Photo
Caoture Software. Cabinet mountino hardwareLS.F.MUG

$1,700Flatbed Scannerts"FSscnAl

$650Barcode $oannEr wlth USB Cable and Stand. Nots: For use wlth Cal-DOJ DNA
transactlon**LS.8AR*

$3,837OptlonalAnnual Malntenanco (to start aller let year Warranty) t Year On.slte,
9X5. Ncxt dav on-elte responEe and partE replaccmsntLS.H.63HD.MAINT.96

$16,538LS.|1.63UD-MNNT-g5
Optlonal Annual Malntenanco (to Btart afier 13t year Warrantyl 5 Year

end parts replacgment - Years 2 thru 5.9X5, Next dav on-Eite responge
On.slte,

Unit PriceDescription

IDEMIA Live8can m - Details rabte L Det.ltg

r TOTS:APP CRM IDN
r Cards: FD258.CiT FD24S-C/T CA Hand-C/T
r Other: TranEmitE to CADOJ NATMS
r Return msg: No
r Callfornla Touch Prlnt Enterprlse oustomizatlon for palm captwe

Californla Depadmcnt ot
Ju8tloe Enterprlss
CuEtomlzation

r NATMS AF|S Protocol Support W
support for NEC NATMS Protocol Communicationg over
Conn€otions w/ WSQ oompression.

pport Package wlth FTP provides
TCP/IPiFTP W{de Area Network

FTP: Compression SuLS.COMX-NECFTP

rs.st?ox.Dr.oFcs"
BPUSH

Demographic lnterface (Dl) recelves B.TXT tileg lrom external system vla FTP or Windows
File thare. Records pushed to System wlll show in the LlveSoan lnventory View available

t

for Editlng.

DescriptionItem

Reference: IDCA-L041624-01 Page 2 of9

ld€mlaldentlty&SacurityUSALLCr11951 FroodomDrfue,Sulte1800,Reslon,Vhginla20190 rwww.na.idemia.oom



Customer Responsibilities
lnyo County Sheriffs Office is responsible forthe following:
r Providing necessary facility resources required for equipment installation and operation including

access, space, environmental control, electrical power and networking.
o Providing a teohnical point of contact for IDEMIA who will be the primary person responsible for

providing and/or coordinating obtainment of site installation pre-requlsite information such as network
information, lP addresses, power information, etc,

r To obtain and maintain the required transmission lines and hardware for remote communications to
and from the necessary agencies.

I lnstallation, tosting and troubleshooting any network communication connections, lines and/ or lnyo
Gounty Sheriffs Office network devices.

r Providing the necessary local area and wide area networking (LAN and WAN) including service and
backend connectivity as wellas any required VPN authorizations

r Compliance with receiving agency requirements using receiving agency approved method for
electronic transfer

r Completion and return of IDEMIA pre-installdocumentation to IDEMIA Program Team.

o Printer supplies such as ink and toner cartridges (consumables) are lnyo County Sheriff's Office
responsibility, IDEMIA does not offer or resell these items.

Assumptions
ln developing this price quote, IDEMIA has made the following assumptions:
o The proposed IDEMIA LiveScan System shall conform to the existing IDEMIA LiveScan configuration,

Any additionalfunctional requirements may be treated as change orders,
r An inter-agency agreement between lnyo County Sheriffs Office and applicable receiving agencies

willbe in placo,
r lnyo County Sheriffs Office will provide all necessary communication for connectivity. This includes,

but is not limited to hubs, routers, modems, etc.
r Live$can System shipment and On-site lnstallation Services will be scheduled a.fter netwprk

connectivitv to receiving agency has been established and verified and IDEMIA's Program team has
received the completed pre-installdocumentation from lnyo County Sheriffs Office.

The following items are not included in the scope of IDEMIA's pricing and will be quoted based on current
service rates in effect at the time of request: (a) requests for IDEMIA assistance / completion of any agency
or governing body required security documentation, suryeys or questionnaires; (b) requeets for IDEMIA
support and potential resolution of issues resulting from agency vulnerability assessments, penetration

testing andlor security audits.

Additional engineering efforts by IDEMIA beyond the scope of the standard product will be quoted based
on current service rates in effect at the time of the change, plus any rolated travel or administrative
expenses, Asslstance with training and questions for the lnyo County Sheriff's Office's database or any
programming, scripting, or revlew of programs beyond work quoted above are excluded from this offer.

Prlces exclude any and all state, or local taxes, or other fees or levies. Customer payments are due

to IDEMIA within 20 days of the date of the invoice.

Product purchase will be governed by the IDEMIA Agreement, a copy of which is attached. No subsequent
purchase order can override such terms. Nothing additional shall be binding upon IDEMIA unless a
subsequent agrsement is signed by both parties,

Reference; IDCA-L041624-01 Page 3 of9

tdemleldcntltygs€curityUSALLCr11951 FreedomDrive,Sulte1800,Reston,Virginia20l90 rwww.na.idenis-aax[



Firm delivery schedules will be provided upon receipt of a purchase order and IDEMIA receipt of completed
pre-install documentation.

IDEMIA reserves the right to substitute hardware of equal value with equal or better capability, based upon

market availability. lf, f,owever, such equipment is unavailable, IDEMIA will make its best effort to provide

a suitable replacement.

Pricing valid through: June 30,2024

Purchase orders should be sent to IDEMIA by electronic mail, or U.S. mailto.

IDEMIA
t4 Croeby Dr,, 2nd Floor
Bedford, MA01730
Emall: terrv.spaldinq@us.idemia'com I anamtkordera@uc.ldemla.com

Please direct all questions and order correspondence to:

Terry $paldlng
IDEMIA lneide Salee
Email : tcrry.epaldlng@ue.ldemia.com I Mob: (71 4) 322'4426

We look forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

Casey Mayfield
Sr. Vice President Justice and Public Safety
IDEMIA ldentity & SecuritY USA LLC

Reference: lDcA'L041624'{tl Page 4 of 0

ldemla ldenfity & gecurlty USA LLC r 11951 Froodom Drive, Suite 1800, Reston, Virginia 20190 r www.na.idemia.com



Advantage Solution SuPPort
The fdllowing table provi-Obs a summary of the maintenance services and support available

during warraity and iollowing warranty expiration. lnitialwarranty period is 1 year from the date

of installation,

Avrllablc for purchaeelnoludcd ln
WanEntySofhrarc Support 9X5*

Unlimited Telephone Technical Support

2 Hour Telephone Response Tlme

Remote Dial-in AnalYsis

Software Standard Releasee

Software Supplemental Releases

Automatic Call Escalation

Software Customer Alert Bulletins

Avallable for Purchace
lncludcd ln
WarrantyHardwarc SuPPort - On-elte 9X5.

24-hoursOn-Site Response

On-Site Corrective Maintenance

On-Site Parts Replacement

Preventive Maintenance

Escalation Support

Hardware Service RePorting

Hardware Customsr Alert Bulletins

Avallrble for purchaeelncludcd ln
WarrantY

Partl $upport

Advancod Exchan ge Parts Replacement

Telephone Technical Support for Parts
Replacement

Parts Customer Alert Bulletins

Software Upllfir
OptionalOptionalHours of Coverage Available up to 24 Hours Per

Day, 7 DaysMeek

Hardwarc Upllltr
OptionalOptionalHours of Coverage Available up to 24 Hours Per

Day, 7 DaysMeek

Post WarrantySupport Features Warranty

local time

Reference: lDcA'L041524'01 Page 6 of9

ldcmla ldontlty & Securlty USA LLC r 11951 Freedom DrlvE, Suite 1800, Reelon, Virginia 20190 | www.na.idemia.com



By signing this signature block below, lnyo County Sheriff's Office agrees to the terms and
piicing stiteO in inis price quote for the product and services as referrcnced above. My
signature betow constitutes the acceptance of this offer and authorizes IDEMIA to ship and
provide these product and services:

To ptace the order, atl we woutd need is (1) a copy of the slgned purchase order or st'gned Price Quote
Auihorization with total purchase price, billing and shipping address(es/; (2) a copy of the current tax

exemption ceftlfieate (if applicable),

Si gnature Authorization for Order:

Signature

Name

Date

Total Purchaee Price (including any Options): $

PLEASE ENTER ORDER AMOUNT ON THE SPACE ABOVE

PLEASE PROVIDE A COPY AF CURRENT TAX EXEMPTIAN CERTIFICATE

Please provide Billlng Addrcsg:

Billing Contact name:

Telephone number: ( )

Email

Check if Billing Address is same as Shipping Address:

Please provide Shipping Addrese (if different from Billing Address):

Technical Contact name:

Telephone number: ( )

Email:

Reference: IDCA-Lo4l62if -{ll Page 6 of I
ldemlaldentltyASecurltyUSALLCrllgSlFroodomDrive,SullelS00,Reston,Virglnia20l90 rwwwna.id€mia.com



ldemla ldentlty & Securlty USA LLC Short Form Sales
Agreement

at

of th€ caurc of actlon, Thls llmlt.tlon of llablllty survlves thc
explratlon or t6rmlnatlon of thls Agrecment.

7. Qgdidentiel lnformafign and Ppservetlon of Proorletary Rightg.
The SLA governs software conlid€nllality. As to sny olher informellon
marked "Contldentlal" and provlded by ono party to the other, the
receivlng parly will maintsln lhe oonfidontlality of lhe informalion end
not disoloss ii to any lhird parly; lake necessary and appropriale
preoaullons to proleol the informationi and use lhe lnformalion only lo
iurlher lhe porformance of this Agreemsnl, Confld€ntial informatlon is
and will r€maln the property of the disolosing party, and no grant of
proprietary rlghls ln the confidsntial lnformalion is glven or lntanded,
Seller, any copyright owner of Non-lDEMlA Software, end any third
party manufaclur€r own and rotain all of lhoir proprlelary rights in the
dquipmanl, parts and software, and nothing herein is inlended to
reshiol lhek proprletary righls. Except as explloilly provlded in the SLA,
lhis Agr€omont does nol grant qny rlghl, litle or intsrost in Seller'E
proprielary rlghle, or a lioenso undot any Seller palenl or palent
applicallon,

8, Mlgc€Janeous: Each party will comply with all applloable laws,
regulations and rulos concernlng the pedormanoe of lhls Agreomenl
or uEa of lhe produols lo the exlonl lh€y do not oonfllcl with the laws of
th6 Unitod Stales. Thls Agrooment and lhe rights and duties of lhe
parliee will be governed by and lnt€rpr€lsd in aocordanoe wllh the lawg
bf the Slate in whlch lhe produots sro ln8lell€d to the oxlenl thay do
not confllct with tho laws of lho Uniled Slaleg. Thls Agreemenl
conBlltulos the €ntlre sgroomoni of the parties reggrding thls
transaclion, aupersedes all prevlous agreements and proposals
rolallng to thls subloct matler, and may bo amended only by a wrllten
instrument exooulsd by bolh parlies, Seller is nol rnaking, and
CuEtomer ls not relylng upon, any r€presenlallon or warranty excspi
thoEo exprossed heroin, There Ere no oerllfloalions or oommilmeniE
binding Seller appllcable lo thla transactlon unless lhey are ln wrlllng
end slgnad by an authorlzed signalory of Seller,

@ir"l'f ,lil,i''gi'if '8",#ff'l"'il
Cuslomer will purchase from Sellsr th€ equipmenl, pErls, soffware, or
services related to lho equlpmenl (6.9., installalion) descrlbed ln

Seller's Proposal or Lall€r Quota dated 

--. 

These
lerm6 and condilions, logelhor with the Proposal or Quoto' comprlse
lhe "Agr€ement." Cuslomer may indioate ils acceptance of lhis
Agroemenl by signing below or by issuing a purohese order lhat refers
loeilhor lho PropoeaVQuole or to a Customor soliciiatlon to whioh the
Proposal/Quote responds, Qnly lhese terms and condltlons apply to
the lransaotion, nolwithslanding any inoonsistont or addllional terms
and oondtlions conlalned ln thB purchaso order or Cuslomsr
sollollallon.

2. Prlce. Pavmenl qnd Salgp Tei'ms. The Conhaol Prloe is U.5.

$-, exoluding applloable sEles, use, or similar
taies. Seller will submlt invoices to Cuelom€r for products whon lhey
are ehipped and, lf applicable, for servicos wh€n lh€y alo performed.
Customer will make payments lo Sellgr wllhin twenly (20) days afler
the lnvoioo dato. Unlaes otherwlso sllpulated wlth lhe Sellor when an

Order is aocept€d, lhe Equlpm€nl wlll bs dellverod by Seller "FCA"
(Free Carrler), wilh named plaoe being the Seller's premises where the
Goods are belng dispatch€d, (lnooterms 2010). Titl6 to the Equlpment
will pass lo Cuslom€r upon paymont ln full of tho Conlraol Price as
oullln€d abovo, excopt that lltlo to Software will nol p986 to Cuslom€r
al any llme. RiEk of loEs will pass to Cuslomer upon deliv€ry of the
Equlpmont to lhe cuolomer et the agro€d narned place of delivery in

accordance wlth th6 lnooterm ln the oonlraol, Seller will paok and ship
gll Equipment ln acoordanoe with good oommerclal praclloes.

3. Soflware. lf lhle transaotion lnvolves soflware, any soflware
own€d by Seller ("lDEM|A Software") is lloensed lo Cuetomer solely in

Eccordance wilh Seller's Soflware Llconse Agreement ('SLA'), whloh
is attgched as Exhlbit A end incorporaled herein by thls referenoe. Any
softwars owned by a thhd party ("NonnDEMlA Soffware') is llcon8ed
to Customer ln aooordanoo wllh tho slandard llc€nse, lerms, and

reslrlollons of the oopyright owner unless lhe owner has granted to
Seller the rlght lo subliocnse ils soflwaro pursuant to lhe SLA, in whioh
case the SLA applles and lhe owncr wlll hav€ all rlghts and proleotions
under the sLA as tha Liosnsor. Ssller makes no teprssonlalions or
warranti6s of eny klnd regardlng Non.lDEMI,A So{tware.

4. Express Llmlted-Wgtranty.and Warr$ly Dlsqlglmer. IDEMIA
Soflwaro ls warranted ln aooordanoe wlth the $LA.

5. Dolavs and Dlsoutes, Neilher parly will be llable for ils non-
performanoe or delayed performanoe lf causod by an event,
circumslenoe, or aol of a lhhd party thal is beyond a parly's reasonable
conlrol (a "Force Majeure'), Each party will nolify the other if lt

becomes aware of a Forcs Maj€ur€ lhet wlll 8igniflcanlly delay
porformenoB. Tho parll€s willtry 1o s€lll6 any dispule arlalng from this
Agroemont (exaopt for a ohim relating lo lntelleolual proporty or breach
of confldEntiality) through good falth negollalions, lf necessary, lhe
parlies wlll escalale lhe dlepule to lhelr appropriate higher'level
managers. lf negolialions fall, lhe pariiea wllljointly 8€leol a medialor
lo mediale the dispute and wlll share equally the medialion costs.
Neither party wlll asserl a br€ach of lhie Agreement wilhout flrsl giving
the olhgr parly wrltton notlce and a thitty (30) day period to cure tho
alleged breaoh.

6. LIMITATION OF t-lABlLltY. Exccpt fot prrlonal lnjury ol
dcath, Seller's total llablllty, whcther for breach ot contract,
warranty, negllgence, strlct llablllty ln toil, or othcrwlse, wlll be
llmlt€d to the dlrect damages recov€Iabla undct l6w, but not to
axceed thr purchasc prlce of tho productB or gorvlces for which
losses or damages ore clalm€d. SELLER WILL NOT BE LIABLE
FORANYCOMMERCIAL LOSS; INCONVENIENCEi LOSS OF UsE'
TIME, DATA, GOOD WILL, REVENUES, PROFITS OR SAVINGS;
oR oTHER SPECIAL, INCIoENTAL, INDIRECT, OR
CON9EQUENTIAL DAMACES IN ANY WAY RELATED TO OR
ARISING FROM THIE AGREEMENT, THE SALE OR U8E OF THE
PRODUCTS, OR THE PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES BY SELLER
PURSUANT To THIS AGREEMENT' No sctlon for contract breach
or othefwlee relatlng to the transactlons contomplated by thls
Agreement may be brought more than one yoar alter the accrual

ldcmla ldentlty E Srcurlty USA LLC ("SELLER")

NAME f'CUSTOMER")

Signed

Reference: IDCA-L041624{1 Page 7 of9

ldemlelddntltv&SecurltvuSALLCrllg5lFrFadnmt)rlve.S[ile1800.Reston.Virdlnle20190.\Mnaidctniacom



EXHIBIT A . SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT
ln thls Exhibit A, tho lsrm "Lioensor" means ldemia ldentily & Secutily
USA LLC, ('lDEMlA); "Liconsoo," msans lh€ Customer; "Primary
Agrsemenl" means lhe sgre€mgnl 1o which lhis sxhlblt is altached
(lDEMlA Short Form Sales Agr66ment); and "Agreement" means lhis
Exhibil and tho appllcablo lorms and conditlons contain€d in the
Primary Agreemenl, Tho parti€$ Egr€e as follows:

For good and valuablo consideration, lhe parliss Egrs€ as follows:

SECTION 1, DEFINITIONS
1.1 "DEsignaled Producls" means products provided by

IDEMIA to Licens€e wilh which or for whioh the Soflware and
Dooumentation ls lloensed fol u8€,

1.2 "Documentation" maans product and software
dooumentalion lhal spocill€s lechnical and performanc€ f€Etur€s and
capabllllies, and the user, operatlon and lralning manuals for the
Soflware (lnoludlng all physioal or eloctronio madia upon which suoh
lnformation is provided),

1 .3 "Open Source Soflware' means software with either freely
oblalnabl6 souroe codo, licens€ for modltication, or permlsslon for free
distrlbution.

1.4 "Open Souroe Software Lioense" moans lhe lerms or
condltlons und€r which lhs Open Souroe SoftwarE ls lloansod.

1.5 "Primary Agroemenl" means lho agreemsnt lo whioh ihls
exhibit is altachod (lDEMlA Short Form Salos Agreement).

1.6 "securlly Vulnersbllity" mEana a flaw or weakness ln

system socurity procedurer, doslgn, impl€monlalion' or internel
conlrols that could be exercised (eccldenlally trlgger€d or inl€ntlonally
exploited) and resull ln a securlty br€ach suoh lhal dala ls

compromi8ed, manipulaled or stolen or lhe syslsm damagod'

1.7 "soflwere" (D means proprielary soflware in objeot code

formet, and adaptatlons, lranslallons, d€.oompilallons, dlrassemblies,
emulallons, or derlvatlve works of suoh softwarei (ii) means any
modifioations, enhanoemenls, new versions and new relaases of the
software provlded by IDEMIA and (liD msy oonlain one or more ilems
of software owned by a thkd parly supplier' The lerm "Software" does
nol lnolude any third party 6oflwar€ provided und€r seperate llcsnse or
thhd party sotlware nol llcensable under the tsrms of lhls Agreement'

sEcTroN 2. SCOPE
IDEMIA and Licenase enler inlo thi* Agreement ln connoctlon with
lDEM|As deliv€ry of oertain proprislary Soflware or producls
conlaining embsdded or pre-loaded proprietary Software, or bolh. This
Agro6m6nt oontglns tho l6rms snd oondltlons of lho llo€n8e IDEMIA is
providing to Liconse€, and Licensee's use of lhe $oftware and
Dooumenlation.

SECTION 3. GMNTOF LICENSE
3.1. Subject lo lho provisions of lhis Agrsemenl and lhe
payment of appllcable llceneo fees, IDEMIA granls lo. Licensee a

ircisonat, limited, non-lransferabl€ (except as permitted in_Sealion 7)
ind non-exolusive license under IDEMIA's copyrights and ConfldEnllal
lnformation (as deflned in the Primary Agr€om€nt) embodled in lhe
Soflware lo use lhs Soflware, in object oode form, and lhe
Documentetion solely ln conneolion with Licens€e's use of th€

D€signaled Producls. This Agro€m€nl does nol grant any rlghts lo
source oode.

3.2. lf lhe Softwars llcensed under this Agroement conlains or
is derlved from Open Source Softwaro, lh€ torms and condillons
governlng lhe use of such Open Source Software are in tho Open
Sourco Software Liconsss of the oopyrighl ownar and not thls
Agreemenl, lf there is a oonfllct belween lho lerms and condllions of
lhis Agraement End lhe t€rms snd condltionE of lhe Open Source
SoftwCre Licenses govorning Liceneee's use of lhe Open Source
Softwaro, lhe t€rmE and oondilions of lhe license grant of lhe
applicable Opon Source Soflwara Licanses willtake precodence ov€r
tlii license granls in lhls Agreement, lf requesled by Lloensee'
IDEMIA will use oommerclally roasonablo efforls lo: O determlne
whother any Open gource Software is provided under this Agreemenl;
(iD id€ntify ih6 bpen Souroe Sofiware and provide Llcensee a oopy of
the applicable Open Souroe Soflware Licenso (or specify where that
lioenie may be found); and, (ilD provlde Liconsee a copy of the Open
Source Soflwarg source code, wlthoul charge, tf lt ie publicly available
(although distrlbutlon feer may be applicab16)'

SECTION 4. LIMITATIONg ON USE
4.1. Lioonsoe may u8€ lhe Softwar€ only for Liceneee's inlernal
business purposa8 and only ln accordanoe wlth lhe Documonlalion.
Any other us6 of the soflwal€ ls slrlctly prohlbited. Wthout llmiling the

deneral nalure of lhe8e restriclions, Liceneoe will not mEke the
Soflware availeble for use by lhhd parties on a "time sharing,"
"applicalion servlce provider," or "eervica bureau" bEsis orfor any olher
slmllar commercial renial or sharing srrsng€ment'

4,2. Licensee will not, and wlll not ellow or enable any thkd
party to: (i) revelge engineer, dieaEeemble, pael components'
decompile, reprogram or otherwiB€ reduce lho Softwaro or any portlon
to a hlman irerceptible form or olh€rwis€ attempt to recreale lhe
source oode; (iD modify, adapl, or€al6 d€rfuatlve works of, or merge
lhe Sollware; (ilD copy, reproduce, diglribute, lend, or lease lhe
Soflware or Dooumenlatlon to any thkd parlv, grant any sublicense or
other rlghls in lhe Software or Documenlaiion io any lhkd party' or tako
any acilon lhat would cause lhe Soflware or Documenlallon lo be

ptecod ln the public domain; (lv) remov6, or in any way aller or obscure,
iny copyrlghi nolioe or olher notice of lDEMlAs proprielary rights; (v)
provide, copy, transmlt, dlsclose, divulge or make $e Softwaro or
bocumanlallon avallable lo, or permil lhe uso of th€ Software by any
lhird parly or on any maohine €xoePt as expressly authorized by this
Agreemont; or (vD uss, or permlt lhe use of, lhe soffwaro in a manner
thit woqld resull in the produollon of a oopy of lhe Soflware solely by

aotivslln0 a machine oontalning the Software. Lioenseo may make one
copy of Software lo bo usod solely for arohlval, back'up, or.dieaster
re66very purposoE; plovidod thal Lioen868 may not oporato lhat copy
of lhs Soflware at th€ samo time as the original Soflware is being
opgraled, Lioonsee may make as many ooples of lhe Documontatlon
as il may reasonably roquire for the lnlernal use of the Software.

4.3. Unloss olh€rwise authorizod by IDEMIA in wrlting,
Licenseo wlll not, and will not enable or allow any thhd parly to: (D

install a lioensed copy of the Software on moro lhan one unit of a

Deslgnated Product; or (li) copy onlo or lransfar Soflware inslalled in
one unlt of a Doslgnaled Ptoduot onlo anolher devioe. Lioensee may
temporarlry tranefer Soflware lnstalled on a Designated Produot lo
another device lf lhe Deslgnalod Producl i8 inoperable or
malfunctionlng, lf Liconses provldes wrlllon nolice lo IDEMIA of the
l€mporary trangfar and ldenlifies lho devico on which lho Soflwaro i6
lransfered. Temporary lranefer of lhe Software lo anothor device
must be discontinued when lhe origlnal Deslgnated Produol ls returned
to operallon and lhe Software mu8t bo rsmoved from lhe oih€r devico.
Lioen8oo must provlde prompl written noiic€ to IDEMIA at lhe llme
temporary tranEfer lE disoonlinued.

SECTION E, OWNERSHIP AND TITLE
lDEMlA, ite lloonsors, snd ils suppllers retain all of lheir proprietary

righls in any form in and lo lhe Soflwaro and Dooumenlatlon, Inoludlng'
but nol limttod lti, Ell rlghls ln pstenls, palent applicalions, inv€nlions,
copyrighls, trademarks, lrEdo secr€ts, trade names, and other
propridlary rights in or relaling lo th€ Soflwaro and Documeniallon
(ncludlng any corr6ctlons, bug thss, 6nhancsmonls, updalee,
modlfloelions, adaptalions, lranslalions, de'oompilallons'
disaseombliee, emulations lo or derlvative works from lh€ Software or
Dooumonlation, whelher made by IDEMIA or anolher party, or any
improvemenls thsi rosult from IDEMIA's prooosses or, provision of
infbrmatlon services). No righls ars granl€d lo Licensee under lhis
Agreemenl by implication, €stoppel or olhdrwlse, excopt for lhose
righls whloh are exprossly granted to Licensee in thls Agr€omsnt. All
lniell€ctual properly dev€lopod, origlnated, or proparod by IDEMIA ln

conneotlon wlth provlding the Software, Designated Produols,
Dooumenlation or relaled servlces, remains vested exolusively in

lDEMlA, and Licensee will not havs any shared developmenl or olher
lntoll€clual property rlghta.

SECTION €. LIMITED WARRANTY; DISCLAIMER OF WARMNTY
6.1. lf Lioensee ie nol in breaoh of any of lts obligations under
this Agre€menl, IDEMIA warranls that lho unmodified Software, when
used properly and in accordancs wlth tho Documentelion and thlB

Agreeheirt, wlll b6 free from a teproduolble def€cl that eliminates the

.funcllonallly or suco€8sful opsrallon of a f€aluro crilical lo lhe primary

functlonallly or suocessful operatlon of tho Softwar€. Vvhethor a defeot
ocours wlll bo delermined by IDEMIA solely with referenco lo the
Dooumentaiion, IDEMIA doeg nol warrant lhal Llcensee's use of lho
Softwaro or the Dsgignaled Produois wlll bo uninlorrupted, error'free,
oompleloly free of Seourlty Vulnerabilllies, or that lhe Soflware or lhe
Designaled Producls will m€et LioenseE'E particular requiremenls.
IDEMIA makes no r€prosenlalions or warrantias wiih r€spect to eny

third party softwar€ includ€d in the Sofiwaro.

6.2 IDEMIA's sole obligalion to Llcenses and Llcensee's
exclusive romedy under lhlE warranly is to use reasonable efforls to
r€medy any materlal Sollware defeot oovered by this warrenty. Theso
efforls will lnvolve either replacing lhe media or atl€mpting to oorroct
slgnificanl, demonslrable program or dooum€ntalion errors or Security
Vulnerabilitles, lf IDEMIA oannot corr€ot lho defeot wlthln a reasonable
tlme, lh€n at IDEMIA's optlon, IDEMIA wlll replace lho defeclive

Reference: lDcA'L041624'{ll Page 8 of I
kl.mlel.lentltv&SecurltvUSALLCrllgSlFr6e.lomDrive.Srrllc1800.Raslon,Virninie20190 rrmneidemiacom



Software wilh funolionally.equivalent Software, license to Lioensee
substitute Sottware whlch wlll accompllsh lhe same objective, or
lerminaie the licen66 and refund the Licaneee's paid lioense t€6'

6.3. Warranty olalms are described ln the Primary Agreement'

6.4. Th6 express walrantles set torth ln thls gectlon 6 are
ln lleu of, and IDEMIA dl3clalms, any and all othcr walrantleg
(express oI lmpllGd' oral or wrltten) wlth rcspect to the Softwarc
ir -Documentallon, 

lncludlng, wlthout llmltatlon' any and all
lmplled warrantlos of condltlon' tltle' non'lnfllngement'
mdrchantablllty, or fltnoss lor a partlcular purpo3e ol use by
Llcensee (wheth€I or not IOEMIA knows, has reason to know' ha3
been advls€d, or ls othlrwlse aware of 6ny such purpose or use),
whether arlslng by law, by leason of custom or usage of trade' or
by courso of deallng. ln addltlon, IDEMIA dllclalms rny warranty
t5 any person other than Llccnsce wlth lespect to tha Soltware ol
Documentatlon.

SECTION 7. TRANSFERS
Lioensee wlll not lranefer the Softwaro or Dooumentatlon to any thkd
party withoul lDEMlAs prior wrltlen consonl' IDEMIA'e oonsent mqy

be viithnelo at lte disorelion and may be condllloned upon transfero€
paying all applloable licenge feeE and agreelng to be bound by this

Agream€nt.

SECTION 8. TERM AND TERMINATION
8.1 Licensee's rlght lo usE the Soflware and Docum€ntetion
will begln when th6 Primary Agreement is signod by both parlies and

wlll oontlnue for the llfe of lhe Deslgnalod Produols wilh which or for
whlch lh€ Soflware and DooumEnlailon hava bsen provided by
lDEMlA, unlass LioensEe broaches lhis Agr€omonl, in whlch oese lhis
Aore€msnt and Liconeee's right lo uss lhe Sofiwar€ and
D6cumenlation may be lermindled immedialely upon nolice by

IDEMIA,

8.2 Withln thirty (30) days aftor lermination of thls Agreement'
Lioongse must corlfi ln writlng to IDEMIA that all ooples of lhe
Software hsve been rimoved or deleled from tho Dosignet€d Products
End lhat all copies of lhe Softwaro and Documenlallon have been
relurned to IDEMIA oI doslroyod by Llc€nsoo and ar€ no longor in use

by Llcens6e.

8.3 Llcensee acknowledges lhat IDEMIA made a considerabls
inv€Blment of resources in tho d€velopmonl, markoling, and

dlstrlbution of tho Soffware and Documenlation and lhat Llcensee's
breach of lhis Agreement wlll resuft in hreparable harm to IDEMIA for
whlch monetary damageswould be lnadequato, lfLloensee breaches
this Agreem6nf, IDEMIA may terminate thls Agreomonl and bo entltled
to all-avallable remodles at law or in oquily (lnoludlng immediate
injunclive relisf and rgposEoeelon of all non'embedded Soltware and
aisooiated Documenlatlon unl€Es Licensoo is a Federal agency ofthe
Unit€d Stat€s Government).

SECTION 9.UNITEP STATES COVERNMENT LICENSINO
PROVISIONS & RESTRICTED RIGHTS LEGEND
This Sectton applles if Liceneee is lhs Uniled Slalos Governm€nt or a
Unlted Stalos Governm€nl agency. Llc€nsee's uso, duplicallon or
disolosure of lhe SoftwEro and Documentatlon under IDEMIA's
oopvrightE or lrade sscrot rights ls subjeol to lhe regtrlolions set forth
ln iubfaragraphs (c)(1) and (2) of lho CommercialCompuler Soflware'
nestribted hignts clauso at FAR 52,227-19 (JUNE 1987), fi applloable'
unless lhey *e baing provid€d lo the Department of Dofense, lf lho
SoftwEre and Documontallon ar€ belng provided to the Department of
Defense, Licensee's usa, duplicalion, or dlsclosure oflhe Softwara and

Dooumentatlon ls subjoot to lhe restrlcted rights sel forlh ln

subparagraph (o)(1)(iD of lhe Rights ln Tochnical Data and Computer
Software clause st DFT{RS 252,227'7013 (OCT 1988)' ff applioable,
The Software and Docum€ntation may or may nol include a Reslrlot€d
Righls nolico, or othor nollco r€f€rring lo thie Agreement. The
pr6vislons of lhls Agreemenl will conlinuo to apply'- but only lo lhe
extent lhal they are consbl6nl wllh lhe rights provid€d to lh€ Licensee

und6r lhs provislons of lhe FAR or DFAR$ monlionod above, as

applicable to the partlcular procurlng agency and procuremont

transaotion.

SECTION 1 O. CONFIDENTIALITY
Llcens€e acknowlodgss that lhe SoftwarE and Dooumentation oonlain
IDEMIA's valuable proprietary and Confidenllal lnformalion and are

IDEMIA'8 trado secrols, and lhat the provisione ln the Primary

Agreemenl concernlng Confldenlial lnformallon appV'

SECTION 11, GENERAL
11.1. COPYRIGHT NOTICES. The exlslenoe of a copyright
nolice on lhe Soflwaro will nol be construed as an Edmission or

prosumptlon of publicalion of lhe Soflware or publlc disolosure of any
lrade secrolg Essociated wlth lhe Soflware.

11,2. COMPLIANCE WTH LAWS. Licensee aoknowledges that
lho Software is subiect to the laws and rogulations of lhe Uniled slal68
and Lioensee wlll oompty wllh all applioablo laws and regulalions,
including exporl laws and regulalions of lhe United Slat€s. Licen6€6

will nol, wfthout lhs prior authorizallon of IDEMIA and the appropriato
governmenlal authority of lha Unlted States, in any form axport or 16'

6xporl, eell or resell, ship or reshlp, or divert, through dkeot or indkect
msans, any item or teohnlcal dEls or dhect or lndheot products sold or

otheruiso iurnished to any person wlthln any torritory for which the
Unlled Slatee Governmenl or any of ils agencies al the time of lhe
aotion, roquires an export lioense or olh€r governmental approval,
Vlolatlon of this provision la a malerial broach of this Agre€menl'

11,3. OOVERNING LAW. This Agreemenl is governed by lhe
laws of th€ Unlted States to ths exlenl thal lhey apply and olh€rwiso
by lhe internal subslanliva laws of the Slato lo which the Software ls

siripped lf Lloensee is a sovereign governmenl entily, lo the extoni thoy

do'riot conflicl wlth lhe laws of ths United Stales, or lhe inlernal

substantlve laws of the State of Delaware lf Llcensoe ls not a sovor€ign
governmsnl entily. The terms of lhe U,N. Convention on Conlracts for

ihE lnternalional Sale of Goods do not apply' ln the 6venl lhat lhe
Uniform Compuior lnformation Transaolion Acl, any version of lhls Aot'

or a sub8tanii;lV similar law (oolleollvely "UClTA") beoomos appllcablo
lo a party'8 performance under lhls Agreemenl, UCITA doee not
goverh any aipecl of lhie Agreement oI sny lic€nse grEnted under lhls
Agreement, or any of lhe partles' rlghls or obllgations under lhis
Agreemont, Tha'govorning law wlll be lhEl ln effect prlor to lho
applicability of UCITA,

11,4. THIRD PARTY BENEFlclARlEs. This Agreem€nt i6

entor€d lnlo sololy for th€ bon€fll of IDEMIA and LicenEee. No lhhd
party has the right to make any olalm or ass€rt any right under lhls
Asreemonl, and no lhird parly is de€med a beneflolary of this
Aireemenl. Notwllhstanding thC foregoing, any lioensor or suppller of

lhird party soflware inoluded in lhe Soffwaro wlll be E dlrecl and

lnlended lhhd perly beneficiary of thia Agrooment'

11,5. PREVAILING Pr{RW. ln lhe evsnt of any dispule arlslng
out of lho subjocl matlor of this Agreemenl, the prevalllng parly shall

recovor, ln adiitlon to any othar damages a63€8sod, lts reaeonable
atlorneys'faes and couri cosls incuned ln arbitraling' llligating, or
otherwilo sollling or rosolving such dlspule.

11.6 SURVIVAL, Sootions 4,5,6.3,7, 8,9, 10, and 11 suwive
the t€rminalion of lhls Agreemenl'

Reference: lDcA'L041624{1 Page I of 9

ldamlsldenfitv&Secu?ltvI,JSALLCr11951 FraedomDrlv,l.SrrltelB00.Fleslnn.Virdinle20l90 owmnaidemiacom



5 year maintenance and equpiment 42,199.74$   

Livescan System Cabinet 23,816.00$   
Sales Tax 1,845.74$     

25,661.74$   Cabinet Total w/slstx

5 year warranty 16,538.00$   

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-410  

 

Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
Clerk of the Board 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the minutes from the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of May 21, 2024. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, 
www.inyocounty.us. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. May 21, 2024 Draft Minutes 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://www.inyocounty.us/government/publications-reports-plans-proclamations/meeting-agendas-minutes


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

APPROVALS: 
Hayley Carter Created/Initiated - 5/28/2024 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     May 21, 2024       

     

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

 

 
May 21, 2024 
  
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 8:34 a.m., on 
May 21, 2024, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present: Chairperson Matt Kingsley, presiding, Scott Marcellin, Jeff Griffiths, Jennifer Roeser and Trina Orrill. 
Also present: County Administrator Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, and Assistant Clerk of 
the Board Darcy Ellis.  

 

Closed Session  
Public Comment 
 

The Chairperson asked for public comment related to closed session items and there was no 
one wishing to speak. 

Closed Session  
 

Chairperson Kingsley recessed open session at 8:35 a.m. to convene in closed session with 
all Board members present to discuss the following item(s): No. 2 Conference with 
County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding 
employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County 
Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). 
Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer 
Nate Greenberg, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, 
Assistant County Counsel Christy Milovich, and Assistant Director of Budgets and General 
Services Denelle Carrington; and No. 3 Conference with Real Property Negotiators –
 Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of Government Code §54956.8 – Property: 
325 N. Brewery St., Lone Pine, CA 93545. Agency Negotiators: Nate Greenberg, John-Carl 
Vallejo, Meaghan McCamman, Cathreen Richards, Amy Shepherd. Negotiating parties: Inyo 
County and Pravin Joshi. Under negotiation: price and terms of payment. 
 

Open Session 
 

Chairperson Kingsley recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session 
at 10:09 a.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Supervisor Orrill led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Report on Closed 
Session 
 

County Counsel Vallejo reported that the Board met under Item Nos. 2 and 3 and said that 
no action was taken during closed session required to be reported. Vallejo said the Board 
would meet again for closed session later in the meeting. 
 

Introductions 
 
 
 

The following new employees were introduced to the Board: Auditor-Appraiser Paola Lois 
Perez, Assessor's Office; Office Technician Terry Fenske, Clerk-Recorder's Office; 
Librarian Mike Sherk; Food Cook Rodrigo Castro Luque, Animal Control Officer Kelton 
Masteron, and Community Relations Liaison Lindsey Stine, Sheriff's Office; and from 
HHS: Office Clerk Heidi Gutierrez, Administrative Analyst Shiloh Smith, Administrative 
Analyst April Turner, and Prevention Specialist Karlina West. 
 

Presentation 
 

Supervisor Roeser introduced students and faculty from the Big Pine Unified School District 
who provided a presentation of their recent participation in “Better World Day.” 
 

Public Comment  
 

The Chairperson asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the agenda 
and public comment was received from Lauralyn Hundley, Marilynn Mann, Tony Rubino, Josh 
Nicholson, Lynn Greer, and Supervisor Roeser. 
 

Whitney Portal Road 
Update 
 

Public Works Director Mike Errante said that the opening bid deadline for the Whitney Portal 
Road repair project has been delayed until May 23, 2024. Errante said staff would provide 
updates as soon as possible and that subsequent action will involve the arrangement of 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     May 21, 2024       

meetings with the selected contractor. 
 

County Department 
Reports 
 

Public Works Director Mike Errante thanked Big Pine students for their presentation and said 
he is working with a new Parks Manager to address deferred maintenance issues at County 
parks and campgrounds. 
 
County Librarian Nancy Masters announced that there will be an open house at Furnace 
Creek Library tomorrow. 
 
Sheriff Stephanie Rennie presented the new Sheriff’s Office badges, which were designed by 
retired Corporal Matt Graeff.  
 
Health & Human Services Director Anna Scott said to expect big changes to Public Health, 
Social Services, and Adult Services Countywide due to upcoming State budget cuts. 
 
Emergency Services Manager Mikaela Torres said she recently attended Earth Day events 
with the Big Pine and Bishop Paiute Tribes and Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe; hosted an 
“Integrating Access and Functional Needs” training in Bishop; and a quarterly Tribal 
Collaboration meeting. Torres provided additional updates noting her work on the June 
Emergency Services Newsletter and the After-Action Review for the Cartago Fire and said 
she will be attending a Drought Taskforce meeting and Wildfire Resilience Week events. 
 

Item Pulled – COPS 
Funding 
 

Chairperson Kingsley announced the following item was being pulled from the agenda at the 
request of the department head. 

 
21) 

 
Authorization to Submit an Application for the Office of Community Oriented 
Policing Services (COPS) FY-24 Hiring Program  

 Sheriff | Lindsey Stine 
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the submission of the U.S. Department of Justice, 
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) FY24 COPS Hiring Program 
application and authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign documents needed during the 
application process. 
  

 

Item Pulled – COPS 
Funding 
 

Chairperson Kingsley announced the following item was being pulled from the agenda at the 
request of the department head. 

 
22) 

 
Fiscal Year 2024 COPS School Violence Prevention Program  

 Sheriff | Lindsey Stine 
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Sheriff's Office to submit an application or the 
FY 2024 COPS School Violence Prevention Program Grant and authorize the Sheriff 
to sign all documents required for the application process.  
  

 

Bishop Unified School 
District/ 
Reso. No. 2024-18 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to: 
A) Approve Resolution No. 2024-18 titled, "Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of 

the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Application of School Facilities 
Improvement District Law in the County of Inyo for the Benefit of the Bishop Unified 
School District," and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and 

B) Direct staff to file the resolution with the California Debt and Investment Advisory 
Commission. 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Clerk of the Board – 
Approval of Minutes 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the minutes from 
the special Board of Supervisors meetings of April 26, 2024, and May 3, 2024, and the 
regular Board of Supervisors meetings of May 7, 2024, and May 14, 2024. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

HHS-Social Services – 
Inyo County Office of 
Education Stage 1 
Childcare Contract 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and the Inyo County Office of Education for the provision of 
Stage I Child Care Services, in an amount not to exceed $170,000.00, for the period of July 
1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, contingent on the Board approving the 2024-2025 budget, 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     May 21, 2024       

 and authorize Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

HHS-ESAAA – 
CILS Contract 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the contract with 
California Indian Legal Services (CILS) for the provision of legal services to older adults 
eligible for services through the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging, in an amount not to 
exceed $80,000 for the period July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2028, contingent upon the 
Board's adoption of future budgets. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

HHS-Social Services – 
UC Davis Services 
Training Contract 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the contract 
between the County of lnyo and the Regents of the University of California, on behalf of its 
Davis Campus University Extension, for training services in an amount not to exceed 
$118,575.00 for the period of July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the 
Board's adoption of the FY 2024-25 budget and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

HHS – 
CCE Program Funding 
Agreement 
Amendment No. 1 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve Amendment 
No.1 to the Community Care Expansion (CCE) Program Funding Agreement (PFA) between 
the County of Inyo and Horne LLP of Ridgeland, MS to extend the funding expenditure 
deadlines for Capital Projects funding from December 31, 2026, to October 31, 2028, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Public Works – 
Tartaglia Engineering 
Contract 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to:  
A) Ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Tartaglia 

Engineering of Atascadero for the provision of Engineering Services in an amount 
not to exceed $97,788 for the period of April 24, 2024, through June 30, 2025 or 
project completion, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign; and 

B) Authorize the Public Works Director to sign the forthcoming Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program grants for the Runway 12-30 
Grooving Project and the Forecast Update/Terminal Design Study. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

Public Works- 
Recycling & Waste 
Management – 
American Refuse, Inc. 
Tire Hauling and 
Disposal Contract 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the agreement 
between the County of lnyo and American Refuse, lnc. of Wasco, CA for the provision of tire 
hauling and recycling in an amount not to exceed $347,400 for the period of July 1, 2024, 
through June 30, 2027, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 

Public Works – 
Onion Valley Guardrail 
Project/Sierra 
Geological Services, 
Inc. Contract 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to ratify and approve the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and Sierra Geological Services, Inc. (SGSI) of 
Mammoth Lakes, CA for the provision of materials testing and inspection services on the 
Onion Valley Road Guardrail Project in an amount not to exceed $9,900 for the period from 
March 1, 2024, through June 30, 2024, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

Water Department – 
Owens Valley 
Groundwater Authority 
Executive Manager 
Services Contract 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the agreement 
between the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority of Independence, CA, and the County of 
Inyo for the provision of Executive Manager services in an amount not to exceed $25,410 for 
the period beginning March 14, 2024, and remaining in effect until terminated by any party 
with 30 days' notice and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously. 

Public Works – 
Fountainhead 
Consulting Contract 
 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Fountainhead Consulting of Fontana, CA for the provision of 
construction management services in an amount not to exceed $323,736.09 for the period of 
June 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon Board approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Planning Department – 
Adaption Planning 
Grant Program Round 

The agenda item was moved from the Consent Agenda to the Regular Agenda for further 
discussion and Planning Department Director Cathreen Richards answered Board member 
questions. 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  4                                                                                                                                     May 21, 2024       

2 Letter of Support 
 

 
Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter of support for the Inyo County Planning Department 
application for the Adaption Planning Grant Program Round 2. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

CAO-Advertising 
County Resources – 
Film Commissioner 
Oral Report 
 

Film Commissioner Jesse Steele provided a brief update on local filming activity. 

Planning Department – 
Code Amendment 
2024-01/Water 
Landscape Efficient 
Ordinance No. 1306 
 

Planning Associate Danielle Visuano provided a presentation on the State-mandated Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) and discussed a proposed ordinance to 
amend Chapter 17.40, which would incorporate the MWELO in its entirety but also include 
the addition of enforcement and penalty provisions. 
 
Chairperson Kingsley opened a public hearing at 1:58 p.m. Board members discussed the 
specific requirements of the MWELO and ultimately decided to defer approval of the item in 
order to allow staff time to compile data, create a fee schedule, and return to Board at a 
future date to present the information. 
 
Public comment was heard from Lynn Greer then the Chairperson closed the public hearing 
at 12:26 p.m. 
 

Recess/Reconvene 
 

Chairperson Kingsley recessed the regular Board meeting to return to closed session at 
12:53 p.m. and reconvened in open session at 1:30 p.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Report on Closed 
Session 
 

County Counsel Vallejo reported that the Board met under Item Nos. 2 and 3 and that no 
action was taken during closed session required to be reported. Vallejo said the Board would 
meet again to discuss both items prior to the completion of the meeting. 
 

Recess/Reconvene 
 

Chairperson Kingsley recessed the regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors and 
reconvened as the Inyo County Board of Equalization at 1:45 p.m. (Separate minutes.) 
 
The Chairperson adjourned the Inyo County Board of Equalization meeting and reconvened 
the regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors at 3:52 p.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Clerk-Recorder – 
Election Worker 
Stipend Rates Increase 
Request/ 
Reso. No. 2024-19 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve Resolution No. 
2024-19, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California, Authorizing the Inyo County Clerk-Recorder, Registrar Establishing New Election 
Worker Stipend Rates,” which will repeal prior order of current rates, and update stipend 
rates for Election Workers, to be effective beginning with Election Worker services provided 
for the November 5, 2024 Presidential General Election. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Water Department – 
Inyo County/Los 
Angeles Standing 
Committee Meeting 
 

Water Director Dr. Holly Alpert summarized the agenda for the May 30, 2024 Inyo 
County/Los Angeles Standing Committee meeting and asked for direction from the Board. 
 
The Board agreed with the following staff recommendations moving forward: A) that 
seasonal habitat flows on the Lower Owens River remain at a flow of 200 cubic feet per 
second; and B) that the flooded acreage of the Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area 
remain at 500 acres.  
 
Additionally, the Board requested that staff continue to advocate for a renewed partnership 
concerning vegetation and weed management in preparation of the wildfire season.  
 
Public comment was provided by Sally Manning. 
 

Public Comment  
 

Chairperson Kingsley asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the 
agenda and there was no one wishing to speak. 
 

Board Member & Staff 
Reports 
 

Assistant Clerk of the Board/Public Relations Liaison Darcy Ellis said she will be distributing 
copies of letters submitted to the Board by 5th grade students from Big Pine Unified School. 
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  5                                                                                                                                     May 21, 2024       

CAO Greenberg said he attended a California Jobs First gathering. 
 
County Counsel John Vallejo wished Supervisor Kingsley a happy birthday and reminded the 
Board they would need to return to closed session. 
 
Supervisors Griffiths and Marcellin wished Supervisor Kingsley a happy birthday. 
 
Supervisor Orrill invited everyone to attend Mule Days events and wished Supervisor 
Kingsley a happy birthday. 
 
Supervisor Kingsley said he attended a Rural County Representatives of California meeting 
last week. 
 

Recess/Reconvene Chairperson Kingsley recessed the regular Board meeting to return to closed session at 4:13 
p.m. and reconvened in open session at 5:01 p.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Report on Closed 
Session 
 

County Counsel Vallejo reported that the Board met under Item Nos. 2 and 3 and said that 
no action was taken that is required to be reported.  

Adjournment County Counsel Vallejo adjourned the meeting on behalf of Chairperson Kingsley at 5:01 
p.m. to 8:30 a.m. Tuesday, June 4, 2024, in the County Administrative Center in 
Independence.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G  

         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d  

               

            

   

 

 by:       _____________________________________ 

  Darcy Ellis, Assistant  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-386  

 

Bishop Area Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau 
Report 

County Administrator - Advertising County Resources 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Bishop Chamber Tawni Thomson, Executive Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive a presentation from the Bishop Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Bureau on the 
advertising/marketing campaign it has undertaken on behalf of the County. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
For the last two fiscal years, Inyo County has engaged the services of the Bishop Chamber of 
Commerce and Visitors Bureau to promote our world-class region to a diverse market of travelers with a 
wide variety of recreational interests. The program approved for FY 2023-2024 included a strategic mix 
of print, digital, and in-person initiatives that have proven to produce good results. 
 
Specifically, the contract included, for an amount not to exceed $39,695: print and digital ads with the 
Eastern Sierra Fishing Guide, Adventure Sports Journal, and Yosemite Journal Magazine; attendance at 
the U.S. Travel Association IPW Conference in Los Angeles; a regional collaboration promoting the Fall 
Colors; and an air service campaign that combined targeted Facebook, Instagram, and Google 
advertising, an ad in Hemispheres Magazine, and organic social media posting.  
 
Chamber representatives have requested the opportunity to provide an overview of the most recent 
campaign and its successes. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Elect not to receive the presentation. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Chamber of Commerce Presentation 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/28/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/28/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 2023 Eastern Sierra Fishing Guide







I n y o Co u n t y V i s i t o r . c o m     @ e x p l o r e i n y o c o u n t y P
ho

to
 b

y 
Em

ily
 T

ay
lo

rEST Eastern Sierra Tour
Plan this incredible road trip! 

FROM DEATH VALLEY TO YOSEMITE









 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-384  

 

Appointment of a National Association of Counties 
Voting Delegate 
Board of Supervisors 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Board of Supervisors Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Appoint a voting delegate from the Board of Supervisors for the 2024 Annual Business Meeting and 
Election to be held during the National Association of Counties' Annual Conference in Hillsborough 
County, FL on Monday, July 15. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Voting delegates and proxies decide all business, motions and the election of officers during the National 
Association of Counties (NACo) Annual Business Meeting. This year's meeting is scheduled for Monday, 
July 15. NACo members vote on proposed amendments to association bylaws, NACo's policy agenda 
and elect NACo officers for the coming year. The second vice president is typically the only contested 
position. 
 
NACo members are encouraged to authorize only one voting delegate per county and must also provide 
the cell phone number of the voting delegate.  
 
A county’s vote total is determined by the amount of dues paid, which are based on the population of the 
2010 census. Every county receives one vote and is allotted an additional vote for each $1,200 paid in 
dues. According to this formula, Inyo County receives one vote. 
 
Inyo County is under no obligation to designate a voting delegate. If a member county would like to proxy 
their vote, they may authorize another member county in the same state to cast proxy votes for the 
county or their state association president or president's designee. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Inyo County is under no obligation to designate a voting delegate and may authorize another member 
county to serve as its proxy. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/28/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/28/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 4, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-407  

 

Consideration of Board of Supervisors' Budget Narrative 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Board of Supervisors 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Review and direct staff to make any desired changes to the narrative for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
Board of Supervisors Budget Narrative. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Each budget for every department in the County is accompanied by a narrative when presented for 
approval each fall. The narratives include departmental overviews and list successes from the prior fiscal 
year and goals for the new one. 
 
Historically, the narrative for the Board of Supervisors budget (No. 010100) has been written by the Clerk 
of the Board (CAO) and/or the Assistant Clerk of the Board. 
 
During last year's budget hearings, the request was made that the narrative be developed more 
collaboratively with the Board. Work has already commenced on the FY 24-25 budget; a rough draft of 
the Board of Supervisors portion is attached for your consideration. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Decline to review the document. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft FY 24-25 BOS Budget Narrative 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/28/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/28/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 5/28/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
010100

DEPARTMENTAL FUNCTIONS

        The Board of Supervisors is the Legislative Body of the County, responsible for setting policy that affects the 
county's 18,000-plus residents, the millions of visitors traveling through the county every year, and the future 
generations who will call Inyo County home. The Board's members are elected from each of Inyo County's five 
supervisorial districts and are charged with representing both the interests of their individual districts and those of 
the county as a whole. The Department is charged with the legal responsibility of publishing agendas and minutes 
for all Board of Supervisors meetings and for any other meetings at which the Board of Supervisors sits as the 
Governing Board, including but not limited to the Board of Equalization and Capital Asset Leasing Corporation. 
The office maintains, and processes, by law, all public requests for the Board of Supervisors documents and carries 
out numerous other functions as mandated by law, including Board of Supervisors permanent record retention and 
advertising of public notices.

MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024
• Further refined and fine-tuned short-term rental regulations for Inyo County.

• Engaged with local, state, and federal agencies on the pressing issues of wildfire protection, forest
infrastructure, sustainable recreation, reliable and affordable broadband for the entire county, and
homelessness.

• Participated in a joint meeting with the Inyo County Board of Education to discuss trends and needs of local
districts.

• Adopted a balanced and fiscally prudent budget that fulfilled key staffing requests, maintained vital public
services, invested in infrastructure, and preserved contributions to community events and projects.

GOALS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024

• Work with regional partners to develop an equitable plan for contributing to regional air service subsidies.

• Participate in and support exploration of a local business permit.

• Adopt a long-overdue, comprehensive Strategic Plan for Inyo County to help guide resources to priority
efforts.

• Successfully recruit a new Assistant County Administrative Officer.

• Adopt a new film ordinance and fee schedule that ensures cost recovery and streamlines the permitting
process - to the benefit of the county and filmmakers.


	 Call to Order
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigatio
	3) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu
	4) Conference with Real Property Negotiators – Pursua

	 Open Session
	5) Pledge of Allegiance
	6) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	7) Introductions - The following new employees will b
	8) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	9) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	10) Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract Between th
	Agenda Request Form
	Johnston Amendment No. 1

	11) Increase of Blanket Purchase Order for New Sheriff
	Agenda Request Form
	National Auto Group Blanket Purchase Order
	 New Patrol Vehicles Equipment Install Blanket Purchase Order

	12) Surplus Motor Pool Sheriff's Department Patrol Veh
	Agenda Request Form
	Surplus Patrol Vehicle List

	13) Approval of Contract with DKS Associates 
	Agenda Request Form
	DKS Associates Agreement
	Summary Scoring Worksheet 

	14) Jail Administration Remodel Project Change Order N
	Agenda Request Form
	Jail Admin Remodel Project/Pagenkopp Company Inc. Contract
	Jail Admin Remodel Change Order No. 1
	Jail Admin Remodel Change Order No. 2
	Jail Admin Remodel Change Order No. 3 

	15) Resolution Adopting List of Projects for Fiscal Ye
	Agenda Request Form
	RMRA (SB-1) FY 24-25 Resolution and Project Submittal

	16) Highway Safety Improvement Program Onion Valley Gu
	Agenda Request Form
	Onion Valley Guardrail Project/Coral Construction Co. Change Order No. 2 
	Notice of Completion Onion Valley Guardrail Project 
	Notice of Completion Resolution Onion Valley Guardrail Project 
	Onion Valley Guardrail Eastern Sierra Engineering Amendment No. 3 

	17) DataPilot - Digital Forensics & Certified Training
	Agenda Request Form
	DataPilot Grant Documents

	18) Ratification of Payment to Axon Enterprises, Inc.
	Agenda Request Form
	Axon Quote for Inyo County - Updated with GAP Coverage until July 

	19) Bid Acceptance of Idemia Livescan Machine
	Agenda Request Form
	Idemia Request For Proposal Response Letter
	2024 Idemia Quote Summary

	20) Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Request Form
	May 21, 2024 Draft Minutes


	 Regular Agenda
	21) Bishop Area Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Burea
	Agenda Request Form
	Chamber of Commerce Presentation

	22) Appointment of a National Association of Counties 
	Agenda Request Form

	23) Consideration of Board of Supervisors' Budget Narr
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft FY 24-25 BOS Budget Narrative


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	24) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	25) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r


	Text1: 

The following change supersedes Section 10 of this contract (Insert "third party" before "claims" in line two of the article):

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Design Professional/Consultant agrees to indemnify, including the cost to defend, entity and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all third party claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Design Professional/Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of services under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful acts of the County; and does not apply to any passive negligence of the County unless caused at least in part by the Design Professional/Consultant.


See Attachment A: Scope of Work

	Text2: Attachment B: Schedule of Fees/Cost Proposal
	Text3: 

U.S. General Services Administration FY 2024 - FY2026 Per Diem rates for Inyo County, October 2023 - 
September 2026: Refer to GSA website: https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates

Daily lodging rates (excluding taxes):
Death Valley Inyo/ NAWS China Lake 

Meals & Incidentals (M&IE) rates and breakdown:
M&IE Total - Death Valley Inyo/ NAWS China Lake  First & Last Day of Travel 

The Internal Revenue Service standard mileage rates:
Refer to IRS website: https://www.irs.gov/tax-professionals/standard-mileage-rates

		2024-05-20T10:38:11-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-05-16T10:37:19-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-05-15T13:46:38-0700
	Kris Karpstein




